City of Kingsville, Texas

AGENDA
CITY COMMISSION

MONDAY, JANUARY 14, 2013
REGULAR MEETING

HONORABLE ROBERT H. ALCORN COMMISSION CHAMBERS
CITY HALL/200 EAST KLEBERG AVENUE
6:00 P.M.

I. Preliminary Proceedings.

OPEN MEETING

APPROVED %{:
)

INVOCATION / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE ~ (Mayor Fugate) City Man

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING(S) — Required by Law

Il. Public Hearing - (Required by Law)."
1. None.

lll. Reports from Commission & Staff.? (City Manager’s Staff Report Attached).

“At this time, the City Commission and Staff will report/update on all committee
assignments which may include, but is not limited to the following: Planning & Zoning
Commission, Zoning Board of Adjustments, Historical Board, Housing Authority Board,
Library Board, Health Board, Tourism, Chamber of Commerce, Coastal Bend Council of
Governments, Conner Museum, Keep Kingsville Beautiful, and Texas Municipal
League. Staff reports include the following: Building & Development , Code
Enforcement, Proposed Development Report; Accounting & Finance — Financial &
Investment Information, Monthly Financial Reports; Police & Fire Department — Grant
Update, Police & Fire Reports; Street Updates; Public Works- Building Maintenance,
Construction Updates; Park Services - grant(s) update, miscellaneous park projects,
Administration —Workshop Schedule, Interlocal Agreements, Public Information, Hotel
Occupancy Report, Quiet Zone, Proclamations, Health Plan Update, Tax Increment
Zone Presentation, Main Street Downtown, Chapter 59 project, Financial Advisor. No
formal action can be taken on these items at this time.”

Page 1 of 4
AGENDA - KINGSVILLE CITY COMMISSION
JANUARY 14, 2013



IV. Public Comment on Agenda items *

V.

1. Comments on all agenda and non-agenda items.

Consent Agenda
Notice to the Public

The following items are of a routine or administrative nature. The Commission has been
furnished with background and support material on each item, and/or it has been
discussed at a previous meeting. All items will be acted upon by one vote without being
discussed separately unless requested by a Commission Member in which event the
item or items will immediately be withdrawn for individual consideration in its normal
sequence after the items not requiring separate discussion have been acted upon. The
remaining items will be adopted by one vote.

CONSENT MOTIONS, RESOLUTIONS, ORDINANCES AND ORDINANCES FROM
PREVIOUS MEETINGS:

(At this point the Commission will vote on all motions, resolutions and ordinances
not removed for individual consideration)

1. Motion to approve out-of-state travel for City Commission and Staff to attend the
National League of Cities Congress of Cities 2013 Congressional City Conference on
March 9-13, 2013, in Washington, D.C. (City Manager).

2. Motion to approve out-of-state travel for Special Agent Mike Tamez to attend Drug
Interdiction Assistance Program (DIAP) Commercial Motor Vehicle Criminal Interdiction
Course on January 28-30, 2013 in Glendale, Arizona with DIAP paying for travel and per
diem expenses. (Task Force Commander).

3. Motion to approve resolution authorizing the release of Chapter 59 funds of the
Kingsville Specialized Crimes and Narcotics Task Force for donation to the Douglass
Center. (Task Force Commander).

4. Motion to appoint Candace Jefferson for a 3 year term to the City Historic
Preservation Commission. (Tourism Director).

5. Motion to appoint Floyd W. Holder, IV for a 3 year term to the City Historic
Preservation Commission. (Tourism Director).

6. Motion to appoint Erinn Catherine McComb for a 3 year term to the City Historic
Preservation Commission. (Tourism Director).

7. Motion to approve resolution to continue participation in the Texas Main Street
Program, authorizing the Mayor to execute Texas Main Street Letter Agreement, and
designating Downtown Manager Cynthia Martin as the Main Street Program Manager for
the City of Kingsville to coordinate program activities. (Tourism Director).

8. Motion to approve resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a Certification
Agreement between the Texas Historical Commission and the City of Kingsville, Texas
for participation in the Certified Local Government (CLG) program and designating
Downtown Manager Cynthia Martin as the CLG Representative for the City to coordinate
program activities. (Tourism Director).

9. Motion to approve resolution designating Downtown Manager Cynthia Martin as the
City Historic Preservation Officer. (Tourism Director).

Page 2 of 4
AGENDA - KINGSVILLE CITY COMMISSION
JANUARY 14, 2013



REGULAR AGENDA

CONSIDERATION OF MOTIONS, RESOLUTIONS, AND ORDINANCES:
VI. Items for consideration by Commissioners.*

10. Consideration and approval of an ordinance authorizing the issuance of “City of
Kingsville, Texas Certificates of Obligations, Series 2013" and approving all other
matters related to the issuance of the certificates of obligations. (Finance Director).

11. Consideration and approval of an ordinance authorizing the issuance of “City of
Kingsville, Texas Limited Tax Refunding Bonds, Series 2013"; a purchase contract; a
paying agent/registrar agreement; and approving all other matters related thereto.
(Finance Director).

12. Discuss speed limit on US Highway 77 through city limits. (Commissioner Garcia).

13. Consider awarding bid for 16" emergency water line extension along General
Cavazos Blvd. as per staff recommendation. (Bid #13-04). (Director of Purchasing & IT).

14. Consider a resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into a second revised
Water Utility Supply Contract (GOV. Contract #N69450-12-C-0011) between the City of
Kingsville and the Federal Government for Naval Air Station-Kingsville for an emergency
water line connection. (City Engineer/Public Works Director).

15. Consider introduction of an ordinance vacating, abandoning, and closing Block 11,
Lots 1-15, including a 20’ alley, and a utility easement in Young Terrace Addition
Subdivision. (City Engineer/Public Works Director).

16. Consider introduction of an ordinance amending the Fiscal Year 2012-2013 budget
for the General Fund for the Street Department to receive funding for street
improvements and repairs for work done in front of the Santa Gertrudis Independent
School District Administration and School building. (City Engineer/Public Works
Director).

17. Consider introduction of an ordinance amending the Fiscal Year 2012-2013 budget
for the Police Department to purchase an ID Card System from Fiscal Year 2012
surplus. (Chief of Police).

18. Consider waiving interest on weed liens for property owned by Lionel H. Alarcon,
Lots 11-12, Block 37, Original Town. (Finance Director).

19. Consider resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a Professional Services
Contract for the position of City Manager with Vincent J. Capell. (Mayor Fugate).

20. Consider introduction of an ordinance amending the Fiscal Year 2012-2013 budget
for the General Fund's City Administration Dept. for an increase in compensation as a
result of the City Manager’s new Professional Services Contract. (Finance Director).

21. Discuss potential revision to Employee Health Benefit Plan for retirees who are no
longer eligible for coverage. (Commissioner Pecos).

VIl. Adjournment.

1.
2.

No person's comments shall exceed 5 minutes. Cannot be extended by Commission.
No person's comments shall exceed 5 minutes without permission of majority of Commission.

Page 3 of 4
AGENDA — KINGSVILLE CITY COMMISSION
JANUARY 14, 2013



Comments are limited to 3 minutes per person. May be extended or permitted at other times in the
meeting only with 5 affirmative Commission votes. The speaker must identify himself by name and
address.

ltems being considered by the Commission for action except citizens comments to the Mayor and
Commission, no comment at this point without 5 affirmative votes of the Commission.

NOTICE

This City of Kingsville and Commission Chambers are wheelchair accessible and
accessible parking spaces are available. Requests for accommodations or interpretive
services must be made 48 hours prior to this meeting. Please contact the City
Secretary's office at 361/595-8002 or FAX 361/595~8024 or E-Mail
mvalenzuela@cityofkingsville.com for further information. Braille Is Not Available.
The City Commission reserves the right to adjourn into executive session at any time
during the course of this meeting to discuss any of the matters listed above, as
authorized by the Texas Government Code, Section 551-071 (Consultation with Attorney),
551-072 (Deliberations about Real Property), 551-073 Deliberations about Gifts and
Donations), 551-074 (Personnel Matters), 551.076 (Deliberations about Security
Devices), 551-086 (Certain Public Power Utilities: Competitive Matters), and 551-087
(Economic Development) .

|, the undersigned authority do hereby certify that the Notice of Meeting was posted on the
bulletin board in the City Hall, 200 East Kieberg, of the City of Kingsville, Texas, a place
convenient and readily accessible to the general public at all times and said Notice was posted
on the following date and time:

January 10, 2013 at 1:00 P.M, and remained so posted continuously for at least 72 hours
preceding the schedule time of said meeting.

Mary ;\S/alenzu%

City Secretary
City of Kingsville, Texas

This public notice was removed from the official posting board at the Kingsville City Hall on the
following date and time:

By:
City Secretary’s Office
City of Kingsville, Texas

Page 4 of 4
AGENDA - KINGSVILLE CITY COMMISSION
JANUARY 14, 2013




MINUTES OF PREVIOUS
MEETING(S)



DECEMBER 10, 2012

A REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY OF KINGSVILLE CITY COMMISSION WAS
HELD ON MONDAY, DECEMBER 10, 2012 IN THE HONORABLE ROBERT H.
ALCORN COMMISSION CHAMBERS 200 EAST KLEBERG AVENUE AT 6:00 P.M.

CITY COMMISSION PRESENT:
Sam R. Fugate, Mayor

Al Garcia, Commissioner
Dianne Leubert, Commissioner
Noel Pena, Commissioner
Arturo Pecos, Commissioner

CITY STAFF PRESENT:

Vince Capell, City Manager

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney

David Mason, Purchasing Director

Mark Rushing, Finance Director

James Bryson, Accountant Manager

Mike Kellam, Director of Development Services
Diana Gonzales, Personnel Director

Diana Medina, Collections Manager

Roel Carrion, Interim Fire Chief

Emilio Garcia, Health Director

Bob Trescott, Tourism Director

Rose Morrow, Municipal Court Supervisor
Naim Kahn, Public Works Director/City Engineer
Dionicio Perez, Building Official

Cynthia Martin, Downtown & Volunteer Manager
Melissa Perez, Risk Manager

Willie Vera, Task Force Commander

Valerie Valero, Engineering

Ruthie Valdez, Interim Library Director

Tony Verdin, Computer Operation Technician

I. Preliminary Proceedings.

OPEN MEETING
Mayor Fugate called the meeting to order in the City Commission Chamber at 6:02 P.M.
and announced quorum as present.

INVOCATION | PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - (Mayor Fugate)
The invocation was delivered by Mark Rushing, Finance Director followed by the Pledge
of Allegiance and the Texas Pledge.

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING(S) — Required by Law

Page 1 of 7 - DECEMBER 10, 2012



Mayor Fugate called for consideration of the minutes for regular meeting held on
Monday, November 26, 2012. Commissioner Leubert made a motion to accept the
minutes as presented, seconded by Commissioner Pecos. The motion was
passed and approved by the following vote: Garcia, Leubert, Pecos, Pena, voting
“FOR”. Fugate “ABSTAIN".

Il. Public Hearing - (Required by Law)."

1. Public hearing regarding introduction of an ordinance amending the zoning
ordinance by granting a Special Use Permit for 607 South 13" (Lots 5, Block 30,
Retama Park) for an off-site caterer/bakery. (Director of Planning &
Development Services).

Mayor Fugate opened the public hearing at 6:04 p.m.

Mr. Mike Kellam, Director of Development Services stated this is a special use
permit for an offsite carter bakery. This item was presented on November 14,
2012 to the Planning & Zoning Commission meeting. No one appeared in
opposition during this meeting and received no written comments in opposition to
this request. Business hours will be from 10:00 A.M. to 7:00 P.M. with minimal
customer traffic expected. Handicap accessiblity parking space shall be properly
designated for one of the two required parking stalls for ADA customers. Minimal
remodeling will be done to the interior of the building. This property is one block
from 14" Street, one of the busiest commercial corridors of the city. Given the
proximity to the existing commercial corridor, neighboring commercial uses and
the aforementioned findings, staff is comfortable with the issuance of the special
use permit. The business shall obtain all required permits for building, including
Fire and Health Departments codes to operate said business. Planning staff and
the Planning and Zoning Commission recommend conditional approval of this
rezoning request.

Mayor Fugate closed the public hearing at 6:09 p.m.
Il. Reports from Commission & Staff.? (City Manager’s Staff Report Attached).

“At this time, the City Commission and Staff will report/update on all committee
assignments which may include, but is not limited to the following: Planning &
Zoning Commission, Zoning Board of Adjustments, Historical Board, Housing
Authority Board, Library Board, Health Board, Tourism, Chamber of Commerce,
Coastal Bend Council of Governments, Conner Museum, Keep Kingsville
Beautiful, and Texas Municipal League. Staff reports include the
following: Building & Development , Code Enforcement, Proposed Development
Report; Accounting & Finance — Financial & Investment Information, Monthly
Financial Reports; Police & Fire Department — Grant Update, Police & Fire
Reports; Street Updates; Public Works- Building Maintenance, Construction
Updates; Park Services - granf(s) update, miscellaneous park projects,
Administration —Workshop Schedule, Interlocal Agreements, Public Information,
Hotel Occupancy Report, Quiet Zone, Proclamations, Health Plan Update, Tax
Increment Zone Presentation, Main Street Downtown, Chapter 59 project,
Financial Advisor. No formal action can be taken on these items at this time.”

Page 2 of 7 - DECEMBER 10, 2012



Mr. Vince Capell, City Manager reported that it being the holiday season, our
next regular scheduled Commission meeting falls on Christmas Eve and City Hall
will be closed in observance of the holiday on Monday, December 24, 2012 and
Tuesday, December 25, 2012. Our next regular scheduled meeting is January
14, 2013.

Mayor Fugate stated that he is fine with waiting to meet on January 14, 2013,
unless any of the other Commissioners have any objection.

No objections were made by the Commission.

Mr. Capell stated that in the past week the City hosted an Employee Recognition
and Safety Week which went very well. He commended Diana Gonzales,
Director of Personnel, Melissa Perez, Risk Manager and the Safety Committee
on all their hard work for putting this together. Mr. Capell introduced Ms. Cynthia
Martin, Downtown & Volunteer Manager and Ruthie Valdez, Interim Library
Director.

Mrs. Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney stated that all agenda items and staff
reports are due December 28, 2012. She further stated that Municipal Court
dates are December 20, 2012 and January 3, 2013. Mrs. Alvarez stated that
regarding tonight's agenda, item number 3 is a proposed interlocal with Kingsville
Independent School District. She stated that she has spoken with Ms. Griffith of
KISD who stated that she and the KISD attorney have not had the opportunity to
review the proposed interlocal so therefore they are unable to provide comments
at this time. ltem number 7 regarding vacating a plat, staff has met with a -
representative from the property owner. After having a discussion with them, staff
will be making some modifications and bring this item back to Commission in
January.

Mayor Fugate stated he recently took a trip with Dick Messbarger to Washington,
D.C. The purpose of this trip was to discuss issues regarding NAS Kingsville. He
stated that the last three years, the Navy has spent close to $100,000,000 in
infrastructure improvements. He stated that with the completion of the Joint Land
Use Study (JLUS), makes Kingsville stand well for the next BRAC round. He
further stated that recently the Navy has received $14,000,000 to connect NAS
Kingsville with the City water and wastewater services. He further stated that
there is still concern with regards to wind farms. Mayor Fugate stated that
Celanese is interested in building a plant in Texas at one of their facilities that will
convert natural gas into gasoline. Celanese representatives have asked for help
in talking to Congress about making natural gas part of a bio-fuel or an
alternative fuel in defining that in this legislation which will give them some
benefits that can be used in developing their plant.

IV. Public Comment on Agenda ltems

V.

1. Comments on all agenda and non-agenda items.
Consent Agenda

Page 3 of 7 - DECEMBER 10, 2012



Notice to the Public

The following items are of a routine or administrative nature. The Commission
has been fumished with background and support material on each item, and/or it
has been discussed at a previous meeting. All items will be acted upon by one
vote without being discussed separately unless requested by a Commission
Member in which event the item or items will immediately be withdrawn for
individual consideration in its normal sequence after the items not requiring
separate discussion have been acted upon. The remaining items will be adopted
by one vote.

CONSENT_MOTIONS, RESOLUTIONS, ORDINANCES AND ORDINANCES
FROM PREVIOUS MEETINGS:

(At this point the Commission will vote on all motions, resolutions and
ordinances not removed for individual consideration)

Mayor Fugate asked for a motion to approve the consent agenda items as
presented. Commissioner Garcia made a motion to approve the consent
agenda as presented, second by Commissioner Leubert. The motion was
passed and approved by the following vote: Leubert, Pecos, Pena, Garcia,
Fugate voting “FOR”.

1. Motion to approve resolution authorizing the submission of a grant application
on behalf of the City of Kingsville Fire Department to Firehouse Subs Public
Safety Foundation for the purpose of requesting grant funding for three additional
StreetSmart Lifeline (EMS) Segway vehicles, with no cash match. (Interim Fire
Chief).

2. Motion to approve authorizing the purchase of two 2012 Dodge Chargers and
applicable equipment for the Kingsville Police Department from Grapevine Dodge
Chrysler Jeep via Buyboard (contract #358-10) for and using “Operation Stone
Garden” grant funds of approximately $50,465.50 with any additional funding for
equipping the vehicles coming from Chapter 59 Funds, as per staff
recommendation. (Purchasing Director).

REGULAR AGENDA
CONSIDERATION OF MOTIONS, RESOLUTIONS, AND ORDINANCES:

VI. Items for consideration by Commissioners.*

3. Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute an Interlocal
Agreement with the Kingsville Independent School District relating to Waiver of
Certain Planning Fees in Exchange for Certain Land. (Mayor Fugate).

Mayor Fugate stated that he would like to bring everyone up to speed regarding
the new city hall project. He stated that at this time we have $5.3 million,
including City’'s money to put into the new city hall, plus additional money that will
be coming in next May. He stated that when the Kingsville School District deeded
the property to the foundation, they left out the old homemaking cottage. He
stated that he would like to ask for this structure as they would not have any
need for it. He stated that this building could be used for the Utility Department.

Page 4 of 7 - DECEMBER 10, 2012



Mayor Fugate met with Karen Griffith and Mr. Baha of the Kingsville Independent
School District. They are asking for the City to waive all necessary permits fees
for the building of the new high school, this amount would have a total of a little
less than $68,000. They are asking for the City to demolish a portable building
located at the old Lamar School, as well as sweep their parking lots at their
schools twice a year. He recalls the City waiving a great deal of permits for the
new Gillette and Harvey School. The permits fees waived will be in exchange for
the homemaking building and possibly the gymnasium.

Mr. Kellam briefed the Commission of the layout of the new city hall.

Commissioner Garcia asked staff to make the renditions available for public
viewing.

4. Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to sign all necessary
documentation on behalf of the City of Kingsville regarding the voluntary
demolition of Kleberg County Trustees property located at 508 S. 2" Street,
Kingsville, Texas. (Director of Planning & Development Services).

Mr. Kellam stated that staff has received a complaint regarding the tree which is
extremely over grown, that is going in through the roof of the house creating a
structural integrity issue.

Motion made by Commissioner Garcia to authorize the demolition, second
by Commissioner Pecos. The motion was passed and approved by the
following vote: Pecos, Pena, Garcia, Leubert, Fugate voting “FOR”.

5. Consider introduction of an ordinance amending the zoning ordinance by
granting a Special Use Permit for 607 South 13" (Lots 5, Block 30, Retama Park)
for an off-site caterer/bakery. (Director of Planning & Development Services).

Introduction item only.

6. Consider a resolution abandoning a utility easement within the Serenity
Estates No. 2 Subdivision. (City Engineer/Public Works Director).

Mr. Naim Kahn, City Engineer/Public Works Director stated that property owner
Victoria Guerrero is requesting to abandon a 15 foot utility easement located
within the Serenity Estates No. 2 Subdivision. Staff has verified with AEP, AT&T
CMA, Center Point, including City’s water and sanitary sewer departments, which
all confirmed that there are no active lines detected within the easement. Staff
recommends that the utility easement in question be abandoned.

Mayor Fugate stated that when the water line was placed for Steve Childress
property, it opened up an easement that allowed access to this private road. This
would give us access to all the properties in Serenity Acres which would allow us
to abandon this easement in question.

Commissioner Pecos asked what happens when individuals ask for a sewer line.

Mr. Kahn stated that at this time there isn’t a sewer line in that area. If city wants
to run a sewer line the capability is there.

Page 5 of 7 - DECEMBER 10, 2012



Motion made by Commissioner Garcia to approve this resolution, second
by Commissioner Pecos. The motion was passed and approved by the
following vote: Pena, Garcia, Leubert, Pecos, Fugate voting “FOR”.

7. Consider a resolution vacating the plat of Young Terrace Addition
Subdivision. (City Engineer/Public Works Director).

No action or discussion done on this item.

8. Consider removing from the table a resolution of the City of Kingsville
authorizing the City Attorney to execute a License Agreement for the King Ranch
Running W Mark for a mural to be located in downtown Kingsville. (City
Manager).

Motion made by Commissioner Pecos to remove this item from the table,
second by Commissioner Pena. The motion was passed and approved by
the following vote: Garcia, Leubert, Pecos, Pena, Fugate voting “FOR”.

9. Consider a resolution of the City of Kingsville authorizing the City Attorney to
execute a License Agreement for the King Ranch Running W Mark for a mural to
be located in downtown Kingsville. (City Attorney).

Mayor Fugate stated that after speaking with the previous Downtown Manager
and City Manager, staff wanted to make sure everything that we were doing with
regards to the mural was legal.

Motion made by Commissioner Pecos to authorize the City Attorney to
execute a license agreement for the King Ranch Running W Mark for a
mural to be located in downtown Kingsville, second by Commissioner
Pena. The motion was passed and approved by the following vote: Leubert,
Pecos, Pena, Garcia, Fugate voting “FOR”.

10. Consider a resolution of the City of Kingsville consenting to T-Mobile entering
into a Master Prepaid Lease with Crown Castle International Corp., which
includes the cell tower lease for 1133 W. Kenedy Street, Kingsville, Texas, as the
Master Prepaid Lease will be subject to and subordinate to the City’s Lease with
T-Mobile and authorizing the City Manager to execute any necessary paperwork
to reflect same. (City Attorney).

Mrs. Alvarez stated that the City has a lease agreement with T-Mobile for
property the City owns at 1133 W. Kenedy Street. This lease agreement for a cell
tower site was approved by the City Commission and executed on January 30,
2004. The lease agreement is for an initial ten year with four-5 year renewal
options. Under the lease T-Mobile has certain payment and maintenance
obligations, among others, to the City. The lease requires they obtain the City’s
consent prior to assigning, subletting, subcontracting or transferring any interest
in the lease to any other party. The City received a request from T-Mobile for
consent to their entering into a Master Prepaid Lease with Crown Castle
International Corporation. The only thing that will change is that the City will still
be receiving the check, but it will be sent by another party. The terms of the lease
with the City could not change without the City’s prior approval. The Master
Prepaid Lease states that if Crown does not meet its obligations, then T-Mobile

Page 6 of 7 - DECEMBER 10, 2012



VIl.

will meet them. There appears to be no negative impact to the City from
approving the requested action item.

Commissioner Pecos asked if there is any money involved as far as the City is
concerned.

Mrs. Alvarez stated no the City will continue to receive funds except it won't be
from T-Mobile it will be coming from Crown Castle International Corporation.

Commissioner Pecos asked if there is any way the City can raise these fees.

Mrs. Alvarez stated probably not since it is a 25 year contract which has the
terms set in already.

Motion made by Commissioner Pena to approve this resolution, second by
Commissioner Pecos. The motion was passed and approved by the
following vote: Pecos, Pena, Garcia, Leubert, Fugate voting “FOR”.

11. Consider waiving interest on weed liens for property owned by Roy Saenz,
Lots 1-8, Block 1, Colonia Mexicana. (Finance Director).

Mr. Rushing stated that this property was purchased by Mr. Roy Saenz on
September 20, 2010. Mr. Saenz has already paid the principal amount of
$1,764.54 and is asking for Commission to consider waiving the interest in the
amount of $879.13.

Commissioner Garcia asked if Mr. Saenz was aware of this lien at the time of
closing.

Mr. Rushing stated that Mr. Saenz was not aware of this due to Mr. Saenz not
purchasing the title insurance.

Commissioner Pecos stated that he has spoken to Mr. Saenz who stated that he
was not aware of the liens.

Motion made by Commissioner Garcia to approve waiving interest on weed
liens for property owned by Roy Saenz, second by Commissioner Pecos.
The motion was passed and approved by the following vote: Pena, Garcia,
Leubert, Pecos Fugate voting “FOR”.

Mayor Fugate read a proclamation that was presented on October 18, 2012 for
Toys for Tots.

Adjournment.

There being no further business to come before the City Commission, the meeting
was adjourned at 7:10 p.m.

Sam R. Fugate, Mayor
ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

Page 7 of 7 - DECEMBER 10, 2012



DECEMBER 19, 2012

A SPECIAL MEETING OF THE CITY OF KINGSVILLE CITY COMMISSION WAS
HELD ON WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 19, 2012 IN THE HONORABLE ROBERT H.
ALCORN COMMISSION CHAMBERS 200 EAST KLEBERG AVENUE AT 12:00 P.M.

CITY COMMISSION PRESENT:
Sam R. Fugate, Mayor

Al Garcia, Commissioner
Dianne Leubert, Commissioner
Noel Pena, Commissioner
Arturo Pecos, Commissioner

CITY STAFF PRESENT:

Vince Capell, City Manager

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney

David Mason, Purchasing Director

Emilio Garcia, Health Director

Willie Vera, Task Force Commander
Jessica Storck, Administrative Assistant 2
Ricardo Torres, Chief of Police

Bill Donnell, Assistant Public Works Director

I. Preliminary Proceedings.

OPEN MEETING
Mayor Fugate called the meeting to order in the City Commission Chamber at 12:02
P.M. and announced quorum as present.

INVOCATION / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - (Mayor Fugate)
Mayor Fugate stated that unless there are any objections, he would like to skip the
invocation and pledge of allegiance. No objections were made.

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING(S) — Required by Law
None

Il. Public Hearing - (Required by Law)."
1. None.
lil. Reports from Commission & Staff.? (City Manager’s Staff Report Attached).

“At this time, the City Commission and Staff will report/update on all committee
assignments which may include, but is not limited to the following: Planning &
Zoning Commission, Zoning Board of Adjustments, Historical Board, Housing
Authority Board, Library Board, Health Board, Tourism, Chamber of Commerce,
Coastal Bend Council of Governments, Conner Museum, Keep Kingsville
Beautiful, and Texas Municipal League. Staff reports include the

following: Building & Development , Code Enforcement, Proposed Development
Page 1 of 3 - DECEMBER 19, 2012



Report; Accounting & Finance ~ Financial & Investment Information, Monthly
Financial Reports;, Police & Fire Department — Grant Update, Police & Fire
Reports;, Street Updates; Public Works- Building Maintenance, Construction
Updates; Park Services - grant(s) update, miscellaneous park projects,
Administration —Workshop Schedule, Interlocal Agreements, Public Information,
Hotel Occupancy Report, Quiet Zone, Proclamations, Health Plan Update, Tax
Increment Zone Presentation, Main Street Downtown, Chapter 59 project,
Financial Advisor. No formal action can be taken on these items at this time.”

Mrs. Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney reminded staff that the next regular
schedule Commission meeting is Monday, January 14, 2013. Deadline for
agenda items is January 4, 2013. City Hall will be closed December 24-25, 2012
and January 1, 2013 for the holidays.

Commissioner Pecos stated that while attending the National League of Cities in
Boston, MA, he was nominated into the Military Installation Counsel and is ready
to work with them.

Mayor Fugate stated that through the Economic Development Council and
funded by AEP, we are members of the Defense Communities which is an
excellent organization.

IV. Public Comment on Agenda Items

V.

1. Comments on all agenda and non-agenda items.
Consent Agenda
Notice to the Public

The following items are of a routine or administrative nature. The Commission
has been furnished with background and support material on each item, and/or it
has been discussed at a previous meeting. All items will be acted upon by one
vote without being discussed separately unless requested by a Commission
Member in which event the item or items will immediately be withdrawn for
individual consideration in its normal sequence after the items not requiring
separate discussion have been acted upon. The remaining items will be adopted
by one vote.

CONSENT MOTIONS, RESOLUTIONS, ORDINANCES AND ORDINANCES
FROM PREVIOUS MEETINGS:

(At this point the Commission will vote on all motions, resolutions and
ordinances not removed for individual consideration)

Mayor Fugate asked for a motion to approve the consent agenda items as
presented. Commissioner Leubert made a motion to approve the consent
agenda as presented, second by Commissioner Pena. The motion was
passed and approved by the following vote: Garcia, Leubert, Pecos, Pena,
Fugate voting “FOR”.

1. Motion to approve resolution authorizing participation in Local Border Security
Program FY2013 with the Texas Department of Public Safety for law

Page 2 of 3 - DECEMBER 19, 2012




VL.

VIl.

enforcement personnel overtime and operational costs, authorizing the Chief of
Police to act on the City’s behalf with such program. (Chief of Police).

2. Motion to approve final passage of an ordinance amending the zoning
ordinance by granting a Special Use Permit for 607 South 13" (Lots 5, Block 30,
Retama Park) for an off-site caterer/bakery.  (Director of Planning &
Development Services).

REGULAR AGENDA
CONSIDERATION OF MOTIONS, RESOLUTIONS, AND ORDINANCES:

Items for consideration by Commissioners.*

3. Executive Session: Pursuant to Section 551.074, Texas Government Code,
Open Meetings Act, Personnel Matters, the City Commission shall convene in
Executive Session to deliberate the evaluation of the City Manager. (Mayor
Fugate).

Mayor Fugate announced the executive session.

Mrs. Alvarez reminded Commission that since this item is an attorney exception,
it is required to be recorded. The recording is kept sealed and can only be
opened under a court order. ‘

The Commission convened into executive session at 12:12 p.m.

The Commission reconvened into regular session at 1:30 p.m.

4. Consider resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a Professional Services
Contract for the position of City Manager with Vincent J. Capell. (Mayor Fugate).

No discussion or action taken on agenda item #4.

Adjournment.

There being no further business to come before the City Commission, the meeting
was adjourned at 1:30 p.m.

Sam R. Fugate, Mayor
ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

Page 3 of 3 - DECEMBER 19, 2012



PUBLIC HEARING(S)



CONSENT AGENDA



AGENDA ITEM #1



NATIONAL
LEAGUE

Congressional

of CITIES City Conference

Frank Luntz
£ Biporisai polifical pollster
;- ond communicafors Bxpert "

Marriott Wardman:Park Hotel | Wgshingtoni DC | March 9-13




NATIONAL |
I_EAGU E 2013 Marriott Wardman Park Hotel

Congressional

Washington, DC
+CITIES City Conference o 613

STAND UP for the issues that matter to cities.

As the 113th Congress gets underway, come to Washingfon, DC and join your fellow city leaders in calling on House and Senate members and the Administrafion o set aside parfisan
differences and break through the gridlock in order to find ways to support economic recovery and job creation efforts in our communities.

Make your voice heard ot NLC's annual legislafive conference, where you con share your hardswon insights with members of Congress, the White House, and federal agency representatives,
as well as with your colleagues from acrass the country.

KEY FEDERAL POLICY ISSUES TO BE ADDRESSED INCLUDE:

« Federal budget deficit reduction plans © Immigration reform

© Federal job creation and economic o Water and transportation infrastructure investment
development strategies * Public safety

o Federal tax code reform and municipal finance o Regulatory reform and streamlining

NLC’s Congressional City Conference offers city leaders from across the country a unique opportunity to gain
valuable insights and influence actions in Washingfon that will impact locol communifies.

o Connect with Congress and the Administration to insure that America’s cties ond towns have a voice in the
federal policy debate;

o Hear the latest news from Washington “in the know" polifical players about the new Congress;

o Access information about how new federal laws and regulations will impact your city; and

 Represent your community at this national forum dedicated to the federal policy priorifies of cifies and towns!

PRELIMINARY SCHEDULE AND TRAVEL PLANNER

The conference provides a wide range of educational, networking and strategy sessions that maximize the value of attending for city officials.
This prefiminary schedule provides o timed outline of major events held during the conference in order to help attendses make travel artangements.

Main Conference Events: Monday, March 11~ Tuesday, March 12
(note fimes ore subject fo change)

Monday, March 11 Wednesday, March 13

7:30 a.m. ~ 9:00 a.m. Celebrate Diversity Breakfost* All-Day-Delegutes’ Pre-scheduled Capitol Hill Visits

9:00 a.m. - 10:30 o.m. Opening General Session

10:45 o.m. — 12:15 p.m. Concurrent Workshops PRE-CONFERENCE ACTIVITIES:

1:45 pm. - 3:15 p.m. Concurrent Workshops

3:30 p.m. — 4:30 p.m, General Session Saturday’ March 9 i . ) 3

5:00 pm. — 6:30 pm. State League Caucuses and Receptions 5:30 p.m. = 7:00 p.m. Constituency and Special Group Meetings/Events
Constituency and Special Group Meetings/Events™ Sunday, March 10

Tuesday, March 12 8:30 a.m. — Noon NLC Boord of Direcors Mesting

g:45am. - 10:15 a.m. Concurrent Warkshops MLC Advisory Councl Meeing

10:30 a.m. ~ Noon Concurrent Workshaps 9:00 p.m, —5:00 p.m. Leadership Training Institute Seminars™

1215 pm. ~ 1:30 pam. Roundiable Nefworking Lunch 1:30 p.m. — 4:00 p.m. Policy.ond Advocacy Ct_)mmiﬁee Meei.ings/Evems*

145 pan, - 3:15 pm. Concurrent Workshops 5:15 pan.—7:00 p.m. Constituency and Special Group Meetings

330 pn. — 4:45 p. Closing General Session 5:30 p.m. — 6:45 p.m. Orientation fo NLC for First Time Attendees

5:15 p.m. — 6:30 p.m. State League Caucuses and Receptions

6:30 p.m. — 7:30 p.m. The -Capitol Steps * Additional fees may apply




Speakers at the 2012 Congressional City Conference included:

Hilda Sofis, Secretary, U.S. Department of Labor; Ray LaHood, Secretary, U.S. Department of Transportation; Tetry Mchuliffe, Former Chalr, Democratic
National Committee; Ed Gillesple, Former Chair, Republican National Committee; ond David Brooks, Op-£d Columnist, The New York Times.

THE ACTION PLAN AND SPECIAL EVENTS
Sunday, March 10

ity officials gather for leadership mestings, policy discussions and legislative briefings on current federal issues and priorifies imporfant fo
America’s cities and towns.

Monday, March 11 and Tuesday, March 12
The President, his Cabinet mermbers and congressional leaders are invited to discuss their priorities and the ways in which they envision
partnering with cities and towns to solve America’s economic and civic challenges.

Monday Morning Special Event: Celebrate Diversity Breakfast
The 26th Annual Celebrate Diversity Breakfost™ will feature o keynote speaker offering a discerning perspective on diversity issues facing
America’s cifies and towns, * Fee: $35

Tuesday Evening Special Event: The Capitol Steps Performance
The Capitol Steps, a Washington, DC, comedy institution, will offer bipartisan fun and satire provided by an entertaining troupe of former
Congressional employees,

Wednesday, March 13: Capitol Hill Visits
ity officiols travel +o Capitol Hill for meetings with their congressional delegotions fo advocate on behalf of NLC's federal action priorities and
to shawcase how cities and towns are partnering with the federal government te help the nation achieve ifs goals,

Registration Deadlines

February 19, 2013 — Deodling for housing requests and to cancel registrations. Make housing requests using the online segistration form by
this date (first come, first served). To cancel registrations, they must be in writing and pastmarked by this date. All concellatians are subject
to a $100 cancellation fee. There are NO refunds for cancellations after February 19, 2013,

March 7, 2013 ~ Register of www.nlc.org by this date fo secure the advance registration rate. Advonce rates are: $495 for NLC and Assaciofe
Members, $620 for State League Members, ond $725 for Non-Members. Firsttime attendees pay just $395. A $100 processing fee is
included in on-site registration.

Registration Information
To ensure your participation in this importont conference, NLC is offering reduced rates.
Delegates who register online at www.nlc.org, by March 7, 2013, will receive $100 off the onssite 2013 Congressional City Conference rate.

Visit www.nlc.org to access the online registration form. Everyone who attends must register including delegates, speakers, guests, youth,
chaperones, and members of the press. There is no charge for press regisiration with proper press credentials.

Pre-conference Leadership Training Institute Seminars — For descriptions of these very popular leadership development seminars, visit the
conference website. An additional fee is required for these full or half-day trainings to be held Sunday, March 10,




AGENDA ITEM #2



KINGSVILLE SPECIALIZED CRIMES
AND NARCOTICS TASK FORCE
P. 0. BOX 213
KINGSVILLE, TEXAS 78364
tfadmin@kingsvilletaskforce.com
(361) 595-5778
Fax (361) 595-5781

To: Vincent J. Capell, City Manager, City of Kingsville
From: Guillermo Vera, Commander, Kingsville Task Force
Date: December 31, 2012

Subject: Out of State Travel Request

An out of state travel request for your consideration is being submitted. The travel request is for
Special Agent Mike Tamez to serve as an Associate Trainer and assist with conducting a 24-hour
Commercial Motor Vehicle Criminal Interdiction course in Glendale, Arizona. The course is
being conducted at the request of the Arizona Department of Public Safety and will be attended
by approximately 100 Federal, State, and Local law enforcement officials.

The training conference is scheduled for Monday January 28" to Wednesday January 30, 2013.
The Drug Interdiction Assistance Program (DIAP) will assume all of Agent Tamez’s authorized
travel expenses and per diems. Agent Tamez will instruct classes to enhance a patrol officer’s
ability to conduct criminal highway interdiction emphasizing on Passenger Vehicle
Concealments and Trafficking.

If this request is approved, can it be placed on the City’s Commissioners Court Agenda for
Monday, January 14, 20137 Your kind consideration to this request is greatly appreciated.

Cc: Ken Starrs, Assistant Commander
Mike Tamez, Special Agent
File

Attachment



f‘ United States Department of Transportation
3 Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration

¥
Trareg of

National Training Center — NTC Curtis Allen, Director

Drug Interdiction Assistance Program ~ DIAP E-Mail diap@dot.gov
1310 North Courthouse, Suite 600
Arlington, Virginia 22201

Re: Training Assistance

Commander Willie Vera
Kingsville Specialized Drug and Narcotics Task Force Special Agent Mike Tamez
Kingsville, TX 78363

January 28-30, 2013

Glendale, Arizona

Dear Commander Vera,

The US Department of Transportation / FMCSA / NTC Drug Interdiction Assistance Program (DIAP) will be
conducting a 24-hour Commercial Motor Vehicle Criminal Interdiction course in Glendale, Arizona January
28-30, 2013. Along with CMVCI Course, | am requesting SA Tamez present his knowledge and expertise
on Passenger Vehicle Concealments and Trafficking. The course is being conducted at the request of
Arizona Dept. of Public Safety and will be attended by approximately 100 Federal, State, and Local law
enforcement officials.

We are writing to request that an Agent of your Command, Mike Tamez, be authorized to travel for this
training to serve as an Associate Trainer. A Certified DIAP/EPIC Instructor, Agent Tamez brings a wealth of
experience and knowledge in our core areas of interest. It is requested that you permit us to draw on the
success of the Kingsville Specialized Drug and Narcotics Task Force by authorizing him to assist us.

At the same time, our hope is that Agent Tamez would resume his duties after the training having himself
benefited from the experience. It is our belief that communicating knowledge across affected agencies in
the United States is essential to building on the strengths of enforcement operations nationwide.

Upon your approval of our request for his assistance, a representative from our DIAP office would contact
Agent Tamez directly to arrange his travel. DIAP would, of course, assume all of his authorized travel
expenses and per diems.

We are truly grateful for your consideration of this request. By partnering with great organizations like the

Kingsville Specialized Drug and Narcotics Task Force, we believe we are that much closer to our goal of
making the Nation’s highways safer.

Yours very respectfully,

James “Cody” Smid Curtis Allen
Training Specialist Director
Drug Interdiction Assistance Program National Training Center



AGENDA ITEM #3



RESOLUTION # 2013-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF KINGSVILLE AUTHORIZING THE RELEASE OF
CHAPTER 59 FUNDS OF THE KINGSVILLE SPECIALIZED CRIMES AND NARCOTICS
TASK FORCE FOR DONATION TO THE DOUGLASS CENTER.

WHEREAS, the Texas Code of Criminal Procedure, Article 59.06(h) allows for the release of
Chapter 59 funds for nonprofit programs for the prevention of drug abuse;

WHEREAS, the Douglass Center is a non-profit organization part of whose mission is to
provide educational assistance to youths and to work to turn the tide against drug and
alcohol abuse in the Kingsville community by making a positive statement to our young
people about living a drug-free and alcohol-free lifestyle; and

WHEREAS, the Douglass Center intends to provide drug abuse/prevention programs at
their facility;

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Commission of the City of Kingsville,
Texas:

THAT the City Commission authorizes the Kingsville Specialized Crimes and Narcotics Task
Force to assist with a $5,000.00 donation to the Douglass Center to help educate young
people about living a drug-free and alcohol-free lifestyle and comply with any reporting
requirement the Task Force may designate.

THAT local elected representatives shall be encouraged to promote, endorse, and support
the Douglass Center for the benefit of the community.

PASSED AND APPROVED by a majority vote of the City Commission on the 14" day of
January, 2013.

Sam R. Fugate, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney

RES- Donation Ch59 for Douglas Center-TF-20133



KINGSVILLE SPECIALIZED CRIMES
AND NARCOTICS TASK FORCE
APPLICATION FOR CHAPTER 59 DONATION

: SZ%}ECANT' S:}/e/m»& o [O\"t‘@&ADDRESSC&""\“\MI\"'{@ﬁE 4J~09'$HONE Zb 8/ ;—Z 2 48:+ 20l

2. ORGANIZATION'S
NAME Douglass Youth Center, Inc. ADDRESS 902 5. 2" Street  PHONE 361-592-3559

3. NARRATIVE: Explain what will be done with the contribution to insure compliance with the
disposition of forfeited property under Chapter 59 of the Texas Code of Criminal Procedure and

thasnumber of citizens it will affect in our community.

Douglass Youth Center will have a four week Drug Free Summer Program. The program will be for
approximately 40-50 youth and young aduits in Kleberg County and the city of Kingsville. The
program will consist of drug prevention and awareness activities. They will include charter building
activities, self-esteem, social and communication skitls, and good decision making skills activities. The
center will also provide educational and enrichment fieldtrips throughout the program. The trips will
be to encourage children to stay focus on positive behavior during the summer. The center would
like to also purchase drug prevention and awareness videos, literature, and equipment. Purchasing
the items stated will . help children to learn the negative effects of drugs and alcohol. The TASK
Eorce will be invited to be a guest speaker to do a presentation on drug prevention and awareness, as
well as other Law Enforcement agencies. The program will end with a drug free skit and dance to be

held at the center, which will be open to the entire community.

O
—

APPROVED: /@\MWU o C‘MGQ(&

K’r/-_:Comménder
DATE: (]} /0 3/ 13 e 30 m

Py

NETEr £5000.9% Denchon agproveds in KTF
B B () | / \kCQ [ €1
‘[ZO iZ/ZO iz B jc e“t/)% VJ@&/




Page 1 of 1

Good Morning Commander,

Would please e-mail me a copy of the application to apply your ter59Funds=Fwould like
to complete an application for when funds become availablefort Q@w?an
have an application on file with the TASKforce.

Thank you in advance for your support! Have an awesome day!
/ Jeannette Price

Communities In Schools
361-595-8200 ext. 2016

R

Clac 11T Taaraltfantrrmandar/A ninData /T acal /INM/R1imtime/ Meceaoe/VATRIAAVDGC [ - PQ’)O 10/7\0/7017



KINGSVILLE SPECIALIZED CRIMES
AND NARCOTICS TASK FORCE
Chapter 59 Donation Policy

1. A person/entity seeking a donation (financial assistance) through the Kingsville

Specialized Crimes and Narcotics Task Force and with particularity Chapter 59 Forfeiture

" Funds shall file an application with the Commander on forms provided through his
office.

2. Thefiling procedures shall be as follows:

a. Filing period. An application for financial assistance shall be filed with the
Commander not less than 30 days or more than 60 days prior to the proposed
donation.

b. The name, address and telephone number orf the entity seeking a donation.

c. No more than one donation will be made per calendar year.

d. Applicant shall provide documentation relating to any other financial assistance
that they receive for review by the Commander.

3. Applicant must meet one of the following criteria:

a. Nonprofit program for the prevention of drug abuse, applicant must provide a
copy of the organization’s charter.

b. Nohprofit chemical dependency treatment facilities licensed under Chapter 464,
Health and Safety Code;

c. Nonprofit drug and alcohol rehabilitation or prevention programs administered
or staffed by professionals designated as qualified and credentialed by the Texas
Commission on Alcohol and Drug Abuse; or

d. Must be an organization that has the same beliefs and valuée system as the
Kingsville Specialized Crimes and Narcotics Task Force and the law enforcement
code of ethics.

e. Short written statement explaining what will be done with the contribution to
insure compliance with the disposition of forfeited property under Chapter 59 of



the Texas Code of Criminal Procedure and the number of citizens it will affect in
our community.

4. The Commander shall grant or deny a permit solely on the basis of the requirements
stated in the aforementioned sections above. The Commander shall advise the
organization's point of contact of the decision to grant or deny the request for
contribution no later than the sixtieth day after date of receiving the completed
application and all required attachments.



AGENDA ITEM #4



Kingsville, TX 78363

Candace Jefferson

Ob jective

Experience

Human Resources Generalist

Dec 2004-Present Christus Spohn Memorial Hosp. Corpus Christi, TX
Human Resources Coordinator
e Responsible for employee relations
o Participates in Associate Problem Solving
e Assists in providing support to managers regarding Associate
discipline/counseling issues, terminations, and general issues
o Maintains monthly expired licensures/certifications
e Process associate evaluations and assume additional
responsibilities as assigned

‘ Aug 2003-Nov 2004 White House-NSC  Washington, DC
‘Administrative Support Assistant (Rover)

e Assigned to cover office responsibilities throughout the National
Security Council including National Security Advisor’s office in
West Wing.

Sept 2000-July 2003  Dept. of State  U.S. Embassy Tel Aviv
Office Management Specialist
e Office Manager in the Regional Security Office
e American office staff of 21, 160 Local Guards, 8 Amb’s Protective
Detail agents, and 8 Surveillance Detail Unit employees
¢ Responsible for Embassy Access; assigned to support Secy of
State visits and Secret Service details; responsible for notification
of ICE Deportations to Israel; maintaining correspondence files;
Time & Attendance

April 1994-Sept 2000 Christus Spohn Hospital Kleberg & Shoreline,
Kingsville and Corpus Christi, TX
Human Resources Coordinator
s Assisted in managing daily operations in HR Office at Christus
Spohn Hospital Kleberg, Kingsville, TX
e Responsible for employee relations issues; employee benefits;
mediating grievances; recruitment, Workers’ Comp, LOA,
processing employee evaluations, supervised HR Asst.
o 1997 Employee of the Year
o 1999-Transferred to Christus Spohn Hospﬂal Shoreline, Corpus
Christi, TX



Education

Interests

April 1987-March 1994 King Faisal Specialist Hosp. Riyadh, S.A.
Hospital Assistant
o Secretary in Office Services Dept (Rover); assigned to cover office
responsibilities throughout the hospital and Research Centre

Sept 1983-April 1987 Baylor College of Medicine Houston, TX
Medical Secretary
o Dept of Surgery at Ben Taub General Hospital
e Managed the office of a Cardiovascular Surgeon; scheduled
meetings and made travel arrangements
o Assisted in research and preparing papers for conference
presentations and publication

1980-Sept 1983 City of Kingsville, TX
e Administrative Secretary to the Mayor and City Manager
o Assisted in developing a Tourism/Visitor Center, arranged fund

raisers; arranged tours and social events for travel writers visiting
the King Ranch

1994-2000  Texas A&M University at Kingsville, TX
o Part-time student
o Incomplete B.A. Anthropology

Reading, Archeological excavations, traveling, handicrafts




'AGENDA ITEM #5



FLOYD W. HOLDER, IV

Professional Contact Information
Texas A&M University ~ Kingsville
Poht1cal Science Department, Rhode Hall 255,
361-593-3608
Floyd.holder@tamuk.edu

Personal Contact Information

Kingsville, TX 78363

Objective: Too successfully educate students in the politics behind and of Texas Government.

E ducation:
Master of Arts in Political Science, Summer 2012, Texas Tech Umvermty, Lubbock, TX,
Minor of Degree: Quantitative Methods
Thesis: States Safety Culture: A Predictor of Restrictive Policy Diffusion

Master of Public Administration, Fall 2009, Texas State University, San Marcos, TX.
Minor of Degree: Urban and Environmental Planning
Thesis: An Empirical Analysis of the State’s Monopolization of the Legitimate Means of
Movement: Evaluating the Effects of Required Passport use on International Travel

Bachelor of Science in Geography, Summer 2007, Texas State University, San Marcos, TX.
Minor of Degree: Business Administration

Level 1 Certified Tutor, Fall 2011, College Reading and Learning Association.

Research Materials:

1) Working Papers
Holder IV, Floyd. The Determinants of Changes in Supreme Court Output: The Rise of
Dissenting Opinions. Manuscript in Preparation. Copies Available Upon Request.

Work Experience:
1) Texas A&M University- Kingsville
Kingsville, TX
e Position: Lecturer for the Political Science Department, August 201 2 to Present
My duties revolved around helping students learn about political science and how major events in
government affected them. I designed tests, assignments, and lecture materials. Specifically, I taught what
Texas Government consists of and how it became that way over time.
Supervisor: Dr. Shannon Baker,—ar shannon.baker@tamuk.edu




2) Texas Tech University

Lubbock, TX ‘ :

e Position #1: Teacher's Assistant for the Political Science Department, August 2010 to May 2012

My duties revolved around helping the professor of record administer the class. Specifically, I graded
excams and extra credit, took attendance, lectured on occasion, and provided additional instruction outside class
during my office hours to students. In addition, I provided weekly updates on various items to the professor.
The subjects I proctored for weré on the fundamentals of American Government, Public Policy, and Public
A dministration.

Professors: Dr. Barkdull, Dr. Dometrius, and Dr. Mayer.

Supervisor: Dr. Frank Thames~ or frank.thames@ttu.edu

e Position #2: Tutor for the Athletic Department, August 2011 to December 2011
My duties revolved around helping student athletes learn course material. Specifically, I reviewed
lecture notes given to students and additional lecture material at my disposal. In addition, I provided weekly
updates on various items to the students professor if requested. The subjects 1 proctored for were on the
fundamentals of American Government, College Algebra, Geography, Public Policy, and Public
A dministration.
Supervisor: Kristin Price,— or kristin.price@ttu.edu.
e Position #3: Interviewer with the Earl Survey Research Lab. May 2012 to August 2012
My duties revolved around collect answers to surveys that outside groups had hired the lab to perform.
Specifically, I cold-called citizens based upon the phone numbers provided by the lab. Tused a computer
program called Interviewer to catalog the data gathered. ‘
Supervisor: Sarah Tomanak-Norman,

or sarah.t.norman@ttu.edu.

3) McAllen-Miller International Airport
McAllen, TX from September 2009-March 2010
e Position: Airport Operations Specialist.

My duties revolved around helping the airport administrators comply with part 121 of the 14 Code of
Federal Regulations. Specifically, I inspected airport property which included cargo buildings, terminals, and
the aircraft operating areas. When not inspecting, I manned a communications desk the monitored the FIDS,
fence-line monitoring system, cameras, and airport ID system. Also, I answered the phone and dispatched
maintenance staff to go clean up spills. Finally, I took fingerprints to process ID badge applications. My area of

specialty was the proper fueling procedures of the 121 certification.
Supervisor: Donald "Buck" Taft, .

4) Houston Airport System
McAllen, TX from September 2009-March 2010
e Position: KIAH Airport Operations Intern. :

My duties revolved around helping the airport operations specialists and coordinators ensure the airport
was in compliance part 121 of the 14 Code of Federal Regulations. Specifically, I helped inspected airport
property. When not with operations, I went to different divisions of the Houston Airport System to learn about
how the airport worked. The different airport departments included the paint shop, building cleaning, air traffic
control, and land maintenance.

Supervisor: Please contact the IAH Airport Operations Trainer,_



5) Texas State University
San Mareos, TX
® Position #1: Teachers Assistant for the Political Science Department, January 2009 fo August 2009.

My duties revolved around helping the professor of record administer the class. Specifically, I graded
excams and extra credit, took attendance, lectured on occasion, and provided additional instruction outside class
during my office hours to students. In addition, I provided weekly updates on various items to the professor.
The subjects I proctored for was on quantitative methods.

Professors: Dr, Tajalli and Dr Yun.

Supervisor: Dr. Vicki Brittain;\ I o: vb01@txstate.edu.

e Position #2: Shift Operations Leader for Aquarena Center; January 2008 to January 2009.

My duties revolved around helping the park directors ensure that visitors had an enj joyable experience at
the park. Specifically, I ensured that park attractions left on-time, inspected facilities, giving tours, designing
new exhibits, driving glass-bottom boats, cleaning up after spills, and finally, responding to boats that became
disabled.

Supervisor: Deborah Lanc SN o 116@txstate.edu.

© Position #3: Treasurer and Shift Leader for 805-SWAT, October 2007 to May 2009.
My duties revolved around helping the Alcohol and Drug Resource Center directors ensure that students
“and locals had a free, safe-ride home option available at night from off-campus. Specifically, I ensured that cars
donated by Enterprise Rent-A-Car were received, purchaséd food for volunteers, dispatched cars, took phone
requests for rides, and finally, cleaned the office. These events occurred every Thursday, Friday, and Saturday
nights.

Supervisor: Cheryl Harper, NN or cheryl@txstate.edu.

6) Zoning Board of Adjustments and Appeals for the City of San Marcos, TX

San Marcos, TX from June 2008-June 2009

e Position: Board Member. ‘

I was a board member on a panel that heard appeals for deviations from the city zoning
ordinances. As part of this board, I first had to go inspect the properties under question, then listen to
appeals, and finally, vote on whether or not to allow for the amendment.

Supervisor: Please contact the current Planning Dept. Director, 512-393-8230.

7) Washington Mutnal Bank F.A.
Houston, TX from October 2002-June 2004
e Position: High School Internship Program as a Full-Time Teller.
My duties revolved around processing customer bank transactions and selling company products and
services.
Supervisor: Please contact the current Branch Manager, 832-237-7027.



International/Other Experience:

1) People to People Student Ambassador's - Spokane, WA

0O 00000 0O

During these summers, I traveled with fellow student ambassadors to learn about different
cultures, visit with foreign officials, and build diplomatic relations with foreign citizens.
Summer 2000 — England, Ireland, Wales

Summer 2001 — Switzerland, France, Germany, Austria, Italy, Vatican City

Summer 2002 — Australia, New Zealand

Summer 2003 — Brazil

Summer 2004 — Japan ' i

Summer 2005 — Thailand, Cambodia

Several trips throughout to Mexico.

Other personal travels have been to Canada and Spain.

2) Interuniversity Consortium: Political and Social Research (ICPSR) - Ann Arbor, MI

During the summer of 2011, I took advanced courses in Maximum Likelihood Estimation and
Time-Series Analysis that used STATA and SPSS software programs to perform the regressions,
figures, and estimations required for projects.

Expertise/Strengths:

v
v
v

v

Excellent skills in research, quantitative, data, operations, and cost/benefit analysis.

Exceptional proficiency in Interviewer, Microsoft Office, SQL, STATA, SPSS, and Quicken.
Ability to analyze, identifying problems, and implement effective solutions within a business or -
educational environment.

Disciplined, well organized, strong work habits, early riser, meets deadlines.

%



AGENDA ITEM #6



Erinn Catherine McComb
Department of History, Political Science, and Philosophy
304 Rhode Hall
Texas A&M University Kingsville
700 University Blvd
Kingsville, TX 78363

Education

Ph.D., Mississippi State University 2012

Fields: |

Modern American History

Early American History

International Security/Internal Safety (ISIS)

American Gender History »
Dissertation Title: “Why Can’t a Woman Fly?: NASA and the Cult of Masculinity, 1958-
1972” :

Advisor: Dr. Alan I Marcus

M.S., Troy University-Dothan 2007

B.A., University of South Florida 2003

Employment -

Lecturer, Texas A&M University Kingsville (Fall 2012-Spring 2013)
Teaching Assistant, Mississippi State University (Fall 2007-Spring 2012)

Teaching Experience

Lecturer at Texas A&M University Kingsville

Barly American History (Fall 2012)
Modern American History (Fall 2012)

Lecturer at Mississippi State University:

U.S. History, 1917-1945 (Fall 2011)

~America’s Viet Nam War (Fall 2009, Summer 2010, Summer 2011)
Afro-American History and Culture (Fall 2010)
Modern American History (Summer 2009, Fall 2009, Spring 2011)
Early American History (Summer 2008)

Teaching Assistant at Mississippi State University:



Early American History (Fall 2007, Spring 2009, Spring 2012)
Modern American History (Spring 2008 and Fall 2008) '

Conferences

“Taking Off: Aerospace Engmeermg at America’s Land- Grant Colleges,” Thinking Land Grants:
. A ‘Cerebration’ of the 150™ Anniversary of the Morrill Land-Grant Act, October 3-6 2012,
Mississippi State University. http://www.history.msstate.eduw/MorrillActWebSite/sessions.html

“It's Hip to Be Square’: Individual Control, Masculinity, and Engineers within NASA, 1958-
1972,” Society for the History of Technology (SHOT), November 2011, Cleveland, Ohio.

“NASA As a Diplomatic Tool.for Gender Consumption: Mercury through Gemini,” Society for
Historians of American Foreign Relations (SHAFR), June 2011, Alexandria, V.A.

Roundtable, “New Directions in NASA History” Chaired by Roger Launius, NASA History
Symposium, “Key Moments in Human Spaceflight,” April 26-27, 2011, Washington, D.C.
http:/history.nasa.gov/1961-1981conf/index.html.

“The Masculine Identity of the Astronaut from Mercury through Gemini,” 5™ Annual Southern
Regional Conference for the History of Science, Technology, and Medicine (Southern HoST),
April 2011, Auburn University.

“Consuming Gender in NASA: The Paradox of the Astronaut Image, 1958-1966,” Society for
the History of Technology (SHOT), September 2010, Tacoma, Washington.

“Lady Astronauts and the Cosmonaut Queen: Culture and NASA, 1958-1964,” 4™ Annual
Southern Regional Conference for the History of Science, Technology, and Medicine (Southern
HoST), Spring 2010, Mississippi State University.

“Feminauts and the Night Witch: Women in the Space Race, 1958-1964,” 2010 Sarah Isom
Gender Conference, Spring 2010, University of Mississippi.

“Behind Gendered Lines: The WACS in World War II,” 2009 Mississippi Regional Phi Alpha
Theta Conference, Mississippi State University.

“The Wounded Don’t Cry: WACs in Combat during World War Two,” 2009 International
Security/Internal Safety Conference, University of Southern Mississippi.

“Bismarckian Realpolitik and the Nazi-Soviet Non-Aggression Pact,” 2008 International
Security/Internal Safety Conference, Northwestern State University of Louisiana.

Publications

“Taking Off: National Security, Identity, and Aerospace Engineering at Land-Grant Universities,
1957-1970,” chapter submitted for a multivolume work on the history of Land-Grant
Universities.



Service and Professional Membership

MSU Preparing Future Faculty (Fall 2010-Summer 2011)

American Historical Association (AHA) (Fall 2009-Current)

Society for the History of Technology (SHOT) (February 2010-Current)
Phi Alpha Theta—Mississippi State University (Fall 2008-Current)
*President (Fall 2008-Spring 2009)

Awards and Fellowships

2012 Society for the History of Technology (SHOT)-NASA Fellowship (declined due to prior
contract)

2011 Travel Grant, Women in Technological History (WITH)

2011 Travel Grant, SHAFR Conference

2011 Travel Grant, NSF/SHOT Conference

2010 Travel Grant, SHOT Conference

2009 Graduate Student Outstanding Paper Competition Winner for the Gender Studies Program
at Mississippi State University for “Lady Astronauts and the Cosmonaut Queen: Culture and
NASA, 1958-1964.”

William Parrish Teaching Assistant of the Year, Mississippi State University (Fall 2007-Spring
2008)

Teaching Assistantship, Mississippi State University (Fall 2008-Spring 2012)
James W. Gamner Scholarship (Fall 2007-Spring 2012)

References
Dr. Alan I Marcus

242 Allen Hall, Department of History
Mississippi State University

Mississippi State, MS 39762

Phone:

E-mail: aimarcus@history.msstate.edu

Dr. Jessica Martucci

214 Allen Hall, Department of History
Mississippi State University
Mississippi State, MS 39762
Phone!
E-mail: jmartucci@history.msstate.edu

Dr. Shannon Baker
Associate Professor, History
Rhode Hall 330



Texas A&M Kingsville

Kingsville, TX 78363

Phone?

E-mail: Shannon.baker@tamuk.edu

Dr. Alan Meyer

310 Thach Hall

Department of History
Auburn, Al 36849

Email: adm0028@auburn.edu




AGENDA ITEM #7



RESOLUTION NO. 2013-

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF KINGSVILLE TO CONTINUE
PARTICIPATION IN THE TEXAS MAIN STREET PROGRAM, AUTHORIZING
THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE THE TEXAS MAIN STREET LETTER
AGREEMENT, AND DESIGNATING DOWNTOWN MANAGER CYNTHIA
"MARTIN AS THE MAIN STREET PROGRAM MANAGER FOR THE CITY OF
KINGSVILLE TO COORDINATE PROGRAM ACTIVITIES.

WHEREAS: The Texas Main Street Program of the Texas Historical Commission
has been created to assist small cities to develop a public/private effort to
revitalize their “Main Street” area, and Kingsville was recently selected in 2011 to
participate in the Texas Main Street Program and would like to continue to
participate in 2013,

WHEREAS: The City of Kingsville desires to maintain its designation as a Texas
Main Street to assist with the improvement and revitalization of our downtown
area,

WHEREAS: The Mayor needs to execute the Texas Main Street Program Letter
Agreement on behalf of the City to continue participation in this program,

WHEREAS: The City of Kingsville has hired Cynthia Martin as the Downtown
Manager to assist the City with overseeing the “Main Street” area and the Texas
Main Street Program.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE
CITY OF KINGSVILLE, TEXAS:

SECTION 1. That the City of Kingsville will continue participation in the 2013
Main Street Program with the specific goal of revitalizing the central business
district within the context of the preservation and rehabilitation of its historic
buildings.

SECTION 2. That the City of Kingsville will provide an adequate budget to
employ a full-time Main Street Program Manager for a minimum of three years
from its original designation date in 2011, and provide funds for the training of the
.Main Street Program Manager and the operating expenses of the program.

SECTION 3. That the Mayor be authorized to execute the Texas Main Street
Program Letter Agreement on behalf of the City of Kingsville.

SECTION 4. That Cynthia Martin, the City’'s Downtown Manager, be designated
to supervise the Main Street Manager activities.



SECTION 5. That this Resolution shall be and become effective on or after
adoption.

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED by a majority vote of the City
Commission this __ 14" day of January , 2013.

Sam R. Fugate, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney



Date: December 27, 2012
To: Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney and Vince Capell, City Manager
From: Robert R. Trescott, Director of Tourism

Re: Appointment of Cynthia Martin as Kingsville Certified Local Government (CLG)
Representative, the Kingsville Main Street Manager and the City of Kingsville Historic
Preservation Officer

The City of Kingsville is currently participating in the Certified Local Government
(CLG) Program, the Texas Main Street Program and has a Historic Preservation
Commission. The CLG program asks the City to appoint a CLG representative for
Kingsville and to appoint a Historic Preservation Officer to oversee the Historic
Development Board. Participation in the Texas Main Street Program requires the City to
have a Main Street Manager. In the past, these positions have been held by myself as
former Downtown Manager. Now that Cynthia Martin is the Downtown Manager, it is
requested that Cynthia Martin be appointed to these positions.



TEXAS HISTORICAL COMMISSION

Texas Main Street
Letter of Agreement

This 2013 Letter of Agteement outlines patticipation as an official Texas Main Street program for
the city of Kingsville.

I. The Texas Main Street Progtam (TMSP) will provide the following:

A. Training. The Main Street manager will attend two Main Street/preservation-specific
trainings in their entirety per year from the list below. Training is a scored category in the
annual repott (see related section ILH, L).

TMSP Basic Training (Jan. 19-30, 2013, Llano). New managers only.

TMSP Annual Meeting/Wintet ttaining (Jan. 30—Feb. 1, 2013, Llano).

TMSP Summer Workshop (June 5-7, 2013, La Grange).

Texas Downtown Development and Revitalization Conference, Texas Downtown
Association/Texas Main Street Annual Confetence (Nov. 5-8, 2013, Bastrop).
National Main Street Conference (Apr. 14-17, 2013, New Otleans, LA).

6. National Presetvation Conference of the National Trust for Historic Preservation
(Oct. 29—Nov. 2, 2013, Indianapolis, IN)

Eal e

o

Relevant professional development that is not Main Street specific can be substituted for one
of the above trainings with priotr approval of the TMSP office. Approval can be based upon
manager expetience, program stability under the Main Street model and past attendance at
Main Street trainings.

If a replacement manager is hired who has not previously attended Main Street training, the
manager will be requited to attend Basic Training and the Annual Meeting (1. and 2.). A
stipend of $500 will be charged to the sustaining city for this training,

To help ensure an effectively-functioning local program, board and committee members are
also encouraged to attend training. No stipend is charged for their participation.

B. Brand and Network. This Letter of Agreement (LOA) constitutes recognition of your city
as an official Texas Main Street program and allows use of the National Main Street Center
brand (see “Name Use Policy” at www.mainstreet.org). If participation ceases, the local
program may no longer use the term ‘Main Street’ to describe the program. The TMSP
provides access to the Texas Main Street manager electronic listserv and the monthly Mazn
Street Matters publication.

C. On-site visits/technical expertise. By request, TMSP site visits addtess design, economic
development and organizational issues. Services may include, but are not limited to: fagade
renderings, preservation and historic building expertise by licensed architects; business
development and funding advice, board training and strategic planning.

D. Secuting a Main Street Manager. Should a replacement manager be needed, the TMSP
should be contacted to advise on the job description, assist with the job posting, provide
resumes when available and participate in the interview process.



II. The city of Kingsville agrees to adopt and commit to the national Main Street strategy
consisting of the following ten criteria:

1. Broad-based support for the downtown revitalization process. The goal is for public
and ptivate sectots to undesstand, be philosophically committed to and commit the
maximum resoutces possible to achieve commercial district revitalization.

2. Be vision and mission driven. The vision crystallizes the organization’s long-term hopes
and the mission provides purpose and direction.

3. Wotk Plan. The program shall operate under a comprehensive work plan that provides a
blueprint for activities, reinforces accountability and measures success.

4. Historic presetvation ethic. Historic preservation includes processes for rehabilitating,
trenovating and trestoting older comimercial buildings in addition to land use and planning
policies that encourage full use of the existing commercial centers and which removes
bartiets to revitalizing the historic Main Street district. Effective local programs keep abreast
of potential and existing activity impacting the physical character of the district involving
histotic buildings, new construction, public spaces and infrastructure. Local programs should
seek the advice of the TMSP design staff for projects in the Main Street district.

5. Active board of directors and committees. Ditrect involvement of an active board and
volunteers is ctitical to a successful revitalization program. Board and volunteers should also
undetstand and abide by the Main Street organizational model that differentiates between
the roles of volunteers and the program manager.

6. Adequate operating budget. To be successful and achieve sustainability, a Main Street
Program must have the financial resources necessary to catry out its work plan. The size of a
progtam’s budget will change as the program matures, and is likely to vary according to
regional economic differences and community size.

7. Paid, professional program manager. Coordinating a successful program requires a
trained, professional, full-time staff member. A full-time Main Street position is required for
the first three years in the program. If necessary, a small-city program may split the position
after the first three yeats so that the manager may also have specific economic development,
tourism ot other relevant duties. The position must still temain full time. The local program
should move forward in an efficient manner to fill a manager vacancy and the state
coordinator should be kept apptised of progtess in filling vacancies.

8. Omngoing training for staff and volunteers. Outlined in section LA.

9. Reporting. Tracking statistics such as reinvestment, job/business cteation provides a
tangible measurement of program progress. Monthly reports, which track specific goal-based
activities, are to be submitted to the TMSP office by the 10th of the following month, and
quattetly reinvestment repotts ate to be submitted the 10th of the month following the end
of each calendar quarter. Even if there has not been activity in 2 month or quarter, the local
program must still submit a report noting such. Submission of a Ten Criteria annual report is
also required.

A local program can be placed on probation, which can result in the suspension of TMSP
setvices, for any of the following reasons:



Failure to submit an annual Ten Critetia report;

Failure to achieve Ten Criteria objectives more than two years in a row;

Failure to submit monthly reports for mote than four consecutive months;
Failute to submit reinvestment reports for more than two consecutive quarters;
Failute to abide by this Letter of Agreement.

SRRl S

The local progtam must work with the state coordinator or delegate to overcome these
deficiencies. Progtam tetmination via decision of a committee comprised of at least two
TMSP staff and the division ditector of the Teexas Histotical Commission’s Community
Hetitage Development Division is possible if a local program does not exhibit a reasonable
attempt toward overcoming deficiencies.

10. National Main Street membership. To achieve National Recognition status as attained
through a successful Ten Criteria report, a local program must budget for and maintain an
active membership in the National Main Street Center.

The term for this Tetter of Agteement for the Kingsville Main Street Program is Jan. 1, 2013 to
Dec. 31, 2013. The appropriate stipend (attached invoice) 1s due Jan. 31, 2013.

Date:
Authorized Signature
(City Manager, Mayor, or Boatd Chair)
Signer title:
Signer printed name:

Date:
Debra Farst, State Coordinator
Texas Main Street Program

Date:

Mark Wolfe, Executive Ditector
Texas Historical Commission



TEXAS HISTORICAL COMMISSION

real places telling real stories

December 14, 2012

Mt. Cynthia Martin

Main Street Manager

Kingsville Main Street Program
P.O. Box 1458

Kingsville, TX 78364-1458

Re: Increase in Main Street participation fees as previously announced
Dear Cynthia,

The Texas Main Street Program is one of the oldest, largest and most respected Main Street
progtams in the nation, having been one of the first state coordinating programs created in 1981
following the nationwide introduction of the then-new Main Street Four Point Approach ™. As a
ptoven model fot economic development, participating Texas Main Street programs have reported
morte than $2.6 billion of reinvestment into theit historic downtowns.

On Aptil 25, you teceived a notice via the Main Street listserv that the governing board of the Texas
Historical Commission would be consideting a fee increase at their quattetly meeting later that week.
That email contained the rationale for doing so and as expected, the Commission approved a new
fee schedule teflecting increases, which wetre not mandated by the legislature. A condensed version
of that communication is outlined again in this letter.

Ovet the yeats, setvices from out office have increased dramatically, as has the size of the network
to which we provide setvices. (Many of you recall that until 2003, design services were not provided
to any cities after their first three yeats of participation. Now, we complete hundreds of renderings
and design repotts for individual properties.) We believe the new schedule represents the first fee
increase in the 30+ year history of the program.

Implementation of the new fee structure will begin in January 2013. To ease the burden, fee
increases will be phased through 2015. Fees continue to be based upon population, with the 2010
U.S. Census used for this new fee schedule.

These fees do not include your annual membership in the National Trust Main Street Center.
Texas Main Street Program Annual Fees for 2013-2015:

Small City, population 50,000 and fewer
Existing fee: $300
2013: $400
2014: $535
2015: $535



Page 2

Utban City, population 50,001 and greater
Existing fee: $1500
2013: $2000
2014: $2600
2015: $2600

Supplemental Training Fee (no change from existing policy)
1. Any new Texas Main Street small or urban city receives complementary new manager
basic training upon initial entry into the program.
2. A participating city, including provisional, that hires a new manager without significant
Main Street knowledge and expetience will be assessed a $500 training fee to offset the
resources necessaty for additional training.

Attached are your annual Letter of Agreement and 2013 invoice reflecting these new fees. If you
have questions, please contact Debra Farst, Texas Main Street State Coordinator.

Sincerely,

Debra Farst Brad Patterson
State Coordinator Director
Texas Main Street Program Community Heritage Development Division

cc: M. Vincent Capell, Kingsville City Manager

enclosures: Letter of Agreement
Invoice

RICK PERRY, GOVERNOR e MATTHEW F. KREISLE, 1}, CHAIRMAN » MARK WOLFE, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
P.0. BOX 12276 » AUSTIN, TEXAS ® 78711-2276 P 512.463.6100 ® F 512.475.4872 » TDD 1.800.735.2089 » www.thc.state.tx.us



TEXAS HISTORICAL COMMISSION
real places telling real stories

INVOICE

December 14, 2012

Mz. Cynthia Martin

Kingsville Main Street Program
P.O. Box 1458

Kingsville, TX 78364-1458

Texas Main Street City participation for 2013
2013 Contract for Services $ 400
New manager training fee

(Jan. 2013 in Llano) $ 500*

Total due by 1/31/2013: $ 900

Please make check payable to: Texas Historical Commission

Remit to: Texas Main Street Program
P. O. Box 12276
Austin, TX 78711-2276

Please call Jill Robinson at 512.463.5757 with any questions.
* The Letter of Agreement requires training for new managers and payment of this

administrative/ training/ replacement fee. The training takes place in Llano, Texas from Jan. 29-Feb. 1, 207 3.
Please contact the state office for details.

RICK PERRY, GOVERNOR » MATTHEW F. KREISLE, {1, CHAIRMAN « MARK WOLFE, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
P.0. BOX 12276 ® AUSTIN, TEXAS ® 78711-2276 * P 512.463.6100 ® F 512.475.4872 » TDD 1.800.735.2989 » www.thc.state.tx.us



AGENDA ITEM #8



RESOLUTION # 2013-

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A
CERTIFICATION AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE TEXAS HISTORICAL
COMMISSION AND THE CITY OF KINGSVILLE, TEXAS FOR
PARTICIPATION IN THE CERTIFIED LOCAL GOVERNMENT (CLG)
PROGRAM AND DESIGNATING DOWNTOWN MANAGER CYNTHIA MARTIN
AS THE CLG REPRESENTATIVE FOR THE CITY OF KINGSVILLE TO
COORDINATE PROGRAM ACTIVITIES; REPEALING ALL CONFLICTING
'RESOLUTIONS AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the Texas Certified Local Government Program (CLG) is a
partnership between local governments, the Texas Historical Commission and
the National Park Service designated to foster historic preservation in our
communities and CLGs have access to dedicated grant funds for historic
preservation projects in communities.

WHEREAS, the Texas CLG Program adopted revised state rules in 2011 and the
National Park Service requires new Certification Agreements for all CLGs upon
adoption of new rules.

WHEREAS, the City needs to appoint/designate a CLG representative.
BE IT RESOLVED by the City Commission of the City of Kingsville, Texas:

l.
THAT the Mayor is authorized and directed as an act of the City of Kingsville,
Texas to execute a Certification Agreement between the Texas Historical
Commission and the City of Kingsville, Texas for Participation in the Certificed
Local Government Program and in accordance with Exhibit A hereto attached
and made a part hereof.

I
THAT the City’s Downtown Manager, Cynthia Martin, is designated as the CLG
representative for the City of Kingsville.

.

THAT all resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict with this resolution are
repealed to the extent of such conflict only.

V.

THAT this Resolution shall be and become effective on and after adoption.



PASSED AND APPROVED by a majority vote of the City Commission on the
14th day of _January ., 2013.

Sam R. Fugate, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney



Date: December 27, 2012
To: Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney and Vince Capell, City Manager
From: Robert R. Trescott, Director of Tourism

Re: Appointment of Cynthia Martin as Kingsville Certified Local Government (CLG)
Representative, the Kingsville Main Street Manager and the City of Kingsville Historic
Preservation Officer

The City of Kingsville is currently participating in the Certified Local Government
(CLG) Program, the Texas Main Street Program and has a Historic Preservation
Commission. The CLG program asks the City to appoint a CLG representative for
Kingsville and to appoint a Historic Preservation Officer to oversee the Historic
Development Board. Participation in the Texas Main Street Program requires the City to
have a Main Street Manager. In the past, these positions have been held by myself as
former Downtown Manager. Now that Cynthia Martin is the Downtown Manager, it is
requested that Cynthia Martin be appointed to these positions.



TEXAS HISTORICAL COMMISSION

real places telling real stories

October 10, 2012

The Honorable Sam Fugate
City of Kingsville

PO Box 1458

Kingsville, TX 78364

Dear Mayor Fugate,

Thank you for your continued participation the Texas Certified Local Government Program. The CLG Program is a
partnership between your local government, the Texas Historical Commission and the National Park Service designed to
foster historic preservation in your community. Your participation helps ensure the success of historic preservation
effortsin communities across Texas. In addition, CLGs have access to dedicated grant funds for historic preservation
projects in the community.

In 2011, the Texas CLG Program adopted revised state rules for the program. The new rules eliminated redundant
language and incorporated recent changes instituted by the National Park Service. The National Park Service requires ~
new Certification Agreements for all CLGs upon adoption of new rules. To satisfy this requirement, two copies of the
new Certification Agreement, along with a copy of the revised state rules, are included for your signature. Please sign
both copies and return them to our office no later than 45 days from the date of this letter. Following receipt of the
signed copies, an original copy signed by THC Executive Director Mark Wolfe will be returned to you, along with a copy
of the newly revised Texas Handbook for Certified Local Governments.

Please feel free to contact me with any questions, Thank you for all of your efforts to support historic preservation in
Texas.

Sincerely,

att Synatschk
State Coordinator
Texas Certified Local Government Program

RICK PERRY, GOVERNOR s MATTHEW F, KREISLE, Ill, CHAIRMAN « MARK WOLFE, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
P.0. BOX 12276 e AUSTIN, TEXAS ¢ 78711-2276 ¢ P 512.463,6100 ¢ F 512.475.4872 e TDD 1.800.735.298% = www.thc.state.tx.us



CERTIFICATION AGREEMENT
BETWEEN THE TEXAS HISTORICAL COMMISSION
AND THE CITY OF KINGSVILLE FOR PARTICIPATION IN THE
CERTIFIED LOCAL GOVERNMENT PROGRAM

The City of Kingsville, in consideration of hAaving been granted Certified Local Government status, agrees to
carry out the following responsibilities as a Certified Local Government, in cooperation with the National Park
Service and the Texas Historical Commission.

It will:

. enforce the local historic preservation ordinance for the designation and protection of local historic

properties;

. establish and maintain by the local preservation ordinance a qualified review commission, board or

committee for historic preservation having specific powers, such as review responsibility pertaining
to proposed National Register nominations as well as actions that will affect local historic properties;

. designate a city official, staff person or other appropriate resident of the municipal entity to serve as

a local Historic Preservation Officer for the purpose of administering the local preservation
ordinance;

. provide appropriate training for historic preservation officer, related ¢ity staff and members of the

historic preservation commission;

. maintain a system for the survey and inventory of local historic properties that is coordinated with

the statewide cultural-resource-survey-process, with technical assistance provided by the National
Register Program office of the Texas Historical Commission’s History Programs Division;

. ensure, to the maximum extent possible, public participation in the local historic preservation

program, including the process of nominating properties to the National Register of Historic Places;

. adopt the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation as the standards by which the local

review commission will review all work applications brought before it under the terms of the local
historic preservation ordinance;

. review and comment upon nominations to the National Register of Historic Places for

properties within its jurisdiction within 60 days of receiving the nominations from the
National Register Program office of the Texas Historical Commission, and submit the
city commission’s reports and the recommendations of the chief elected official of the
city to the National Register Program office as to whether or not the nominated
properties meet the criteria of the National Register;



11.

12.

13.

14.

assist the National Register Program office of the Texas Historical Commission, if necessary, in
verifying the names and addresses of property owners within local historic districts being nominated
to the National Register, and assist with arrangements for local public information meetings at
mutually agreeable times and locations when such districts are nominated;

. submit to the State Historic Preservation Officer by the end of each calendar year an annual report

that describes the actions of the local review commission, board or committee and other
preservation-related activities of the previous fiscal year (October 1* through September 30™);

monitor and report to the Texas Historical Commission any actions affecting any county courthouse,
Recorded Texas Historic Landmark, State Archeological Landmark, National Register property, and
any locally designated landmark;

coordinate local historic preservation efforts, to the extent practicable, with the Texas Historical
Commission, which shall provide technical assistance, guidance, and information to the Certified
Local Government as feasible upon request;

carry out the general program procedures as outlined in the Texas Administrative Code, Title 13
Cultural Resources, Part 2 Texas Historical Commission, Chapter 15 Administration of Federal
Programs, Rule 15.6 Rules and Procedures for Certified Local Governments; and

assist the Texas Historical Commission in any duties and powers assigned to the State Historic
Preservation Office by the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 as amended, and other federal
enabling legislation.

Signature: Mayor (or chief elected official) Date
City of Kingsville

Printed Name

Mark Wolfe, State Historic Preservation Officer Date



AGENDA ITEM #9



RESOLUTION #2013-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF KINGSVILLE DESIGNATING DOWNTOWN
MANAGER, CYNTHIA MARTIN, AS THE CITY HISTORIC PRESERVATION OFFICER.

WHEREAS, the City Commission has authorized participation with several Texas Historical
Commission programs; and

WHEREAS, the Texas Historical Commission requires the City to designate a City Historic
Preservation Officer for participation in some programs.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Commission of the City of Kingsville,
Texas:
L.

THAT the Downtown Manager, Cynthia Martin, is hereby designated as the City Historic
Preservation Officer.

Il.
THAT this Resolution shall be and become effective on or after adoption.

PASSED AND APPROVED by a majority vote of the City Commission on the 14" day of
January, 2013.

Sam R. Fugate, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney

RES- Designatg Historic Preservation Officer-011413



Date: December 27, 2012
To: Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney and Vince Capell, City Manager
From: Roberf R. Trescott, Director of Tourism

Re: Appointment of Cynthia Martin as Kingsville Certified Local Government (CLG)
Representative, the Kingsville Main Street Manager and the City of Kingsville Historic
Preservation Officer

The City of Kingsville is currently participating in the Certified Local Government
(CLG) Program, the Texas Main Street Program and has a Historic Preservation
Commission. The CLG program asks the City to appoint a CLG representative for
Kingsville and to appoint a Historic Preservation Officer to oversee the Historic
Development Board. Participation in the Texas Main Street Program requires the City to
have a Main Street Manager. In the past, these positions have been held by myself as
former Downtown Manager. Now that Cynthia Martin is the Downtown Manager, it is
requested that Cynthia Martin be appointed to these positions.



REGULAR AGENDA



AGENDA ITEM #10



ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF “CITY OF KINGSVILLE,
TEXAS CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION, SERIES 2013” AND APPROVING ALL

OTHER MATTERS RELATED TO THE ISSUANCE OF THE CERTIFICATES OF
OBLIGATION




TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page
Section 1. Authorization of the CertifiCates......iiiiiiiriiiiiiieiiiie e sbarees 1
Section 2. Date, Denominations, Numbers, and Maturities of the Certificates ........c.cvvvinniiiiiininnne 1
Section 3. General Characteristics and Form of the Certificates ....uvveeeiverneroiiniiinnion, e 2
SECHION 4. DEfINITIONS . 1ettertirrriitreseerrerieeesrese s st et saeb e s e st aesnssres s b eassabe b s s bbere s bs bt e b e s as s aneabaenaesaeennernes 9
SECtion 5. CILY TFUNAS .oveviereeieieiere ettt et st e a e st b s e R s b e st e s b st n e basbobes 10
Section 6. Perfection 0f SECUIITY.....ciiiiriririiiiereni et st e raerasbserasssnnens 11
Section 7. INveStMents and SECUTITY vovuivereereerereririii st s rr e ese s s s 11
Section 8. Covenants 0f the CltY ...t e s s b s s 12
Section 9. Paying Agent/REGISIAT ......cccceviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiis s s e enes 14
Section 10. Initial Certificate; Exchange or Transfer of Certificates ..., 14
Section 11. Sale of Certificates; Approval of Official Statement ..o, 15
Section 12. Book-Entry Only SYSTEIM ...viivierrreriiiiiiiiiniiiii e s ee s sossssesssssses 16
Section 13, City Officers’ DULIES ....cccvriieriiiiiiiiiiiiiii s e s s 16
Section 14. Remedies Of OWIIELS ..vivererrerrerernriireseerenititeresn et sttt sresbesbesbesbesbssbeaaneas 17
Section 15. Additional OblIZAtioNS .....cuveeereeririererieriisenmrereertsi bbb s ers b ereersenes 17
Section 16. Lost, Stolen, Destroyed, Damaged, or Mutilated Certificates; Destruction of Paid
CErtITICALES 1vvivreireiirteisirre e irteeretorbeebeesss e seaseerabbesabesteesbess b e s basesre s easeambebessssbbbebasne b b e obbessarssabeesbb e s b s 17
Section 17. ReEMPLiON ..cevviiierereriiriiiieisisiiie i b bbb s e b e nenenes 18
SECHON 18. DEEASANCE 1.vvvrvieirirreeivieerirertirsreerrtteeerer e ssraesne s eesrtent s sbessbes bbb s s R e s smesaressbesbbb o bbesstbe st bessbbserns 18
Section 19. Ordinance a Contract; AMEndmMEntS ... veeerereneeneeieninrrenmimsr 19
Section 20. Other DOCUMENLS ...ouviviiuiriiiiiiiiii s 20
Section 21. Nonpresentment of Certificates ..o 20
Section 22. Continuing Disclosure Undertaking.........cocvvrere v s 20
Section 23. Designation as Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligations ........ccvevvvvinineiininiinnnnnen 22
Section 24. Further Procedures.......ovvevvieeersiiiininnen b et e e be et e et s e e e s ee e E e r et e b e bessaane srreans 22
Section 25. Attorney General Examination Fee.......ccivimiiiiiiiiiii 23
Section 26. Miscellaneous ProvVISIONS. .. .. eeivrierrriiiiiiriiiisinieciiierer s s s ssbe s sbesaessineires 23

EXHIBIT A — Purchase Contract
EXHIBIT B - Paying Agent/Registrar Agreement



ORDINANCE NO. 2013-

ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF “CITY OF KINGSVILLE,
TEXAS CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION, SERIES 2013” AND APPROVING
ALL OTHER MATTERS RELATED TO THE ISSUANCE OF THE
CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION

WHEREAS, the City Commission of the City of Kingsville (the “Issuer” or the “City”) deems it
advisable to issue Certificates of Obligation hereinafter described (the “Certificates”) for the purposes
specified in Section 1 hereof;

WHEREAS, the Certificates hereinafter authorized and designated are to be issued and delivered
for cash pursuant to the Certificate of Obligation Act of 1971, Section 271.041 et seq, Texas Local
Government Code, as amended (the “Act”); '

WHEREAS, the City Commission has heretofore, on November 26, 2012 passed a resolution
authorizing and directing the City Secretary to give notice of intention to issue the Certificates, which
notice has been duly published in the Kingsville Record and Bishop News, which is a newspaper of
general circulation in the City, in its issues of December 5, 2012, and December 12, 2012, the date of the
publication being at least 30 days prior to the tentative date stated in the notice for passage of this
Ordinance;

WHEREAS, the City has received no petition from the qualified electors of the City protesting
the issuance of the Certificates; and

WHEREAS, it is hereby determined that the terms of the Certificates as hereafter provided are the
* most reasonably available and advantageous and are in the best interest of the City;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF
KINGSVILLE, TEXAS, THAT:

Section 1. Authorization of the Certificates. There is hereby authorized to be issued and
delivered, a series of certificates of obligation of the City, to be known as “CITY OF KINGSVILLE,
TEXAS CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION, SERIES 2013” (the “Certificates”), in the original
aggregate principal amount of [$4,275,000] for the purpose of providing for the payment of contractual
obligations to be incurred in connection with the design, planning, acquisition, construction, equipping,
expansion, repair, renovation, and/or rehabilitation of certain City-owned public property, specifically:
(1) city wide drainage improvements; and (2) city wide street improvements and rehabilitation, and the
payment of contractual obligations for professional services in connection with such projects (including,
but not limited to, financial advisory, legal, architectural, and engineering).

Section 2. Date, Denominations, Numbers, and Maturities of the Certificates. The
Certificates shall be dated as of January 1, 2013 shall be in denominations of $5,000 each or any integral
multiple thereof, shall be numbered I-1 for the Initial Certificate and consecutively from R-1 upward for
the definitive certificates and shall mature on August 1 in each of the years as provided below unless
theretofore called for redemption prior to maturity in accordance with the provisions of the Form of the
Certificates contained in Section 3 hereof, and the Certificates shall bear interest at the rates per annum
shown below from the initial date of delivery and payable on February 1, 2014 and on each August 1 and
February 1 thereafter through the respective maturity date or earlier redemption, to wit:



Years of Years of

Stated Stated
Maturity Principal Interest : Maturity Principal Interest
(August 1) Installment Rate (August 1)  Installment Rate

2015 175,000 2025 225,000
2016 180,000 2026 235,000
2017 185,000 2027 240,000
2018 190,000 2028 250,000
2019 195,000 2029 255,000
2020 195,000 2030 265,000
2021 200,000 2031 270,000
2022 210,000 2032 280,000
2023 215,000 2033 290,000

2024 220,000

Section 3. General Characteristics and Form of the Certificates. The Certificates shall be
issued, shall be payable, may be redeemable prior to their scheduled maturities, shall have the
characteristics, and shall be signed and executed (and the Certificates shall be sealed) all as provided and
in the manner indicated in the form set forth below. The Form of the Certificates, the Form of the
Registration Certificate of the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas to be printed and
manually endorsed on the Initial Certificate, the Form of the Authentication Certificate, the Form of
Statement of Insurance, and the Form of Assignment, which shall be, respectively, substantially as
follows, with necessary and appropriate variations, omissions, and insertions as permitted or required by
this Ordinance, and the definitions contained within each such form shall apply solely to such form:

FORM OF CERTIFICATES

[FORM OF DEFINITIVE CERTIFICATES]

United States of America
State of Texas

NUMBER DENOMINATION
R- $
REGISTERED : REGISTERED

CITY OF KINGSVILLE, TEXAS
CERTIFICATE OF OBLIGATION,

SERIES 2013
INTEREST MATURITY DATED DELIVERY
RATE DATE DATE DATE - CUSIP NO.
January 1, 2013 February 14, 2013
REGISTERED OWNER: CEDE & CO.
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: $ )

THE CITY OF KINGSVILLE, TEXAS (the “Issuer” or the “City”), being a municipal
corporation and a political subdivision of the State of Texas, promises to pay to the Registered Owner,

2



specified above, or registered assigns (the “Registered Owner”), on the Maturity Date, specified above,
upon presentation and surrender of this Certificate at the designated payment office of THE BANK OF
NEW YORK MELLON TRUST COMPANY, N.A., Dallas, Texas, or its successor (the ‘“Paying
Agent/Registrar”®), the Principal Amount, specified above, in lawful money of the United States of
America, and to pay interest thereon at the Interest Rate, specified above, calculated on the basis of a 360-
day year of twelve 30-day months, from the Delivery Date, specified above. Interest on this Certificate is
payable by check payable on February 1, 2014 and on each August 1 and February 1 thereafter, mailed to
the Registered Owner of record as shown on the books of registration kept by the Paying Agent/Registrar,
as of the date which is the 15" calendar day of the month next preceding the interest payment date (the
“Record Date”), or in such other manner as may be acceptable to the Registered Owner and the Paying
Agent/Registrar.

THIS CERTIFICATE is one of a series of Certificates (the “Certificates”) dated as of the Dated
Date, of like designation, date, and tenor, except as to number, interest rate, denomination, and maturity
issued pursuant to the authorizing ordinance adopted by the City Commission of the City on January 14,
2013 (the “Ordinance”), in the original aggregate principal amount of [$4,275,000] for the purpose of
providing for the payment of contractual obligations to be incurred in connection with the design,
planning, acquisition, construction, equipping, expansion, repair, renovation, and/or rehabilitation of
certain City-owned public propetty, specifically: (1) city wide drainage improvements; and (2) city wide
street improvements and rehabilitation, and the payment of contractual obligations for professional
services in connection with such projects (including, but not limited to, financial advisory, legal,
architectural, and engineering). '

THE CERTIFICATES are issued pursuant to the Ordinance whereunder the City Commission of
the City covenants to levy a continuing, direct, annual ad valorem tax on taxable property within the City,
within the limits prescribed by law, for each year while any part of the Certificates are considered
outstanding under the provisions of the Ordinance, in a sufficient amount to pay interest on each
Certificate as it becomes due, to provide a sinking fund for the payment of the principal of the Certificates
when due, and to pay the expenses of assessing and collecting such tax, and this Certificate is additionally
secured by and payable from a subordinate pledge of certain “Net Revenues” of the Issuer’s Waterworks
and Sewer System (the “System”), which amount is payable from the revenues remaining after payment
of all operation and maintenance expenses of the System, and all debt service, reserve, and other
requirements in connection with all of the Issuer’s revenue bonds or other obligations (now or hereafter
outstanding) which are payable from all or any part of the “Net Revenues” of the System. Reference is
hereby made to the Ordinance for provisions with respect to the custody and application of the City’s
funds, remedies in the event of a default hereunder or thereunder, and the other rights of the Registered
‘Owner. By acceptance of this Certificate, the Registered Owner consents to all of the provisions of the
Ordinance, a certified copy of which is on file in the office of the City Secretary.

THE CITY RESERVES THE RIGHT to redeem the Certificates maturing on or after August 1,
____,in whole or in part, on August 1, or on any interest payment date thereafter. Such optional
redemption shall be at a redemption price of par plus accrued interest on the principal amounts called for
redemption to the date fixed for redemption. If less than all of the Certificates are to be redeemed, the
particular Certificates to be redeemed shall be selected by the City in integral multiples of $5,000 within
any one maturity. At least 45 days prior to the date fixed for any redemption of Certificates or portions
thereof prior to maturity, a written notice of such redemption shall be given by the City to the Paying
Agent/Registrar, and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall send a copy of such notice at least 30 days prior to
the date fixed for redemption by United States mail, first-class postage prepaid, addressed to the
Registered Owner of each Certificate to be redeemed in whole or in part at the address shown on the



Registration Books; provided, however, that the failure to send, mail, or receive such notice, or any defect
therein or in the sending or mailing thereof, shall not affect the validity or effectiveness of the
proceedings for the redemption of any Certificate. When Certificates or portions thereof have been called
for redemption, and due provision has been made to redeem the same, the principal amounts so redeemed
shall be payable solely from the funds provided for redemption, interest which would otherwise accrue on
the amounts called for redemption shall terminate on the date fixed for redemption, and redeemed
Certificates shall no longer be regarded as outstanding except for the right of the Registered Owner or
Registered Owners thereof to receive the redemption price from the Paying Agent/Registrar out of the
funds provided for such payment.

NOT LESS THAN 30 DAYS prior to a redemption date for the Certificates, the City shall cause a
notice of redemption to be sent by United States mail, first class, postage prepaid, to the registered owners
of the Certificates to be redeemed, in whole or in part, at the address of the registered owner appearing on
the registration books of the Paying Agent/Registrar at the close of business on the business day next
preceding the date of mailing such notice. Any notice so mailed shall be conclusively presumed to have
been duly given, whether or not the registered owner receives such notice. Notice having been so given,
the Certificates called for redemption shall become due and payable on the specified redemption date, and
notwithstanding that any Certificate or portion thereof has not been surrendered for payment, interest on
such Certificate or portion thereof shall cease to accrue. When Certificates or portions thereof have been
called for redemption, and due provision has been made to redeem the same, the principal amounts so
redeemed shall be payable solely from the funds provided for redemption, and interest which would
otherwise accrue on the amounts called for redemption shall terminate on the date fixed for redemption.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS TRANSFERABLE OR EXCHANGEABLE only upon presentation and
surrender at the designated payment office of the Paying Agent/Registrar. If this Certificate is being
transferred, it shall be duly endorsed for transfer or accompanied by an assignment duly executed by the
Registered Owner, or his authorized representative, subject to the terms and conditions of the Ordinance.
If this Certificate is being exchanged, it shall be in the principal amount of $5,000 or any integral multiple
thereof, subject to the terms and conditions of the Ordinance. The Registered Owner of this Certificate
shall be deemed and treated by the City and the Paying Agent/Registrar as the absolute owner hereof for
all purposes, including payment and discharge of liability upon this Certificate to the extent of such
payment, and the City and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall not be affected by any notice to the contrary.

IN THE EVENT any Paying Agent/Registrar for the Certificates is changed by the City, resigns,
or otherwise ceases to act as such, the City has covenanted in the Ordinance that it promptly will appoint
a competent and legally qualified substitute therefor, and cause written notice thereof to be mailed to the
Registered Owners.

IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED, COVENANTED, AND REPRESENTED that all acts, conditions,
and things necessary to be done precedent to the issuance of the Certificates in order to render the same
legal, valid, and binding obligations of the City have happened and have been accomplished and
performed in regular and due time, form, and manner, as required by law; that provision has been made
for the payment of the principal of and interest on the Certificates by the levy of a continuing, direct,
annual ad valorem tax upon all taxable property within the City, within the limit prescribed by law, and
from the above described limited pledge of the Net Revenues of the System; and that issuance of the
Certificates does not exceed any constitutional or statutory limitation.

BY BECOMING the Registered Owner of this Certificate, the Registered Owner thereby
acknowledges all of the terms and provisions of the Ordinance, agrees to be bound by such terms and



provisions, and vagrees that the terms and provisions of this Certificate and the Ordinance constitute a
contract between each Registered Owner and the City.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Certificate has been signed with the manual or facsimile signature of the
Mayor of the Issuer and countersigned with the manual or facsimile signature of the City Secretary of the
Issuer, and the official seal of the Issuer has been duly impressed, or placed in facsimile, on this
Certificate.

CITY OF KINGSVILLE, TEXAS

XXXXXXXXXXEXXXX XXX XXX XX XXXXXXX KXXXXXXXXXXXXXX XXX XX XX XXX XXX XX
City Secretary Mayor
(CITY SEAL)

P

FORM OF AUTHENTICATION CERTIFICATE

AUTHENTICATION CERTIFICATE

This Certificate of Obligation is one of the Certificates described in and delivered pursuant to the
within-mentioned Ordinance, and this Certificate has been issued in conversion of and exchange for, or
replacement of, a Certificate, Certificates, or a portion of a Certificate or Certificates of an issue which
was originally approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas and registered by the Comptroller
of Public Accounts of the State of Texas.

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON TRUST
COMPANY, N.A., Dallas, Texas
Paying Agent/Registrar

Registration Date: By

Authorized Signature

* * *

FORM OF STATEMENT OF INSURANCE

STATEMENT OF INSURANCE

Assured Guaranty Municipal Corp. (‘“AGM”), New York, New York, has delivered its municipal bond
insurance policy (the “Policy”) with respect to the scheduled payments due of principal and interest on
this Certificate to The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., Dallas, Texas, or its successor,
as paying agent for the Certificate (the “Paying Agent”). Said Policy is on file and available for
inspection at the principal office of the Paying Agent and a copy thereof may be obtained from AGM or
the Paying Agent. All payments required to be made under the Policy shall be made in accordance with
the provisions thereof. The owner of this Certificate acknowledges and consents to the subrogation rights
of AGM as more fully set forth in the Policy.



FORM OF ASSIGNMENT

ASSIGNMENT
FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns, and transfers unto
/
/
(Please insert Social Security or Taxpayer (Please print or typewrite name and address, including zip Identification
Number of Transferee) code, of Transferee)

the within Certificate of Obligation and all rights thereunder, and hereby irrevocably
constitutes and appoints attorney to register
the transfer of the within Certificate of Obligation on the books kept for registration thereof, with full
power of substitution in the premises.

Dated:

Signature Guaranteed:

NOTICE: Signature(s) must be guaranteed " NOTICE: The signature above must
by a member firm of the New York Stock correspond with the name of the Registered
Exchange or a commercial bank or trust Owner as it appears upon the front of this
company. Certificate of Obligation in every particular,

without alteration or enlargement or any
change whatsoever,

The following abbreviations, when used in the Assignment above or on the face of the within
Certificate of Obligation, shall be construed as though they were written out in full according to
applicable laws or regulations:

TEN COM - as tenants in common
TEN ENT - as tenants by the entireties
JT TEN - as joint tenants with right of survivorship and not as tenants in common

UNIF GIFT MIN ACT - Custodian

(Cust) (Minor)
under Uniform Gifts to Minors Act

(State)

Additional abbreviations may also be used though not in the list above.

* A #



[FORM OF INITIAL CERTIFICATE]

The Initial Certificate shall be in the form set forth above for the Definitive Certificates, except
the following shall replace the heading and the first three paragraphs:

NO. I-1 [$4,275,000]
United States of America
State of Texas
CITY OF KINGSVILLE, TEXAS
CERTIFICATE OF OBLIGATION, SERIES 2013

DATED DATE: JANUARY 1, 2013

DELIVERY DATE: | February 14, 2013

REGISTERED OWNER:

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: FOUR MILLION TWO HUNDRED SEVENTY FIVE THOUSAND

DOLLARS ([$4,275,000])

THE CITY OF KINGSVILLE, TEXAS (the “City”), for value received, acknowledges itself
indebted to and hereby promises to pay to the order of the Registered Owner, specified above, or the
registered assigns thereof (the “Registered Owner”), the Principal Amount, specified above, with
principal installments payable on August 1 in each of the years, and bearing interest at per annum rates in
accordance with the following schedule:

YEARS OF PRINCIPAL INTEREST
STATED MATURITY INSTALLMENT RATE
$ %

(Information to be inserted from schedule in Section 2 hereof.)

INTEREST on the unpaid Principal Amount hereof from the Delivery Date, specified above, or
from the most recent interest payment date to which interest has been paid or duly provided for until the
Principal Amount has become due and payment thereof has been made or duly provided for shall be paid
computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months; such interest being payable on
February 1 and August 1 of each year, commencing February 1, 2014,

THE PRINCIPAL OF AND INTEREST ON this Certificate are payable in lawful money of the
United States of America, without exchange or collection charges. The final payment of principal of this
Certificate shall be paid to the Registered Owner hereof upon presentation and surrender of this
Certificate at final maturity, at the designated payment office of THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON
TRUST COMPANY, N.A., Dallas, Texas, which is the “Paying Agent/Registrar” for this Certificate.
The payment of principal installments and interest on this Certificate shall be made by the Paying
Agent/Registrar to the Registered Owner hereof as shown by the Registration Books kept by the Paying
Agent/Registrar at the close of business on the Record Date by check drawn by the Paying
Agent/Registrar on, and payable solely from, funds of the City required to be on deposit with the Paying
Agent/Registrar for such purpose as hereinafter provided; and such check shall be sent by the Paying
Agent/Registrar by United States mail, postage prepaid, on each such payment date, to the registered
owner hereof at its address as it appears on the Registration Books kept by the Paying Agent/Registrar, as
hereinafter described. The record date for determining the person to whom payments hereon shall be

7



made (the “Record Date”) means the 15™ calendar day of the month preceding a scheduled payment. In
the event of a non-payment of interest on a scheduled payment date, and for 30 days thereafter, a new
Record Date for such payment (a “Special Record Date”) will be established by the Paying
Agent/Registrar, if and when funds for the payment thereof have been received from the City. Notice of
the Special Record Date and of the scheduled payment date of the past due payment (the “Special
Payment Date”, which shall be 15 calendar days after the Special Record Date) shall be sent at least five
business days prior to the Special Record Date by United States mail, first class, postage prepaid, to the
address of the Registered Owner appearing on the books of the Paying Agent/Registrar at the close of
business on the last business day next preceding the date of mailing of such notice. The City covenants
with the Registered Owner that no later than each principal installment payment date and interest payment
date for this Certificate it will make available to the Paying Agent/Registrar the amounts required to
provide for the payment, in immediately available funds, of all principal of and interest on the
Certificates, when due, in the manner set forth in the ordinance authorizing the issuance of the Certificates
adopted by the City Commission of the City on January 24, 2013 (the “Ordinance”).

* * *

FORM OF REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE OF COMPTROLLER OF PUBLIC ACCOUNTS

COMPTROLLER’S REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE: REGISTER NO.

] HEREBY CERTIFY THAT there is on file and of record in my office a certificate to the effect
that the Attorney General of the State of Texas has examined and finds that this Certificate of Obligation
has been issued in conformity with the Constitution and laws of the State of Texas and is a valid and
binding obligation of the City of Kingsville, Texas, and further that this Certificate of Obligation has been
registered this day by me.

WITNESS my signature and seal of office this
(COMPTROLLER’S SEAL)

Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas

#* * #*

[END OF FORMS]

In case any officer of the City whose manual or facsimile signature shall appear on any
Certificate shall cease to be such officer before the delivery of any such Certificate, such manual or
facsimile signature shall nevertheless be valid and sufficient for all purposes as if such officer had
remained in office until such delivery. Any Certificate which bears the facsimile signature of such person
who at the actual time of the delivery of such Certificate shall be an officer authorized to sign such
Certificate, but who at the date of such Certificate was not such an officer, shall be validly and
sufficiently signed for all purposes as if such person had been such officer at the date of such Certificate.
The City authorizes the printing of a true and correct copy of an opinion of Winstead PC, Bond Counsel,
relating to the validity and enforceability of the Certificates under Texas law and the status of interest on
the Certificates under federal income tax laws on the reverse side of each of the Certificates over a
certificate of identification executed by the facsimile signature of the City Secretary, and also authorizes
the imprinting of CUSIP (the American Bankers Association’s Committee on Uniform Securities
Identification Procedures) numbers on the Certificates; provided, however, that the failure of such
opinion, certificate, or CUSIP numbers to appear on any Certificate, or any errors therein, or in any part

8



of the Certificate the form of which is not included in this Ordinance, shall in no way affect the validity or
enforceability of the Certificates or relieve the Initial Purchaser of its obligation to accept delivery of and
pay for the Certificates.

Section 4. Definitions. In addition to other words and terms defined in this Ordinance (except
those defined and used in Section 3), and unless a different meaning or intent clearly appears in the
context, the following words and terms shall have the following meanings, respectively:

“Additional Obligations” means such other bonds, certificates, or other evidences of indebtedness
as may hereafter be authorized, payable from and equally secured by a pledge of the Net Revenues.

“Certificates” means any Certificate or Certificates or all of the Certificates, as the case may be,
of that series styled “City of Kingsville, Texas Certificates of Obligation, Series 2013” in the original
aggregate principal amount of [$4,275,000] authorized by this Ordinance.

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

“Government Obligations” means the (i) direct noncallable obligations of the United States,
including obligations that are unconditionally guaranteed by the United States of America; (ii)
noncallable obligations of an agency or instrumentality of the United States, including obligations that are
unconditionally guaranteed or insured by the agency of instrumentality and that, on the date the governing
body of the City adopts or approves the proceedings authorizing the issuance of refunding bonds, are
rated as to investment quality by a nationally recognized investment rating firm not less than “AAA” or
its equivalent; (iii) noncallable obligations of a state or an agency or a county, municipality, or other
political subdivision of a state that have been refunded and that, on the date the governing body of the
City adopts or approves the proceedings and authorizing the issuance of refunding bonds, are rated as to
investment quality by a nationally recognized investment rating firm not less than “AAA” or its
equivalent; or (iv) such other obligations as may be permitted from time to time by applicable Texas law .

“Initial Certificate” means the Certificate registered by the Comptroller of Public Accounts as
described in Section 10 hereof.

“Initial Purchaser” means , as representative of a syndicate of
underwriters including

[“Insurance Policy” means the financial guaranty insurance policy issued by the Insurer
guaranteeing the scheduled payment of principal of and interest on the Certificates when due.]

“Insurer” means [Assured Guaranty Corporation.]

“Interest Payment Date” means when used in connection with any Certificate, shall mean
February 1, 2014 and on each August 1 and February 1 thereafter until maturity or earlier redemption of
such Certificate.

“Issuer” or “City” means the City of Kingsville, Texas, a municipal corporation and a political
subdivision of the State of Texas, or any successor thereto.

“Net Revenues” means the gross revenues of the System less the expense of operation and
maintenance thereof, including all salaries, labor, materials, interest, repairs, and extensions necessary to
render efficient service; provided, however, that only such repairs and extensions as in the judgment of

9



the City Commission, reasonably and fairly exercised, are necessary to keep the System in operation and
render adequate service to the City and the inhabitants thereof, or such as might be necessary to meet
some physical accident or condition which would otherwise impair the security of any bonds payable
from and secured by a lien on the Net Revenues of the System shall be deducted in determining “Net
Revenues.”

“Ordinance” means this “Ordinance Authorizing the Issuance of ‘City of Kingsville, Texas
Certificates of Obligation, Series 2013* and Approving All Other Matters Related to the Issuance of the
Certificates of Obligation” adopted by the City Commission on January 14, 2013.

. “Owners” means any person who shall be the registered owner of any outstanding Certificates.

“Parity Bonds Ordinances” means the ordinances authorizing the City’s bonds payable from a
first lien on the Net Revenues and any additional bonds as defined therein.

“Paying Agent/Registrar” means The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A, Dallas,
Texas and such other bank or trust company as may hereafter be appointed in. substitution therefor or in
addition thereto to perform the duties of Paying Agent/Registrar in accordance with this Ordinance.

“Paying Agent/Registrar Agreement” means the agreement dated as of January 1, 2013, between
the Paying Agent/Registrar and the City relating to the registration, authentication, and transfer of the
Certificates.

“Record Date” means the date for determining the person to whom interest is payable on the next
Interest Payment Date being the 15" calendar day of the month next preceding the applicable Interest
" Payment Date.

“Register” means the books of registration kept by the Paying Agent/Registrar in which are
maintained the names and addresses of and the principal amounts registered to each Owner.

Terms not otherwise defined herein are those used in the Parity Bonds Ordinances.

Section 5. City Funds. The City hereby confirms the establishment of the following funds of
the City at a depository of the City:

(a) Interest and Sinking Fund, Tax Levy, and Pledge of Revenues. A special “City of Kingsville,
Texas Certificates of Obligation Series 2013 Interest and Sinking Fund” (the “Interest and Sinking Fund”)
is hereby created and shall be established and maintained by the City at an official depository bank of the
City. The Interest and Sinking Fund shall be kept separate and apart from all other funds and accounts of
the Issuer, and shall be used only for paying the interest on and principal of the Certificates. The net
proceeds of all ad valorem taxes levied and collected for and on account of the Certificates shall be
deposited, as collected, to the credit of the Interest and Sinking Fund.

During each year while any of the Certificates or interest thereon are outstanding and unpaid, the
governing body of the Issuer shall compute and ascertain a rate and amount of ad valorem tax which will
be sufficient to raise and produce the money required to pay the interest on the Certificates as such
interest comes due, and to provide and maintain a sinking fund adequate to pay the principal thereof as
such principal matures (but never less than 2% of the original principal amount of the Certificates as a
sinking fund each year); and the tax shall be based on the latest approved tax rolls of the Issuer, with full
allowances being made for tax delinquencies and the cost of tax collection. The rate and amount of ad

10



valorem tax is hereby levied, and is hereby ordered to be levied, against all taxable property in the Issuer
for each year while any of the Certificates or interest thereon are outstanding and unpaid, and the tax shall
be assessed and collected each year and deposited to the credit of the Interest and Sinking Fund. The ad
valorem taxes sufficient to provide for the payment of the interest on and principal of the Certificates, as
such interest comes due and such principal matures, are hereby pledged irrevocably for such payment,
within the limit prescribed by law.

The Certificates additionally shall be payable from and secured by a subordinate lien on and
pledge of certain of the Net Revenues. The City shall deposit such pledged Net Revenues to the credit of
the Interest and Sinking Fund created pursuant to this section. Notwithstanding the requirements of this
section, if Net Revenues are actually on deposit in the Interest and Sinking Fund in advance of the time
when ad valorem taxes are scheduled to be levied for any year, then the amount of taxes which otherwise
would have been required to be levied pursuant to this section may be reduced to the extent and by the
amount of the Net Revenues then on deposit in the Interest and Sinking Fund or budgeted for deposit
therein. :

The City reserves the right to issue, for any lawful purpose at any time, in one or more
installments, bonds, certificates of obligation, and other obligations of any kind payable in whole or in
part from, and secured by a pledge of the Net Revenues of the System that may be prior and superior in
right to, on a parity with, or junior and subordinate to the subordinate pledge of the Net Revenues
securing the Certificates.

(b) Project Fund. A special “City of Kingsville, Texas Certificates of Obligation Series 2013
Project Fund” (the “Project Fund”) is hereby created and shall be established and maintained by the City
at an official depository bank of the City. The Project Fund is the fund into which the net proceeds of the
Certificates shall be deposited. Money in the Project Fund shall be used to pay the costs necessary or
appropriate to accomplish the purposes for which the Certificates are issued.

Section 6. Perfection of Security. Chapter 1208, Texas Government Code, applies to the
issuance of the Certificates and the pledge of the proceeds of ad valorem taxes and Net Revenues thereto,
and such pledge is, therefore, valid, effective, and perfected. Should Texas law be amended at any time
while the Certificates are outstanding and unpaid, the result of such amendment being that the pledge of
the ad valorem tax proceeds and Net Revenues is to be subject to the filing requirements of Chapter 9,
Texas Business & Commerce Code, in order to preserve to the registered owners of the Certificates a
security interest in such pledge, the City agrees to take such measures as it determines are reasonable and
necessary to enable a filing of a security interest in said pledge to occur.

Section 7. Investments and Security. (a) Investment of Funds. The City may place money in
any fund created by this Ordinance in time or demand deposits or invest such money as authorized by
law at the time of such deposit; provided, however, that the City hereby covenants that the proceeds of
the sale of the Certificates will be used as soon as practicable for the purposes for which the Certificates
are issued. Obligations purchased as an investment of money in a fund shall be deemed to be a part of
such fund.

(b) Amounts Received from Investments. Except as otherwise provided by law, amounts
received from the investment of the Project Fund may be retained in such fund or deposited to the Interest
and Sinking Fund as determined by the City Commission. Any amounts received from the investment of
the Interest and Sinking Fund shall be deposited in the Interest and Sinking Fund.

11



(¢) Security for Funds. All funds created by this Ordinance shall be secured in the manner and to

the fullest extent required by law for the security of funds of the City.

that:

Section 8. Covenants of the City. (a) General Covenants. The City covenants and represents

(i) The City is a duly created city, operating and existing under the laws of the State
of Texas, and is duly authorized under the laws of the State of Texas to create and issue the
Certificates, all action on its part for the creation and issuance of the Certificates has been duly
and effectively taken, and the Certificates in the hands of the Owners thereof are and will be valid
and enforceable obligations of the City in accordance with their terms.

(i) The Certificates shall be ratably secured in such manner that no one Certificate
shall have preference over other Certificates.

(b) Specific Covenants. The City covenants and represents that while the Certificates or any

Additional Obligations are outstanding and unpaid, it will comply with and perform the covenants and
agreements of the Parity Bonds Ordinances.

(c) Covenants Regarding Tax Matters. The City covenants to take any action to maintain, or

refrain from any action which would adversely affect, the treatment of the Certificates as obligations
described in section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), the interest on
which is not includable in “gross income” for federal income tax purposes. In furtherance thereof, the
City specifically covenants as follows:

(i) To refrain from taking any action which would result in the Certificates being
treated as “private activity bonds” within the meaning of section 141(b) of the Code;

(i) To take any action to assure that no more than 10% of the proceeds of the
Certificates or the projects financed therewith are used for any “private business use,” as defined
in section 141(b)(6) of the Code or, if more than 10% of the proceeds or the projects financed
therewith are so used, that amounts, whether or not received by the City with respect to such
private business use, do not under the terms of this Resolution or any underlying arrangement,
directly or indirectly, secure or provide for the payment of more than 10% of the debt service on
the Certificates, in contravention of section 141(b)(2) of the Code;

(iii) To take any action to assure that in the event that the “private business use”
described in paragraph (ii) hereof exceeds 5% of the proceeds of the Certificates or the projects
financed therewith, then the amount in excess of 5% is used for a “private business use” which is
“related” and not “disproportionate,” within the meaning of section 141(b)(3) of the Code, to the
governmental use;

(iv) To take any action to assure that no amount which is greater than the lesser of
$5,000,000 or 5% of the proceeds of the Certificates is directly or indirectly used to finance loans

to persons, other than state or local governmental units, in contravention of section 141(c) of the
Code;

(v) To refrain from taking any action which would result in the Certificates being
“federally guaranteed” within the meaning of section 149(b) of the Code;

12



(vi) Except to the extent permitted by section 148 of the Code and the regulations
and rulings thereunder, to refrain from using any portion of the proceeds of the Certificates,
directly or indirectly, to acquire or to replace funds which were used, directly or indirectly, to
acquire investment property (as defined in section 148(b)(2) of the Code) which produces a
materially higher yield over the term of the Certificates.

(vii) To otherwise restrict the use of the proceeds of the Certificates or amounts
treated as proceeds of the Certificates, as may be necessary, so that the Certificates do not
otherwise contravene the requirements of section 148 of the Code (relating to arbitrage) and, to
the extent applicable, section 149(d) of the Code (relating to advance refundings);

(viii) Except to the extent otherwise provided in section 148(f) of the Code and the
regulations and rulings thereunder, to pay to the United States of America at least once during
each five year period (beginning on the date of delivery of the Certificates) an amount that is at
Jeast equal to 90% of the “Excess Earnings,” within the meaning of section 148(f) of the Code,
and to pay to the United States of America, not later than 60 days after the Certificates have been
paid in full, 100% of the amount then required to be paid as a result of Excess Earnings under
section 148(f) of the Code; and

(ix) To maintain such records as will enable the City to fulfill its responsibilities
under this subsection and section 148 of the Code and to retain such records for at least six years
following the final payment of principal and interest on the Certificates.

For the purposes of the foregoing, in the case of a refunding bond, the term proceeds includes transferred
proceeds and, for purposes of paragraphs (ii) and (iii), proceeds of the refunded bonds.

The covenants contained herein are intended to assure compliance with the Code and any
regulations or rulings promulgated by the U.S. Department of Treasury pursuant thereto. In the event that
regulations or rulings are hereafter promulgated which modify or expand provisions of the Code, as
applicable to the Certificates, the City will not be required to comply with any covenant contained herein
to the extent that such modification or expansion, in the opinion of nationally-recognized bond counsel,
will not adversely affect the exclusion from gross income of interest on the Certificates under section 103
of the Code. In the event that regulations or rulings are hereafter promulgated which impose additional
requirements which are applicable to the Certificates, the City agrees to comply with the additional
requirements to the extent necessary, in the opinion of nationally-recognized bond counsel, to preserve
the exclusion from gross income of interest on the Certificates under section 103 of the Code.

Proper officers of the City charged with the responsibility of issuing the Certificates are hereby
authorized and directed to execute any documents, certificates, or reports required by the Code and to
make such elections, on behalf of the City, which may be permitted by the Code as are consistent with the
purpose for the issuance of the Certificates.

Notwithstanding any other provision in this Ordinance, to the extent necessary to preserve the
exclusion from gross income of interest on the Certificates under section 103 of the Code the covenants
contained in this subsection shall survive the later of the defeasance or discharge of the Certificates.

(d) Covenants Regarding Sale, Lease, or Disposition of Financed Property. The City covenants
that the City will regulate the use of the property financed, directly or indirectly, with the proceeds of the
Certificates and will not sell, lease, or otherwise dispose of such property unless (i) the City takes the
remedial measures as may be required by the Code and the regulations and rulings thereunder in order to

13




preserve the exclusion from gross income of interest on the Certificates under section 103 of the Code or
(ii) the City seeks the advice of nationally-recognized bond counsel with respect to such sale, lease, or
other disposition.

Section 9. Paying Agent/Registrar. The Paying Agent/Registrar is hereby appointed as paying
agent for the Certificates and the City is hereby authorized to enter into any type of agreement necessary
for the Paying Agent/Registrar to perform its duties hereunder. The principal of and interest on the
Certificates shall be payable, without exchange or collection charges, in any coin or currency of the
United States of America, which, on the date of payment, is legal tender for the payment of debts due the
United States of America, upon their presentation and surrender as they respectively become due and
payable, whether at maturity or by prior redemption, at the principal corporate trust office of the Paying
Agent/Registrar. The interest on each Certificate shall be payable by check payable on the Interest
Payment Date mailed by the Paying Agent/Registrar on or before each Interest Payment Date to the
Owner of record as of the Record Date, to the address of such Owner as shown on the Register, or in
such other manner as may be acceptable to the Owner and the Paying Agent/Registrar.

The City, the Paying Agent/Registrar, and any other person may treat the person in whose name
any Certificate is registered as the absolute Owner of such Certificate for the purpose of making and
receiving payment of the principal thereof and premium, if any, thereon, and for the further purpose of
making and receiving payment of the interest thereon and for all other purposes, whether or not such
Certificate is overdue, and neither the City nor the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be bound by any notice or
knowledge to the contrary. All payments made to the person deemed to be the Owner of any Certificate
in accordance with this Ordinance shall be valid and effectual and shall discharge the liability of the City
and the Paying Agent/Registrar upon such Certificate to the extent of the sums paid.

So long as any Certificates remain outstanding, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall keep the
Register at its principal corporate trust office in which, subject to such reasonable regulations as it may
prescribe, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall provide for the registration and transfer of Certificates in
accordance with the terms of this Ordinance.

The City may at any time and from time to time appoint another Paying Agent/Registrar in
substitution for the previous Paying Agent/Registrar; provided that any such Paying Agent/Registrar shall
be a corporation organized and doing business under the laws of the United States of America or any
State, authorized under such laws to exercise trust powers, subject to supervision or examination by
federal or state authority, and a transfer agent registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
In such event, the City shall give notice by certified mail to each Owner at least 30 days prior to the
effective date of such substitution. Any bank or trust company with or into which any Paying
Agent/Registrar may be merged or consolidated, or to which the assets and business of Paying
Agent/Registrar may be sold or otherwise transferred, shall be deemed the successor of such Paying
Agent/Registrar for the purposes of this Ordinance.

The Mayor and City Secretary are hereby authorized to enter into, execute, and deliver the Paying
Agent/Registrar Agreement with the initial Paying Agent/Registrar in substantially the form presented to
the City on this date.

Section 10. Initial Certificate; Exchange or Transfer of Certificates, Initially, one Certificate
(the “Initial Certificate”) numbered I-1 as described in Section 2, and representing the entire principal
amount of the Certificates shall be registered in the name of the Initial Purchaser and shall be executed
and submitted to the Attorney General of Texas for approval, and thereupon certified by the Comptroller
of Public Accounts of the State of Texas or his duly authorized agent, by manual signature, and the Initial

14



Certificate shall be effective and valid without the Authentication Certificate being signed by the Paying
Agent/Registrar. At any time thereafter, the Owner may deliver the Initial Certificate to the Paying
Agent/Registrar for exchange, accompanied by instructions from the Owner or designee designating the
persons, maturities, and principal amounts to and in which the Initial Certificates are to be transferred
and the addresses of such persons, and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall thereupon, within not more than
three days, register and deliver such Certificates upon authorization of the City as provided in such
instructions.

Each Certificate shall be transferable only upon the presentation and surrender thereof at the
principal corporate trust office of the Paying Agent/Registrar, duly endorsed for transfer, or accompanied
by an assignment duly executed by the Owner or his authorized representative in form satisfactory to the
Paying Agent/Registrar. Upon presentation of any Certificate for transfer, the Paying Agent/Registrar
shall authenticate and deliver in exchange therefor, to the extent possible and under reasonable
circumstances within three business days after such presentation, a new Certificate or Certificates,
registered in the name of the transferee or transferees, in authorized denominations and of the same
maturity and aggregate principal amount and bearing interest at the same rate as the Certificate or
Certificates so presented.

All Certificates shall be exchangeable upon presentation and surrender thereof at the principal
corporate trust office of the Paying Agent/Registrar for a Certificate or Certificates of the same maturity
and interest rate and in any authorized denomination, in an aggregate principal amount equal to the
unpaid principal amount of the Certificate or Certificates presented for exchange. The Paying
Agent/Registrar shall be and is hereby authorized to authenticate and deliver exchange Certificates in
accordance with this Ordinance and each Certificate so delivered shall be entitled to the benefits and
security of this Ordinance to the same extent as the Certificate or Certificates in lieu of which such
Certificate is delivered.

The City or the Paying Agent/Registrar may require the Owner of any Certificate to pay a sum
sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge that may be imposed in connection with the
transfer or exchange of such Certificate. Any fee or charge of the Paying Agent/Registrar for such
transfer or exchange shall be paid by the City.

Section 11. Sale of Certificates; Approval of Official Statement. (a) Sale. The sale of the
Certificates to the Initial Purchaser pursuant to a negotiated price of par, plus a net original issue
premium of $ , and less an underwriting discount of $ , is hereby confirmed.
The delivery of the Certificates to the Initial Purchaser shall be made as soon as practicable after the
adoption of this Ordinance, upon payment therefor, in accordance with the terms of sale. The Initial
Certificate shall be registered in the name of the Initial Purchaser. [Net premium of § will
be used to pay costs of issuance.] Remaining Certificate proceeds shall be deposited in the Project Fund
after paying costs of issuance, including [the Insurance Policy which is hereby approved.]

(b) Approval of Official Statement. The City hereby approves the form and content of the
Official Statement relating to the Certificates and any addenda, supplement, or amendment thereto, and
approves the distribution of such Official Statement in the reoffering of the Certificates by the Initial
Purchaser in final form, with such changes therein or additions thereto as the officer executing the same
may deem advisable, such determination to be conclusively evidenced by his execution thereof. The form
and content of and the distribution and use of the Preliminary Official Statement dated January 7, 2013,
prior to the date hereof is hereby ratified and confirmed. The Commission finds and determines that the
Preliminary Official Statement is “deemed final” as that term is defined in 17 C.F.R. Section 240.15¢2-
12. :

15



(c) Legal Opinion. The Initial Purchaser’s obligation to accept delivery of the Certificates is
subject to their being furnished an opinion of Winstead PC, Bond Counsel, such opinion to be dated and
delivered as of the date of delivery and payment for the Certificates.

(d) Registration and Delivery. Upon the registration of the Initial Certificate, the Comptroller of
Public Accounts of the State of Texas is authorized and instruct to deliver the Initial Certificate pursuant
to the instruction of the Mayor for delivery to the Initial Purchaser.

Section 12. Book-Entry Only System. (a) The definitive Certificates shall be initially issued in
the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, as Registered Owner of the Certificates, and held in
custody of DTC. A single certificate will be issued and delivered to DTC for each maturity of the
Certificates. Beneficial owners of definitive Certificates will not receive physical delivery of Certificates
except as provided hereinafter. For so long as DTC shall continue to serve as securities depository for
the Certificates as provided herein, all transfers of beneficial ownership interest will be made by book-
entry only, and no investor or other person purchasing, selling, or otherwise transferring beneficial
ownership of Certificates is to receive, hold, or deliver any Certificates. No person shall acquire or hold
any beneficial interest in any Certificate representing a portion of the principal amount of such
Certificate which is other than $5,000 or an integral multiple thereof.

(b) Replacement definitive Certificates may be issued directly to beneficial owners of
Certificates other than DTC, or its nominee, but only in the event that (i) DTC determines not to continue
to act as securities depository for the Certificates (which determination shall become effective no less
than 90 days after written notice to such effect to the Issuer and the Paying Agent/Registrar); or (ii) the
Issuer has advised DTC of its determination (which determination is conclusive as to DTC and beneficial
owners of the Certificates) that DTC is incapable of discharging its duties as securities depository for the
Certificates; or (iii) the Issuer has determined (which determination is conclusive as to DTC and the
beneficial owners of the Certificates) that the interests of the beneficial owners of the Certificates might
be adversely affected if such book-entry only system of transfer is continued. Upon occurrence of any
event described in (i) or (ii) above, the Issuer shall use its best efforts to attempt to locate another
qualified securities depository. If the Issuer fails to locate another qualified securities depository to
replace DTC, the Issuer shall cause to be executed, authenticated, and delivered replacement Certificates,
in certificate form, to the DTC participants having an interest in the Certificates as shown on the records
of DTC provided by DTC to the Issuer. In the event that the Issuer makes the determination described in
(iii) above and has made provisions to notify the beneficial owners of Certificates of such determination
by mailing an appropriate notice to DTC, it shall cause to be issued replacement Certificates in certificate
form to the DTC participants having an interest in the Certificates as shown on the records of DTC
provided by DTC to the Issuer. The Issuer undertakes no obligation to make any investigation to
determine the occurrence of any events that would permit the Issuer to make any determination described
in (i) or (iii) above.

(c) Whenever, during the term of the Certificates, the beneficial ownership thereof is determined
by a book entry at DTC, the requirements in this Ordinance of holding, delivering, or transferring
Certificates shall be deemed modified to require the appropriate person or entity to meet the requirement
of DTC as to registering or transferring the book entry to produce the same effect.

(d) If at any time DTC ceases to hold the Certificates, all references herein to DTC shall be of no
further force or effect.

Section 13. City Officers’ Duties. (a) Issuance of Certificates. The Mayor shall submit the
Initial Certificate, the record of the proceedings authorizing the issuance of the Certificates, and any and

16



all other necessary orders, certificates, and records to the Attorney General of the State of Texas for his
investigation. After obtaining the approval of the Attorney General, the Mayor shall cause the Initial
Certificate to be registered by the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas. The officers or
acting officers of the City are authorized to execute and deliver on behalf of the City such certificates and
instruments as may be required, necessary, or appropriate prior to delivery of and payment for the
Certificates to and by the Initial Purchaser and to accomplish the purposes of this Ordinance.

(b) Execution of Ordinance. The Mayor and the City Secretary are authorized to execute the
Certificate to which this Ordinance is attached on behalf of the City and to do any and all things proper
and necessary to carry out the intent thereof.

Section 14. Remedies of Owners. In addition to all rights and remedies of any Owner of the
Certificates provided by the laws of the State of Texas, the City covenants and agrees that in the event
the City defaults in the payment of the principal of or interest on any of the Certificates when due, fails to
make the payments required by this Ordinance to be made into the Interest and Sinking Fund, or defaults
in the observance or performance of any of the covenants, conditions, or obligations set forth in this
Ordinance, the Owner of any of the Certificates shall be entitled to a writ of mandamus issued by a court
of proper jurisdiction compelling and requiring the City and other officers of the City to observe and
perform any covenant, obligation, or condition prescribed in this Ordinance. No delay or omission by
any Owner to exercise any right or power accruing to such Owner upon default shall impair any such
right or power, or shall be construed to be a waiver of any such default or acquiescence therein, and
every such right or power may be exercised from time to time and as often as may be deemed expedient.
The specific remedies mentioned in this Ordinance shall be available to any Owner of any of the
Certificates and shall be cumulative of all other existing remedies.

Section 15, Additional Obligations. The City shall hereafter have the right to issue Additional
Obligations as may hereafter be authorized by the City Commission.

Section 16. Lost, Stolen, Destroyed, Damaged, or Mutilated Certificates; Destruction of
Paid Certificates. (a) Replacement Certificates. In the event any outstanding Certificate shall become
lost, stolen, destroyed, damaged, or mutilated, at the request of the Owner thereof, the City shall cause to
be executed, registered by the Paying Agent/Registrar, and delivered a substitute Certificate of like date
and tenor, in exchange and substitution for and upon cancellation of such mutilated or damaged
Certificate, or in lieu of and substitution for such Certificate, lost, stolen, or destroyed, subject to the
provisions of subsections (b), (c), (d) and (e) of this Section.

(b) Application and Indemnity. Application for exchange and substitution of lost, stolen,
destroyed, damaged, or mutilated Certificates shall be made to the City. In every case the applicant for a
substitute Certificate shall furnish to the City such deposit for fees and costs as may be required by the
City to save it and the Paying Agent/Registrar harmless from liability. In every case of loss, theft, or
destruction of a Certificate, the applicant shall also furnish to the City indemnity to the City’s satisfaction
and shall file with the City evidence to the City’s satisfaction of the loss, theft, or destruction and of the
ownership of such Certificate. In every case of damage or mutilation of a Certificate, the applicant shall
surrender the Certificate so damaged or mutilated to the Paying Agent/Registrar.

(c) Matured Certificates. Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section, in the event
any such Certificate shall have matured, and no default has occurred which is then continuing in payment
of the principal of or interest on the Certificates, the City may authorize the payment of the same (without
surrender thereof except in the case of a damaged or mutilated Certificate) instead of issuing a substitute
Certificate, if any, provided security or indemnity is furnished as above provided in this Section.

17




(d) Expenses of Issuance. Upon the issuance of any substitute Certificate, the City may charge
the owner of such Certificate with all fees and costs incurred in connection therewith. Every substitute
Certificate issued pursuant to the provisions of this Section by virtue of the fact that any Certificate is lost,
stolen, destroyed, damaged, or mutilated shall constitute a contractual obligation of the City, whether or
not the lost, stolen, destroyed, damaged, or mutilated Certificate shall be found at any time, or be
enforceable by anyone, and shall be entitled to all the benefits of this Ordinance equally and
proportionately with any and all other Certificates duly issued under this Ordinance.

(¢) Authority to Issue Substitute Certificates. This Ordinance shall constitute sufficient authority
for the issuance of any such substitute Certificate without necessity of further action by the City or any
other body or person, and the issuance of such substitute Certificates is hereby authorized,
notwithstanding any other provisions of this Ordinance.

(f) Destruction of Paid Certificates. At any time subsequent to the payment thereof, the Paying
Agent/Registrar is authorized to cancel and destroy any Certificates duly paid, and promptly after any
such destruction, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall furnish to the City a certificate evidencing such
destruction.

Section 17. Redemption. The City reserves the right to redeem the Certificates as described in
the Form of Certificates in Section 3 hereof.

Section 18. Defeasance. (a) Except to the extent provided in subsection (c) of this Section, any
Certificate, and the interest thereon, shall be deemed to be paid, retired, and no longer outstanding within
the meaning of this Ordinance (a “Defeased Certificate”) when payment of the principal of such
Certificate, plus interest thereon to the due date (whether such due date be by reason of maturity,
redemption, or otherwise) either (i) shall have been made or caused to be made in accordance with the
terms thereof (including the giving of any required notice of redemption) or (ii) shall have been provided
for on or before such due date by irrevocably depositing with or making available to a person described
by Section 1207.061(a), Texas Government Code, as amended (a “Depositary”), with respect to the
safekeeping, investment, administration, and disposition of a deposit made under Section 1207.061,
Texas Government Code, as amended, for such payment (the “Deposit™) (A) lawful money of the United
States of America sufficient to make such payment or (B) Government Obligations, which may be in
book-entry form, that mature and bear interest payable at times and in amounts sufficient to provide for
the scheduled payment or redemption of any Defeased Certificate. To cause a Certificate scheduled to be
paid or redeemed on a date later than the next scheduled interest payment date on such Certificate to
become a Defeased Certificate, the City must, with respect to the Deposit, enter into an escrow or similar
agreement with a Depositary.

In connection with any defeasance of the Certificates, the City shall cause to be delivered: (i) in
the event an escrow or similar agreement has been entered into with a Depositary to effectuate such
defeasance, a report of an independent firm of nationally recognized certified public accountants verifying
the sufficiency of the escrow established to pay the Defeased Certificates in full on the maturity or
redemption date thereof (the “Verification™); or (ii) in the event no escrow or similar agreement has been
entered into, a certificate from the Finance Director certifying that the amount deposited with a
Depositary is sufficient to pay the Defeased Certificates in full on the maturity or redemption date thereof.
In addition to the required Verification or certificate, the City shall also cause to be delivered an opinion
of nationally recognized bond counsel to the effect that the Defeased Certificates are no longer
outstanding pursuant to the terms hereof and a certificate of discharge of the Paying Agent/Registrar with
respect to the Defeased Certificates. The Verification, if any, and each certificate and opinion required

18



hereunder shall be acceptable in form and substance, and addressed, if applicable, to the Paying
Agent/Registrar and the City. The Certificates shall remain outstanding hereunder unless and until they
are in fact paid and retired or the above criteria are met.

At such time as a Certificate shall be deemed to be a Defeased Certificate hereunder, and all
herein required criteria have been met, such Certificate and the interest thereon shall no longer be
outstanding or unpaid and shall no longer be entitled to the benefits of the pledge of the security interest
granted under this Ordinance, and such principal and interest shall be payable solely from the Deposit of
money or Government Obligations; provided, however, the City has reserved the option to be exercised at
the time of the defeasance of the Certificates, to call for redemption, at an earlier date, those Certificates
which have been defeased to their maturity date, if the City: (i) in the proceedings providing for the firm
banking and financial arrangements, expressly reserves the right to call the Certificates for redemption;
(ii) gives notice of the reservation of that right to the Registered Owners immediately following the
making of the firm banking and financial arrangements; and (iii) directs that notice of reservation be
included in any redemption notices that it authorizes.

(b) Any money so deposited with a Depositary may at the written direction of the City also be
invested in Government Obligations, maturing in the amounts and times as hereinbefore set forth, and all
income from such Government Obligations received by a Depositary which is not required for the
payment of the Defeased Certificates and interest thereon, with respect to which such money has been so
deposited, shall be used as directed in writing by the City.

(c) Until all Defeased Certificates shall have become due and payable, the Paying
Agent/Registrar shall perform the services of Paying Agent/Registrar for such Defeased Certificates the
same as if they had not been defeased, and the City shall make proper arrangements to provide and pay
for such services as required by this Ordinance.

Section 19. Ordinance a Contract; Amendments. This Ordinance shall constitute a contract
with the Owners, from time to time, of the Certificates, binding on the City and its successors and
assigns, and shall not be amended or repealed by the City as long as any Certificate remains outstanding
except as permitted in this Section. The City may, without the consent of or notice to any Owners,
amend, change, or modify this Ordinance as may be required (i) by the provisions hereof, (i) in
connection with the issuance of any Additional Obligations, (iii) for the purpose of curing any ambiguity,
inconsistency, or formal defect or omission herein, or (iv) in connection with any other change which is
not to the prejudice of the Owners. The City may, with the written consent of the Owners of a majority
in aggregate principal amount of Certificates then outstanding affected thereby, amend, change, modify,
or rescind any provisions of this Ordinance; provided, however, that without the consent of all of the
Owners affected, no such amendment, change, modification, or rescission shall (i) extend the time or
times of payment of the principal of and interest on the Certificates, reduce the principal amount thereof
to the rate of interest thereon, or in any other way modify the terms of payment of the principal of or
interest on Additional Obligations on a parity with the lien of the Certificates, (ii) give any preference of
any Certificate over any other Certificate, (iii) extend any waiver of default to subsequent defaults, or (iv)
reduce the aggregate principal amount of Certificates required for consent to any such amendment,
change, modification, or rescission. When the City desires to make any amendment or addition to or
rescission of this Ordinance requiring consent of the Owners, the City shall cause notice of the
amendment, addition, or rescission to be given as described above for a notice of redemption. When at
any time within one year after the date of the giving of such notice, the City shall receive an instrument
or instruments in writing executed by the appropriate number of Owners of the Certificates then
outstanding affected by any such amendment, addition, or rescission requiring the consent of Owners,

19



which instrument or instruments shall refer to the proposed amendment, addition, or rescission described
in such notice and shall specifically consent to and approve the adoption thereof in substantially the form
of the copy thereof referred to in such notice, thereupon, but not otherwise, the City may adopt such
amendment, addition, or rescission in substantially such form, except as herein provided. No Owner may
thereafter object to the adoption of such amendment, addition, or rescission, or to any of the provisions
thereof, and such amendment, addition, or rescission shall be fully effective for all purposes.

Section 20. Other Documents. The Mayor and the City Secretary are hereby authorized to
execute and attest to such other documents, certificates, letters of instruction, tax information forms, and
other agreements of any kind which, in the opinion of Bond Counsel, are necessary or advisable in order
to issue the Certificates and verify that the interest on the Certificates will be exempt from gross income
of the holders thereof under current federal tax Jaw.

Section 21. Nonpresentment of Certificates. In the event any Certificate shall not be presented
for payment when the principal thereof or interest thereon, if applicable, becomes due, either at maturity
or otherwise, or if any check or draft representing payment of principal of or interest on the Certificates
shall not be presented for payment, if funds sufficient to pay the principal of or interest on such
Certificate shall have been made available by the City to the Paying Agent/Registrar for the benefit of the
Owner thereof, all liability of the City to the Owner thereof for the payment of the principal of or interest
on such Certificate shall cease, terminate, and be completely discharged, and thereupon it shall be the
duty of the Paying Agent to hold such funds in trust, uninvested and without liability for interest thereon,
for the benefit of the Owner of such Certificate who shall thereafter be restricted exclusively to such
funds for any claim of whatever nature on his part under this Ordinance with respect to the principal of or
interest on such Certificate. To the extent applicable, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall hold and apply
any such funds in accordance with Title 6, Texas Property Code, as amended, and shall comply with the
reporting requirements of Chapter 74, Texas Property Code, as amended.

Section 22. Continuing Disclosure Undertaking. (a) Annual Reports. The City will provide
certain updated financial information and operating data to the MSRB via EMMA annually. The
information to be updated includes all quantitative financial information and operating data with respect
to the City of the general type included in the Official Statement under Tables numbered 1 through 6 and
8 through 18 authorized by Section 11 of this Ordinance. The City will update and provide this
information within six months after the end of each fiscal year ending in or after 2013. The updated
information will include audited financial statements, if the City commissions an audit and it is
completed by the required time. If audited financial statements are not available by the required time, the
City will provide unaudited financial statements by the required time, and audited financial statements
when and if such audited financial statements become available. Any such financial statements will be
prepared in accordance with the accounting principles described in Appendix B of the final Official
Statement or such other accounting principles as the City may be required to employ from time to time
pursuant to state law or regulation.

The City’s current fiscal year-end is September 30. Accordingly, it must provide updated
information by March 31 in each year, unless the City changes its fiscal year. If the City changes its
fiscal year, it will notify the MSRB through EMMA.

(b) Material Event Notices. The City will also provide timely notices of certain events to the
MSRB through EMMA. The City will provide notice of any of the following events with respect to the
Certificates, if such event is material to a decision to purchase or sell Certificates: (1) principal and
interest payment delinquencies; (2) unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial

20



difficulties; (3) unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties;
(4) substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform; (5) adverse tax opinions or the
issuance by the Internal Revenue service of proposed or final determinations of taxability, Notices of
Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB) or other material notices or determinations with respect to the tax-
exempt status of the Certificates, or other events affecting the tax exempt status of the Certificates;
(6) tender offers; (7) defeasances; (8) ratings changes; and (9) bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or
similar event of an obligated person, :

(c) Notice of Occurrence of Certain Events, If Material. The City also will notify the MSRB
through EMMA (in an electronic format as prescribed by the MSRB) within ten business days following
the occurrence of any of the following events with respect to the Certificates, if such event is material
within the meaning of the federal securities laws: (1) non-payment related defaults; (2) modifications to
rights of holders; (3) redemption calls; (4) release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of
the Certificates; (5) the consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving an obligated
person or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the obligated person, other than in the ordinary
course of business, the entry into a definitive agreement to undertake such an action or the termination of
a definitive agreement relating to any such actions, other than pursuant to its terms; and (6) appointment
of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name of a trustee.

(d) Notice of Failure to Timely File. The City also will notify the MSRB through EMMA, in a
timely manner, of any failure by the City to provide financial information or operating data in accordance
with the provisions described above.

(e) Amendments. The City may amend its continuing disclosure agreement from time to time to
adapt to changed circumstances that arise from a change in legal requirements, a change in law, or a
change in the identity, nature, status, or type of operations of the City, if (i) the agreement, as amended,
would have permitted an underwriter to purchase or sell Certificates in the offering described herein in
compliance with the Rule, taking into account any amendments or interpretations of the Rule to the date
of such amendment, as well as such changed circumstances, and (ii) either (a) the holders of a majority in
aggregate principal amount of the outstanding Certificates consent to the amendment or (b) any person
unaffiliated with the City (such as nationally recognized bond counsel) determines that the amendment
will not materially impair the interests of the holders and beneficial owners of the Certificates. The City
may also amend or repeal the provisions of this continuing disclosure agreement if the SEC amends or
repeals the applicable provisions of the Rule or a court of final jurisdiction enters judgment that such
provisions of the Rule are invalid, but only if and to the extent that the provisions of this sentence would
not prevent an underwriter from lawfully purchasing or selling Certificates in the primary offering of the
Certificates. If the City so amends the agreement, it has agreed to include with the next financial
information and operating data provided in accordance with its agreement described above under “Annual
Reports” an explanation, in narrative form, of the reasons for the amendment and of the impact of any
change in the type of financial information and operating data so provided.

(f) Limitations, Disclaimers, and Amendments. The City shall be obligated to observe and
perform the covenants specified in this Section for so long as, but only for so long as, the City remains an
“obligated person” with respect to the Certificates within the meaning of Rule 15¢2-12 (the “Rule”),
except that the City in any event will give notice of any deposit made in accordance with Section 18
above that causes the Certificates no longer to be outstanding and any call of Certificates made in
connection therewith.

21



The provisions of this Section are for the sole benefit of the Owners and beneficial owners of the
Certificates, and nothing in this Section, express or implied, shall give any benefit or any legal or
equitable right, remedy, or claim hereunder to any other person. The City undertakes to provide only the
financial information, operating data, financial statements, and notices which it has expressly agreed to
provide pursuant to this Section and does not hereby undertake to provide any other information that may
be relevant or material to a complete presentation of the City’s financial results, condition, or prospects or
hereby undertake to update any information provided in accordance with this Section or otherwise, except
as expressly provided herein. The City does not make any representation or warranty concerning such
information or its usefulness to a decision to invest in or sell Certificates at any future date.

UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL THE CITY BE LIABLE TO THE OWNER OR
BENEFICIAL OWNER OF ANY CERTIFICATE OR ANY OTHER PERSON, IN CONTRACT OR
TORT, FOR DAMAGES RESULTING IN WHOLE OR IN PART FROM ANY BREACH BY THE
CITY, WHETHER NEGLIGENT OR WITHOUT FAULT ON ITS PART, OF ANY COVENANT
SPECIFIED IN THIS SECTION, BUT EVERY RIGHT AND REMEDY OF ANY SUCH PERSON, IN
CONTRACT OR TORT, FOR OR ON ACCOUNT OF ANY SUCH BREACH SHALL BE LIMITED
TO AN ACTION FOR MANDAMUS OR SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE.

No default by the City in observing or performing its obligations under this Section shall
comprise a breach of or default under this Ordinance for purposes of any other provisions of this
Ordinance.

Nothing in this Section is intended or shall act to disclaim, waive, or otherwise limit the duties of
the City under federal and state securities laws.

The provisions of this Section may be amended, supplemented, or repealed by the City from time
to time under the following circumstances, but not otherwise: (1) to adapt to changed circumstances that
arise from a change in legal requirements, a change in law, or a change in the identity, nature, status, or
type of operations of the City, if the provisions of this Section, as so supplemented or amended, would
have permitted an underwriter to purchase or sell Certificates in the present offering in compliance with
the Rule and either the Owners of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the outstanding Certificates
consent to such amendment, supplement, or repeal, or any State agency or official determines that such
amendment, supplement, or repeal will not materially impair the interests of the beneficial owners of the
Certificates, (2) upon repeal of the applicable provisions of the Rule, or any judgment by a court of final
jurisdiction that such provisions are invalid, or (3) in any other circumstance or manner permitted by the
Rule.

Section 23. Designation as Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligations. The City hereby designates
the Certificates as “qualified tax-exempt obligations” as defined in section 265(b)(3) of the Code. In
furtherance of such designation, the-City represents, covenants, and warrants the following: (a) during
the calendar year in which the Certificates are issued, the City (including any subordinate entities) has
not designated nor will designate obligations, which when aggregated with the Certificates, will result in
more than $10,000,000 of “qualified tax-exempt obligations” being issued; (b) the City reasonably
anticipates that the amount of tax-exempt obligations issued during 2013 by the City (including any
subordinate entities) will not exceed $10,000,000; and (c) the City will take such action which would
assure, or to refrain from such action which would adversely affect, the treatment of the Certificates as
“qualified tax-exempt obligations.”

Section 24. Further Procedures. The Mayor, the City Secretary, the City Manager, the Finance
Director, the City’s Financial Advisor, and all other officers, employees, attorneys, and agents of the

22



Issuer, and each of them, shall be and they are hereby expressly authorized, empowered, and directed
from time to time and at any time to do and perform all such acts and things and to execute,
acknowledge, and deliver in the name and under the seal and on behalf of the Issuer, all such
instruments, whether or not herein mentioned, as may be necessary or desirable in order to carry out the
terms and provisions of this Ordinance, the Certificates, and the Official Statement. Prior to the initial
delivery of the Certificates, the Mayor and Bond Counsel to the Issuer are hereby authorized and directed
to approve any technical changes or corrections to this Ordinance or to any of the instruments authorized
by this Ordinance necessary in order to (i) correct any ambiguity or mistake or properly or more
completely document the transactions contemplated and approved by this Ordinance, (ii) obtain a rating
from any of the national bond rating agencies, or (iii) obtain the approval of the Certificates by the Texas
Attorney General’s office.

Section 25. Attorney General Examination Fee. The City recognizes that under Section
1202.004, Texas Government Code, as amended by Senate Bill 495, Acts of the 79" Legislature Regular
Session, 2005, the Attorney General of Texas requires a nonrefundable examination fee be paid at the
time of submission of the transcript of the proceedings authorizing the Certificates and that, based upon
the principal amount of the Certificates, such fee is [$4,275,000.00.] Bond Counsel is accommodating
the City by paying such fee upon such submission of such transcript. Officials of the City are, however,
hereby authorized to reimburse Bond Counsel such amount as soon as possible and whether or not the
Certificates are ever delivered and such amount is hereby appropriated from available funds for such
purpose. The City is also authorized to reimburse the fund used for such repayment with proceeds of the
Certificates. '

Section 26. Miscellaneous Provisions. (a) General. Except where the context otherwise
requires, words importing the singular number shall include the plural number and vice versa; words
importing the masculine gender shall include the feminine and neuter genders and vice versa. Reference
to any document means that document as amended or supplemented from time to time. Reference to any
party to a document means that party and its successors and assigns. Reference herein to any article,
section, subsection or other subdivision, as applicable, unless specifically stated otherwise, means the
article, section, subsection or other subdivision, as applicable, of this Ordinance.

(b) Incorporation of Preamble. The preamble and recitals to this Ordinance are incorporated by
reference in this Ordinance.

(c) Titles Not Restrictive. The titles assigned to the various sections of this Ordinance are for
convenience only and shall not be considered restrictive of the subject matter of any section or of any
part of this Ordinance.

(d) Inconsistent Provisions. All orders and resolutions, or parts thereof, which are in conflict or
inconsistent with any provision of this Ordinance are hereby repealed and declared to be inapplicable, and
the provisions of this Ordinance shall be and remain controlling as to the matters prescribed herein.

(e) Severability. If any word, phrase, clause, paragraph, sentence, part, portion, or provision of
this Ordinance or the application thereof to any person or circumstances shall be held to be invalid, the
remainder of this Ordinance shall nevertheless be valid and the City hereby declares that this Ordinance
would have been enacted without such invalid word, phrase, clause, paragraph, sentence, part, portion, or
provisions.

(f) Governing Law. This Ordinance shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws
of the State of Texas.

23



(g) Open Meeting. The City officially finds and determines the meeting at which this Ordinance
is adopted was open to the public and that public notice of the time, place, and purpose of such meeting
was given, all as required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code.

(h) Immediate Effect. Notwithstanding any City Charter provision or other rule requiring
ordinances to be read at more than one meeting, this Ordinance is passed as an emergency measure and
shall take effect immediately and be in full force and effect from and after its passage on the date shown
below.

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF KINGSVILLE,
TEXAS this January 14, 2013.

/s/_Mary Valenzuela /s/ _Sam Fugate
City Secretary Mayor
City of Kingsville, Texas City of Kingsville, Texas

24



PASSED AND APPROVED by a majority vote of the City Commission on the
day of , 2013. »

Sam R. Fugate, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney



EXHIBIT A
Purchase Contract

The Purchase Contract can be found in executed form at Tab 4.

A



EXHIBIT B
PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR AGREEMENT

THIS PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR AGREEMENT entered into as of October 1, 2012 (this
“Agreement”), by and between the CITY OF KINGSVILLE, TEXAS (the “Issuer”), and THE BANK OF
NEW YORK MELLON TRUST COMPANY, N.A., Houston, Texas, a banking association duly
organized and existing under the laws of the United States of America (the “Bank”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Issuer has duly authorized and provided for the issuance of its “City of
Kingsville, Texas Certificates of Obligation, Series 2013” (the “Securities”), such Securities to be issued
in fully registered form only as to the payment of principal and interest thereon;

WHEREAS, the Securities are scheduled to be delivered to the initial purchasers thereof as
provided in the “Order” (hereinafter defined);

WHEREAS, the Issuer has selected the Bank to serve as Paying Agent/Registrar in connection
with the payment of the principal of and interest on the Securities and with respect to the registration,
transfer, and exchange thereof by the Owners thereof;

WHEREAS, the Bank has agreed to serve in such capacities for and on behalf of the Issuer and
has full power and authority to perform and serve as Paying Agent/Registrar for the Securities;

NOW, THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed as follows:
ARTICLE I. APPOINTMENT OF BANK AS PAYING AGENT AND REGISTRAR

Section 1.01. Appointment. The Issuer hereby appoints the Bank to serve as Paying Agent with
respect to the Securities. As Paying Agent for the Securities, the Bank shall be responsible for paying on
behalf of the Issuer the principal and interest on the Securities as the same become due and payable to the
Owners thereof, all in accordance with this Agreement and the Order.

The Issuer hereby appoints the Bank as Registrar with respect to the Securities. As Registrar for
the Securities, the Bank shall keep and maintain for and on behalf of the Issuer books and records as to
the ownership of said Securities and with respect to the transfer and exchange thereof as provided herein
and in the Order.

The Bank hereby accepts its appointment, and agrees to serve as the Paying Agent and Registrar
for the Securities.

Section 1.02. Compensation. As compensation for the Bank’s services as Paying
Agent/Registrar, the Issuer hereby agrees to pay the Bank the fees and amounts set forth in Schedule “A”
attached hereto for the first year of this Agreement and thereafter the fees and amounts set forth in the
Bank’s current fee schedule then in effect for services as Paying Agent/Registrar for municipalities,
which shall be supplied to the Issuer on or before 90 days prior to the close of the Fiscal Year of the
Issuer, and shall be effective upon the first day of the following Fiscal Year.

In addition, the Issuer agrees to reimburse the Bank upon its request for all reasonable expenses,
disbursements, and advances incurred or made by the Bank in accordance with any of the provisions



hereof (including the reasonable compensation and the expenses and disbursements of its agents and
counsel).

ARTICLE II. DEFINITIONS

Section 2.01. Definitions. For all purposes of this Agreement, except as otherwise expressly
provided or unless the context otherwise requires:

“Bank Office” means the designated corporate trust office of the Bank as indicated on the
signature page hereof. The Bank will notify the Issuer in writing of any change in location of the Bank
Office.

“Financial Advisor” means Public Financial Management, Inc., Austin, Texas.
“Fiscal Year” means the fiscal year of the Issuer, ending September 30.

“Holder” and “Security Holder” each means the Person in whose name a Security is registered in
the Security Register.

“Issuer Request” and “Issuer Order” means a written request or order signed in the name of the
Issuer by its Mayor Judge, Director of Finance, or City Secretary, or any one or more of said officials, and
delivered to the Bank.

“Legal Holiday” means a day on which the Bank is required or authorized to be closed.

“Order” means the order of the governing body of the Issuer pursuant to which the Securities are
issued, certified by the City Secretary or any other officer of the Issuer and delivered to the Bank.

“Person” means any individual, corporation, partnership, joint venture, association, joint stock
company, trust, unincorporated organization, or government or any agency or political subdivision of a
government,

“Predecessor Securities” of any particular Security means every previous Security evidencing all
or a portion of the same obligation as that evidenced by such particular Security (and, for the purposes of
this definition, any mutilated, lost, destroyed, or stolen Security for which a replacement Security has
been registered and delivered in lieu thereof pursuant to Section 4.06 hereof and the Order).

“Redemption Date” when used with respect to any Bond to be redeemed means the date fixed for
such redemption pursuant to the terms of the Order.

“Responsible Officer” when used with respect to the Bank means the Chairman or Vice-
Chairman of the Board of Directors, the Chairman or Vice-chairman of the Executive Committee of the
Board of Directors, the President, any Vice President, the Secretary, any Assistant Secretary, the
Treasurer, any Assistant Treasurer, the Cashier, any Assistant Cashier, any Trust Officer or Assistant
Trust Officer, or any other officer of the Bank customarily performing functions similar to those
performed by any of the above designated officers and also means, with respect to a particular corporate
trust matter, any other officer to whom such matter is referred because of his knowledge of and familiarity
with the particular subject.

“Security Register” means a register maintained by the Bank on behalf of the Issuer providing for
the registration and transfer of the Securities.



“Stated Maturity” means the date specified in the Order the principal of a Security is scheduled to
be due and payable.

Section 2.02. Other Definitions. The terms “Bank”, “Issuer”, and “Securities (Security)” have
the meanings assigned to them in the recital paragraphs of this Agreement.

The term “Paying Agent/Registrar” refers to the Bank in the performance of the duties and
functions of this Agreement.

ARTICLE III. PAYING AGENT

Section 3.01. Duties of Paying Agent. As Paying Agent, the Bank shall, provided adequate
collected funds have been provided to it for such purpose by or on behalf of the Issuer, pay on behalf of
the Issuer the principal of each Security at its Stated Maturity, Redemption Date, or Acceleration Date, to
the Holder upon surrender of the Security to the Bank at the Bank Office.

As Paying Agent, the Bank shall, provided adequate collected funds have been provided to it for
such purpose by or on behalf of the Issuer, pay on behalf of the Issuer the interest on each Security when
due, by computing the amount of interest to be paid each Holder and preparing and sending checks by
United States mail, first class postage prepaid, on each payment date, to the Holders of the Securities (or
their Predecessor Securities) on the respective Record Date, to the address appearing on the Security
Register or by such other method, acceptable to the Bank, requested in writing by the Holder at the
Holder’s risk and expense.

Section 3.02. Payment Dates. The Issuer hereby instructs the Bank to pay the principal of and
interest on the Securities on the dates specified in the Order.

ARTICLE IV. REGISTRAR

Section 4.01. Security Register - Transfers and Exchanges. The Bank agrees to keep and
maintain for and on behalf of the Issuer at the Bank Office books and records (herein sometimes referred
to as the “Security Register”) for recording the names and addresses of the Holders of the Securities, the
transfer, exchange, and replacement of the Securities, and the payment of the principal of and interest on
the Securities to the Holders and containing such other information as may be reasonably required by the
Issuer and subject to such reasonable regulations as the Issuer and the Bank may prescribe. All transfers,
exchanges, and replacement of Securities shall be noted in the Security Register.

Every Security surrendered for transfer or exchange shall be duly endorsed or be accompanied by
a written instrament of transfer, the signature on which has been guaranteed by an officer of a federal or
state bank or a member of the National Association of Securities Dealers, in form satisfactory to the
Bank, duly executed by the Holder thereof or his agent duly authorized in writing.

The Bank may request any supporting documentation it feels necessary to effect a re-registration,
transfer, or exchange of the Securities.

To the extent possible and under reasonable circumstances, the Bank agrees that, in relation to an
exchange or transfer of Securities, the exchange or transfer by the Holders thereof will be completed and
new Securities delivered to the Holder or the assignee of the Holder in not more than three business days
after the receipt of the Securities to be cancelled in an exchange or transfer and the written instrument of
transfer or request for exchange duly executed by the Holder, or his duly authorized agent, in form and
manner satisfactory to the Paying Agent/Registrar.



Section 4.02. Certificates. The Issuer shall provide an adequate inventory of printed Security
certificates to facilitate transfers or exchanges thereof. The Bank covenants that the inventory of printed
Security certificates will be kept in safekeeping pending their use, and reasonable care will be exercised
by the Bank in maintaining such certificates in safekeeping, which shall be not less than the care
maintained by the Bank for debt securities of other political subdivisions or corporations for which it
serves as registrar, or that is maintained for its own securities.

Section 4.03. Form of Security Register. The Bank, as Registrar, will maintain the Security
Register relating to the registration, payment, transfer, and exchange of the Securities in accordance with
the Bank’s general practices and procedures in effect from time to time. The Bank shall not be obligated
to maintain such Security Register in any form other than those which the Bank has currently available
and currently utilizes at the time.

The Security Register may be maintained in written form or in any other form capable of being
converted into written form within a reasonable time.

Section 4.04. List of Security Holders. The Bank will provide the Issuer at any time requested
by the Issuer, upon payment of the required fee, a copy of the information contained in the Security
Register. The Issuer may also inspect the information contained in the Security Register at any time the
Bank is customarily open for business, provided that reasonable time is allowed the Bank to provide an
up-to-date listing or to convert the information into written form.

Unless required by law, the Bank will not release or disclose the contents of the Security Register
to any person other than to, or at the written request of, an authorized officer or employee of the Issuer,
except upon receipt of a court order or as otherwise required by law. Upon receipt of a court order and
prior to the release or disclosure of the contents of the Security Register, the Bank will notify the Issuer so
that the Issuer may contest the court order or such release or disclosure of the contents of the Security
Register.

Section 4.05. Return of Cancelled Certificates. The Bank will, at such reasonable intervals as
it determines, surrender to the Issuer, Securities in lieu of which or in exchange for which other Securities
have been issued, or which have been paid.

Section 4.06. Mutilated, Destroyed, Lost, or Stolen Securities. The Issuer hereby instructs the
Bank, subject to the applicable provisions of the Order, to deliver and issue Securities in exchange for or
in lieu of mutilated, destroyed, lost, or stolen Securities as long as the same does not result in an over
issuance.

In case any Security shall be mutilated, or destroyed, lost, or stolen, the Bank, in its discretion,
may execute and deliver a replacement Security of like form and tenor, and in the same denomination and
' bearing a number not contemporaneously outstanding, in exchange and substitution for such mutilated
Security, or in lieu of and in substitution for such destroyed, lost, or stolen Security, only after (i) the
filing by the Holder thereof with the Bank of evidence satisfactory to the Bank of the destruction, loss, or
theft of such Security, and of the authenticity of the ownership thereof and (ii) the furnishing to the Bank
of indemnification in an amount satisfactory to hold the Issuer and the Bank harmless. All expenses and
charges associated with such indemnity and with the preparation, execution, and delivery of a
replacement Security shall be borne by the Holder of the Security mutilated, or destroyed, lost, or stolen.

Section 4.07. Transaction Information to Issuer. The Bank will, within a reasonable time
after receipt of written request from the Issuer, furnish the Issuer information as to the Securities it has
paid pursuant to Section 3.01, Securities it has delivered upon the transfer or exchange of any Securities



pursuant to Section 4.01, and Securities it has delivered in exchange for or in lieu of mutilated, destroyed,
lost, or stolen Securities pursuant to Section 4.06.

ARTICLE V. THE BANK

Section 5.01. Duties of Bank. The Bank undertakes to perform the duties set forth herein and
agrees to use reasonable care in the performance thereof. '

The Bank is also authorized to transfer funds relating to the closing and initial delivery of the
Securities in the manner disclosed in the closing memorandum approved by the Issuer as prepared by the
Issuer’s Financial Advisor or other agent. The Bank may act on a facsimile or e-mail transmission of the
closing memorandum acknowledged by the Financial Advisor or the Issuer as the final closing
memorandum. The Bank shall not be liable for any losses, costs, ot expenses arising directly or indirectly
from the Bank’s reliance upon and compliance with such instructions.

Section 5.02. Reliance on Documents, Etc. (a) The Bank may conclusively rely, as to the truth

of the statements and correctness of the opinions expressed therein, on certificates or opinions furnished
to the Bank.

The Bank shall not be liable for any error of judgment made in good faith by a Responsible
Officer, unless it shall be proved that the Bank was negligent in ascertaining the pertinent facts.

No provisions of this Agreement shall require the Bank to expend or risk its own funds or
otherwise incur any financial liability for performance of any of its duties hereunder, or in the exercise of
any of its rights or powers, if it shall have reasonable grounds for believing that repayment of such funds
or adequate indemnity satisfactory to it against such risks or liability is not assured to it.

The Bank may rely and shall be protected in acting or refraining from acting upon any resolution,
certificate, statement, instrument, opinion, report, notice, request, direction, consent, order, bond, note,
security, or other paper or document believed by it to be genuine and to have been signed or presented by
the proper party or parties. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing statement, the Bank need not
examine the ownership of any Securities, but is protected in acting upon receipt of Securities containing
an endorsement or instruction of transfer or power of transfer which appears on its face to be signed by
the Holder or an agent of the Holder. The Bank shall not be bound to make any investigation into the
facts or matters stated in a resolution, certificate, statement, instrument, opinion, report, notice, request,
direction, consent, order, bond, note, security, or other paper or document supplied by the Issuer.

The Bank may consult with counsel, and the written advice of such counsel or any opinion of
counsel shall be full and complete authorization and protection with respect to any action taken, suffered,
or omitted by it hereunder in good faith and in reliance thereon.

The Bank may exercise any of the powers hereunder and perform any duties hereunder either
directly or by or through agents or attorneys of the Bank.

Section 5.03. Recitals of Issuer. The recitals contained herein with respect to the Issuer and in
the Securities shall be taken as the statements of the Issuer, and the Bank assumes no responsibility for
their correctness.

The Bank shall in no event be liable to the Issuer, any Holder or Holders of any Security, or any
other Person for any amount due on any Security from its own funds.



Section 5.04. May Hold Securities. The Bank, in its individual or any other capacity, may
become the owner or pledgee of Securities and may otherwise deal with the Issuer with the same rights it
would have if it were not the Paying Agent/Registrar, or any other agent.

Section 5.05. Money Held by Bank. A special depository account shall at all times be kept and
maintained by the Bank for the receipt, safekeeping, and disbursement of money received from the Issuer
and held hereunder for the payment of the Securities, and money deposited to the credit of such account
until paid to the Holders of the Securities, to the extent permitted by law, shall be continuously
collateralized by securities or obligations which qualify and are eligible under the laws of the State of
Texas to secure and be pledged as collateral for deposits of public funds by an instrumentality and
political subdivision of the State of Texas to the extent that such money is not insured by the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation. Payments made from such account shall be made by check drawn on
such account unless the owner of such Securities shall, at its own expense and risk, request such other
medium of payment.

All funds at any time and from time to time provided to or held by the Bank hereunder shall be
deemed, construed, and considered for all purposes as being provided to or held by the Bank in trust. The
Bank acknowledges, covenants, and represents that it is acting herein in trust in relation to such funds,
and is not accepting, holding, administering, or applying such funds as a banking depository, but solely as
a paying agent for and on behalf of the Security thereto. The Holders shall be entitled to the same
preferred claim and first lien on the funds so provided as are enjoyed by the beneficiaries of trust funds
generally. The funds provided to the Bank hereunder shall not be subject to warrants, drafts, or checks
drawn by the Issuer and, except as expressly provided herein, shall not be subject to compromise, setoff,
or other charge or diminution by the Bank. '

The Bank shall be under no liability for interest on any money received by it hereunder.

Subject to the unclaimed property laws of the State of Texas and any provisions in the Order to
the contrary, any money deposited with the Bank for the payment of the principal, premium (if any), or
interest on any Security and remaining unclaimed for three years after final maturity of the Security has
become due and payable will be paid by the Bank to the Issuer, and the Holder of such Security shall
thereafter look only to the Issuer for payment thereof, and all liability of the Bank with respect to such
money shall thereupon cease. If the Issuer does not elect, the Bank is directed to report and dispose of the
funds in compliance with Title 6 of the Texas Property Code, as amended.

Section 5.06. Indemnification. To the extent permitted by law, the Issuer agrees to indemnify
the Bank for, and hold it harmless against, any loss, liability, or expense incurred without negligence or
bad faith on its part, arising out of or in connection with its acceptance or administration of its duties
~ hereunder, including the cost and expense against any claim or liability in connection with the exercise or
performance of any of its powers or duties under this Agreement.

Section 5.07. Interpleader. The Issuer and the Bank agree that the Bank may seek adjudication
of any adverse claim, demand, or confroversy over its person as well as funds on deposit, in either a
Federal or State District Court located in the State and Issuer where the administrative offices of the
Issuer are located, and agree that service of process by certified or registered mail, return receipt
requested, to the address referred to in Section 6.03 of this Agreement shall constitute adequate service.
The Issuer and the Bank further agree that the Bank has the right to file a Bill of Interpleader in any court
of competent jurisdiction in the State of Texas to determine the rights of any Person claiming any interest
herein.



Section 5.08. Depository Trust Company Services. It is hereby represented and warranted
that, in the event the Securities are otherwise qualified and accepted for “Depository Trust Company”
services or equivalent depository trust services by other organizations, the Bank has the capability and, to
the extent within its control, will comply with the “Operational Arrangements”, currently in effect, which
establishes requirements for securities to be eligible for such type depository trust services, including, but
not limited to, requirements for the timeliness of payments and funds availability, transfer turnaround
time, and notification of redemptions and calls.

Section 5.09. Reporting Requirements of Paying Agent/Registrar. To the extent required by
the Code and the regulations promulgated and pertaining thereto, it shall be the duty of the Paying
Agent/Registrar, on behalf of the Issuer, to report to the owners of the Securities and the Internal Revenue
Service (i) the amount of “reportable payments”, if any, subject to backup withholding during each year
and the amount of tax withheld, if any, with respect to payments of the Securities and (ii) the amount of
interest or amount treating as interest on the Securities and required to be included in gross income of the
owner thereof. :

ARTICLE VI. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS |

Section 6.01. Amendment. This Agreement may be amended only by an agreement in writing
signed by both of the parties hereto.

Section 6.02. Assignment. This Agreement may not be assigned by either party without the
prior written consent of the other.

Section 6.03. Notices. Any request, demand, authorization, direction, notice, consent, waiver, or
other document provided or permitted hereby to be given or furnished to the Issuer or the Bank shall be
mailed or delivered to the Issuer or the Bank, respectively, at the addresses shown on the signature page
of this Agreement.

Section 6.04. Effect of Headings. The Article and Section headings herein are for convenience
only and shall not affect the construction hereof.

Section 6.05. Successors and Assigns. All covenants and agreements herein made by the Issuer
shall bind its successors and assigns, whether so expressed or not.

Section 6.06. Severability., In case any provision herein shall be invalid, illegal, or
unenforceable, the validity, legality, and enforceability of the remaining provisions shall not in any way
be affected or impaired thereby. '

Section 6.07. Benefits of Agreement. Nothing herein, express or implied, shall give to any
Person, other than the parties hereto and their successors hereunder, any benefit or any legal or equitable
right, remedy, or claim hereunder.

Section 6.08. Entire Agreement. This Agreement and the Order constitute the entire agreement
between the parties hereto relative to the Bank acting as Paying Agent/Registrar and if any conflict exists
between this Agreement and the Order, the Order shall govern.

Section 6.09. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts,
each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which shall constitute one and the same Agreement.



Section 6.10. Termination. This Agreement will terminate (i) on the date of final payment of
the principal of and interest on the Securities to the Holders thereof or (ii) may be earlier terminated by
either party upon 60 days written notice; provided, however, an early termination of this Agreement by
either party shall not be effective until (a) a successor Paying Agent/Registrar has been appointed by the
Issuer and such appointment accepted and (b) notice has been given to the Holders of the Securities of
the appointment of a successor Paying Agent/Registrar. Furthermore, the Bank and Issuer mutually agree
that the effective date of an early termination of this Agreement shall not occur at any time which would
disrupt, delay, or otherwise adversely affect the payment of the Securities.

Upon an early termination of this Agreement, the Bank agrees to promptly transfer and deliver
the Security Register (or a copy thereof), together with other pertinent books and records relating to the
Securities, to the successor Paying Agent/Registrar designated and appointed by the Issuer.

The provisions of Section 1.02 and of Article Five shall survive and remain in full force and
effect following the termination of this Agreement.

Section 6.11. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with and
governed by the laws of the State of Texas.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF,

year first above written.

Attest:

By

the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the day and

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON TRUST
COMPANY, N.A.
Houston, Texas

By

Title
Address: 601 Travis
Floor 16
Houston, Texas 77002

CITY OF KINGSVILLE, TEXAS

By

City Secretary

(ISSUER SEAL)

Mayor
Address: 200 East Kleberg Avenue
Kingsville, Texas 78363

SIGNATURE PAGE OF PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR AGREEMENT



SCHEDULE A
Paying Agent/Registrar Fee Schedule

[TO COME]

A-1

102614v.2



AGENDA ITEM #11



ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF CITY OF KINGSVILLE, TEXAS
LIMITED TAX REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2013; A PURCHASE CONTRACT; A

PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR AGREEMENT; AND APPROVING ALL OTHER
MATTERS RELATED THERETO




Section 1.
Section 2.
Section 3.
Section 4.
Section 5.
Section 6.
Section 7.
Section 8.
Section 9.

Section 10.
Section 11.
Section 12.
Section 13.
Section 14.
Section 15.
Section 16.
Section 17.
Section 18.
Section 19.
Section 20.
Section 21.
Section 22.
Section 23.
Section 24.
Section 25.
Section 26.
Section 27.
Section 28.

Schedule I

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page

Authorization 0F the BONAS ....viiiveieiiiiiiieiinrriressesesriesiessrasseerssssosessssssessesansssssssiessesssonsesseens 1
Date, Denominations, Nuinbers, and Maturities of and Interest on the Bonds.......ccoecveriiinnn 1
General CharaCteriSHES viivuiireiiireieerriireirrerinesireieeseeesreesrnessressnsssssresestesstessseorsaessnssstesssssesasnsses 2
FOTM OF the BOMGAS.c.ucievvviieiiieriieresesesiesesessas s essesesssesessesasesasesesssesessesssesssseseassssessassosensssmsssonses 3
DD INTtIONS et eeveerereisierisresteeseesteestessrestserssrsessessessesressseehsssnrabs e tearesbnsrboseesbessassnsssesnesssrsintesrasnsenees 10
CIEY FUNA 1ottt bbb bbb bbb 12
Perfection OF SECUTILY...vivereeeereerierereisresesiesese s boe ettt sr b srer bbb s b e s bt e s s b e eb s e b et s s annsrassasaans 12
Investments and SECUIILY ...viviveeiririirer sttt s s b ebe s a s sre s s be e b e nens 12
CoVENANTS OF the ISSUET ..viiviieiiiiree et ertesrerreres e ressbbssteernesraes o ereosnsiressesstssassrernsessssissenbesrisseesses 13
Paying Agent/REGISIIAL ...c.oovveivvciiiitiiiiiiii e 15
Successor Registrar, Successor Paying AZEnt ..o 16
Initial Bond; Exchange or Transfer of Bonds .......ccciciiiiiiiiimnc i, 16
Sale of the Bonds; Approval of Purchase Contract.......coouiiiiiiiimiieiinenn, 17
Book-Entry Only SYStEIM ...c.cccvviiiiiiiiiiiiii s ssesesiesesesens 18
ISSUET OffiCErs’ DUIES cuiivveeriiririrereeriesineeneneerissis s ssee e s sbs s sanenee s cereeeereenes 18
REMEAIES OF OWIIELS 11eeveiveirieereereireeresieseesreiressbesreessesssessessssraesssbessssassresnesassessessrasasssssessenses 19
Lost, Stolen, Destroyed, Damaged, or Mutilated Bonds; Destruction of Paid Bonds ............ 19
REAEIMPIION 11vuveverrereievereseseerescese s e b b s b sa bbb e e b e a e b et ek a e eb b ebetnas 20
DIELEASATICE 1uvvivvreerirrieriirreessreesressbaesssessbatbessbesaresbesesebrasesesssssabe s bt sbb bR s s ora e sh b e bR b bs bR b e e R e e sabsenbesans 20
Ordinance a Contract; AMENAIMENTS ..ovviivrirciireereeirrenreernrrvses it esrre s srseseseses 21
TUSE OF PIOCEEAS. civireireicrireriiscteerreettreserebessiesaeseees s sraeseessbsesshessmesabesrbsosnsernssbbbesesbesenbearanasnansns 21
Matters Related to ReFUNAING cvovvvevveeneninnniinie i s 22
Continuing Disclosure Undertaking......ccoviiriiiiniriimiiiemiir s s snesnisssessesens 22
Designation as Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligations ......cccovevviviiiiiininiincnnnns 24
Attorney General Examination Fee.......covviiinniiininn, ettt etenens 24
FUIET PTOCEAUIES 1vcvviivveivee i vreereree e cresereetrenstesiaeesbaesbaessbeesaeesanesbessnesareesntssbaeosarasants senbesnssntas 24
Nonpresentment 0f Bonds......cvivviiiiiiiiie e 24
MiSCELANEOUS PrOVISIONS ..vvteireirreerreirserreeseeseesreesaesstresseessuesariiesisseesrsesntsssnresvssessressssnsassnes 25

—Refunded Obligations

Exhibit A — Purchase Contract

Exhibit B —~ Paying Agent/Registrar Agreement

Exhibit C — Notice of Redemption

Exhibit D — Description of Annual Financial Information
Exhibit E — Escrow Deposit Letter



ORDINANCE NO. 2013-

ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF CITY OF KINGSVILLE,
TEXAS LIMITED TAX REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2013; A PURCHASE
CONTRACT; A PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR AGREEMENT; AND
APPROVING ALL OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO

WHEREAS, the City of Kingsville, Texas (the “Issuer”, or the “City”) has been organized,
created, and established pursuant to the laws of the State of Texas as a municipal corporation and political
subdivision of the State of Texas;

WHEREAS, the City Commission desires to refund the outstanding obligations in Schedule I
attached hereto (collectively, the “Refunded Obligations”);

WHEREAS, the City Commission of the Issuer deems it necessary and desirable to proceed with
the issuance of the bonds described herein to refund the Refunded Obligations;

WHEREAS, Chapter 1207, Texas Government Code, as amended (“Chapter 1207”), authorizes
the Jssuer to issue refunding bonds and to deposit the proceeds from the sale thereof, and any other
available funds or resources, directly with a trust company or commercial bank not a depository of the
Issuer, and such deposit, if made before such payment dates, shall constitute the making of firm banking
and financial arrangements for the discharge and final payment of the Refunded Obligations;

WHEREAS, the City Commission of the Issuer hereby finds and declares a public purpose and
deems it advisable to refund the Refunded Obligations in order to lower the overall debt service
requirements of the City and the terms of the Bonds (defined herein) are the most reasonably available
and in the best interest of the City; and

WHEREAS, all the Refunded Obligations mature or are subject to redemption prior to maturity
within 20 years of the date of the bonds hereinafter authorized;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF
KINGSVILLE TEXAS THAT:

Section 1. Authorization of the Bonds. There is hereby ordered to be issued, under and by
virtue of the laws of the State of Texas, including particularly Chapter 1207, Texas Government Code, as
amended, a series of bonds of the Issuer to be known as “CITY OF KINGSVILLE, TEXAS LIMITED
TAX REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2013” (the “Bonds”), payable from ad valorem taxes as provided
in this Ordinance, for the purposes described in the “Form of Bonds™ contained in Section 4 hereof.

Section 2. Date, Denominations, Numbers, and Maturities of and Interest on the Bonds.
The Bonds shall be dated January 1, 2013 and shall be in the denomination of $5,000 or any integral
multiple thereof. Interest shall commence to accrue on the Bonds from the date of delivery. The Bonds
shall be in the respective denominations and principal amounts hereinafter stated, with the Initial Bond (as
hereinafter defined) being number I-1 and the Definitive Bonds (as hereinafter defined) numbered
consecutively from R-1 upward, payable to the Underwriter (as hereinafter defined), or to the registered
assigned or assignees of the Bonds or any portion or portions thereof (in each case, the “Registered
Owner™).



The Bonds will mature on August 1 in each of the years as provided below and will bear interest at
the rates per annum shown below from the date of delivery and payable on February 1, 2014 and on each
August 1 and February 1 thereafter through the respective maturity date or earlier redemption, to wit:

Years of Years of

Stated Principal Interest Stated Principal Interest
Maturities  Installment Rate Maturities Installment Rate

2014 $135,000 2019 $ 95,000

2015 145,000 2020 100,000

2016 150,000 2021 95,000

2017 165,000 2022 100,000

2018 175,000 2023 105,000

Section 3. General Characteristics. The Bonds shall be issued, shall be payable, shall have the
characteristics, and shall be signed and executed (and the Bonds shall be sealed) all as provided, and in
the manner indicated in the form set forth below.

(a) Registration, Transfer, and Exchange; Authentication: The Issuer shall keep or cause to be
kept at the designated payment office of THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON TRUST COMPANY,
N.A., Dallas, Texas (thé “Paying Agent/Registrar’) books or records for the registration of the transfer
and exchange of the Bonds (the “Registration Books”), and the Issuer hereby appoints the Paying
Agent/Registrar as its registrar and transfer agent to keep such books or records and make such
registrations of transfers and exchanges under such reasonable regulations as the Issuer and Paying
Agent/Registrar may prescribe; and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall make such registrations, transfers,
and exchanges as herein provided. The Mayor and the City Secretary are authorized to enter into a
Paying Agent/Registrar Agreement substantially in the form of Exhibit B attached hereto. The Paying
Agent/Registrar shall obtain and record in the Registration Books the address of the registered owner of
each Bond to which payments with respect to the Bonds shall be mailed, as herein provide; but it shall be
the duty of each registered owner to notify the Paying Agent/Registrar in writing of the address to which
payments shall be mailed, and such interest payments shall not be mailed unless such notice has been
given. To the extent possible and under reasonable circumstances, all transfers of the Bonds shall be
made within three business days after request and presentation thereof. The Issuer shall have the right to
inspect the Registration Books during the regular business hours of the Paying Agent/Registrar, but
otherwise the Paying Agent/Registrar shall keep the Registration Books confidential and, unless
otherwise required by law, shall not permit their inspection by any other entity. The Paying
Agent/Registrar’s standard or customary fees and charges for making such registration, transfer,
exchange, and delivery of a substitute Bond or Bonds shall be paid as provided in the “Formn of Bonds”
set forth in this Ordinance. Registration of assignments, transfers, and exchanges of Bonds shall be made
in the manner provided and with the effect stated in the “Form of Bonds” set forth in this Ordinance.
Each substitute Bond shall bear a letter and/or number to distinguish it from each other Bond.

Except as provided in subsection (c) below, an authorized representative of the Paying
Agent/Registrar shall, before the delivery of any such Bond, date and manually sign the Paying
Agent/Registrar’s Authentication Certificate, and no such Bond shall be deemed to be issued or outstanding
unless such Authentication Certificate is so executed, The Paying Agent/Registrar promptly shall cancel all
paid Bonds and Bonds surrendered for transfer and exchange. No additional ordinances, orders, or
resolutions need be passed or adopted by the governing body of the Issuer or any other body or person so as
to accomplish the forgoing transfer and exchange of any Bond or portion thereof, and the Paying

2



Agent/Registrar shall provide for the printing, execution, and delivery of the substitute Bonds. Pursuant to
Chapter 1201, Texas Government Code, as amended, the duty of transfer and exchange of Bonds as
aforesaid is hereby imposed upon the Paying Agent/Registrar, and upon the execution of said certificate, the
transferred and exchanged Bond shall be valid, incontestable, and enforceable in the same manner and with
the same effect as the Bonds which initially were issued and delivered pursuant to this Order, approved by
the Attorney General, and registered by the Comptroller of Public Accounts (the “Initial Bond”).

(b) Payment of Bonds and Interest. ~The Issuer hereby further appoints the Paying
Agent/Registrar to act as the paying agent for paying the principal of and interest on the Bonds, all as
provided in this Ordinance. The Paying Agent/Registrar shall keep proper records of all payments made
by the Issuer and the Paying Agent/Registrar with respect to the Bonds. -

(¢) In General. The Bonds (i) shall be issued in fully registered form, without interest coupons,
with the principal of and interest on such Bonds to be payable only to the registered owners thereof; (ii)
may be transferred and assigned; (iii) may be exchanged for other Bonds; (iv) shall be administered, and
the Paying Agent/Registrar and the Issuer shall have certain duties and responsibilities with respect to the
Bonds, all as provided, and in the manner and to the effect as required or indicated, in the “Form of
Bonds” set forth in this Ordinance. The Initial Bond shall be delivered to the Purchaser and is not
required to be, and shall not be, authenticated by the Paying Agent/Registrar, but on each Bond issued in
exchange for the Initial Bond or any Bond or Bonds issued under this Order, the Paying Agent/Registrar
shall execute the Paying Agent/Registrar’s Authentication Certificate, in the form set forth in the “Form
of Bonds” in this Ordinance.

Section 4. Form of the Bonds. The Form of the Bonds, including the Form of Paying
Agent/Registrar’s Authentication Certificate, the Form of Assignment, and the Form of the Comptroller’s
Registration Certificate to accompany the Initial Bond on the initial delivery thereof, shall be,
respectively, substantially as follows, with such appropriate variations, omissions, or insertions as are
permitted or required by this Ordinance:

FORM OF BONDS

United States of America
State of Texas
CITY OF KINGSVILLE, TEXAS
LIMITED TAX REFUNDING BOND, SERIES 2013

[FORM OF FACE OF THE DEFINITIVE BONDS]

NUMBER DENOMINATION
R- : $
REGISTERED REGISTERED
INTEREST DATED MATURITY
RATE DATE DATE CUSIP NO.
% January 1, 2013



REGISTERED OWNER: 'CEDE & CO.

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: DOLLARS ($ )

THE CITY OF KINGSVILLE, TEXAS (the “Issuer”), a municipal corporation and political
subdivision of the State of Texas, promises to pay to the Registered Owner, specified above, or registered
assignees (the “Registered Owner”) on the Maturity Date, specified above, upon presentation and surrender
of this Bond at the designated payment office of THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON TRUST
COMPANY, N.A., Dallas, Texas, or its successor (the “Paying Agent/Registrar”), the Principal Amount,
specified above, in lawful money of the United States of America, and to pay interest thereon at the Interest
Rate, specified above, calculated on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months, from the later of
the date of initial delivery, or the most recent interest payment date to which interest has been paid or duly
provided for. Interest on this Bond is payable by check each August 1 and February 1, commencing August
1, 2013, mailed to the Registered Owner of record as shown on the books of registration kept by the Paying
Agent/Registrar (the “Register”), as of the date which is the last business day of the month next preceding
the interest payment date or in such other manner as may be acceptable to the Registered Owner and the
Paying Agent/Registrar. Notwithstanding the above paying procedures, upon written request to the Issuer
and the Paying Agent/Registrar, the Registered Owner of at least $1,000,000 in principal amount may
receive all payments of principal and interest hereon by wire transfer on each payment date. CUSIP number
identification with appropriate dollar amount of payment pertaining to each CUSIP number (if more than
one CUSIP number) must accompany all payments of interest and principal, whether by check or wire
transfer. In the event of a non-payment of interest on a scheduled payment date, and for 30 days thereafter,
a new record date for such payment (a “Special Record Date”) will be established by the Paying
Agent/Registrar, if and when funds for the payment thereof have been received from the Issuer. Notice of
the Special Record Date and of the scheduled payment date of the past due payment (the “Special Payment
Date”, which shall be 15 calendar days after the Special Record Date) shall be sent at least five business
days prior to the Special Record Date by United States mail, first class, postage prepaid, to the address of the
Registered Owner appearing on the books of the Paying Agent/Registrar at the close of business on the last
business day next preceding the date of mailing of such notice. The Issuer covenants with the Registered
Owner that no later than each principal installment payment date and interest payment date for this Bond it
will make available to the Paying Agent/Registrar the amounts required to provide for the payment, in
immediately available funds, of all principal of and interest on the Bond, when due, in the manner set forth
in the Ordinance defined below.

THIS BOND is one of a series of Bonds, dated as of January 1, 2013 (the “Bonds”) of like
designation and tenor, except as to number, interest rate, denomination, and maturity issued pursuant to the
Ordinance adopted by the City Commission of the Issuer on January 14, 2013 (the “Ordinance”), in the
original aggregate principal amount of $1,265,000 for the purpose of providing money for refunding certain
outstanding obligations and to pay costs of issuance of the Bonds by virtue of the laws of the State of Texas,
including particularly Chapter 1207, Texas Government Code, as amended.

THE BONDS are issued pursuant to the Ordinance whereunder the Issuer covenants to levy a
continuing, direct, annual ad valorem tax on taxable property within the Issuer, within the limitations
prescribed by law, for each year while any part of the Bonds are considered outstanding under the
provisions of the Ordinance, in a sufficient amount to pay interest on each Bond as it becomes due, to
provide for the payment of the principal or maturing amounts, as appropriate, of the Bonds when due and to
pay the expenses of assessing and collecting such tax. Reference is hereby made to the Ordinance for



provisions with respect to the custody and application of the Issuer’s funds, remedies in the event of a
default hereunder or thereunder, and the other rights of the Registered Owner.

THIS BOND IS TRANSFERABLE OR EXCHANGEABLE only upon presentation and surrender
at the designated payment office of the Paying Agent/Registrar. If a Bond is being transferred, it shall be
duly endorsed for transfer or accompanied by an assignment duly executed by the Registered Owner, or his
authorized representative, subject to the terms and conditions of the Ordinance. If a Bond is being
exchanged, it shall be in the principal amount of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof, subject to the terms
and conditions of the Ordinance. The Registered Owner of this Bond shall be deemed and treated by the
Issuer and the Paying Agent/Registrar as the absolute owner hereof for all purposes, including payment and
discharge of liability upon this Bond to the extent of such payment, and the Issuer and the Paying
Agent/Registrar shall not be affected by any notice to the contrary.

THE CITY RESERVES THE RIGHT to redeem the Bonds maturing on or after August 1, ,in
whole or in part, on August I, or on any interest payment date thereafter. Such optional redemption
shall be at a redemption price of par plus accrued interest on the principal amounts called for redemption to
the date fixed for redemption. If less than all of the Bonds are to be redeemed, the particular Bonds to be
redeemed shall be selected by the City in integral multiples of $5,000 within any one maturity. At least 45
days prior to the date fixed for any redemption of Bonds or portions thereof prior to maturity, a written
notice of such redemption shall be given by the City to the Paying Agent/Registrar, and the Paying
Agent/Registrar shall send a copy of such notice at least 30 days prior to the date fixed for redemption by
United States mail, first-class postage prepaid, addressed to the Registered Owner of each Bond to be
redeemed in whole or in part at the address shown on the Registration Books; provided, however, that the
failure to send, mail, or receive such notice, or any defect therein or in the sending or mailing thereof, shall
not affect the validity or effectiveness of the proceedings for the redemption of any Bond. When Bonds or
portions thereof have been called for redemption, and due provision has been made to redeem the same, the
principal amounts so redeemed shall be payable solely from the funds provided for redemption, interest
which would otherwise accrue on the amounts called for redemption shall terminate on the date fixed for
redemption, and redeemed Bonds shall no longer be regarded as outstanding except for the right of the
Registered Owner or Registered Owners thereof to receive the redemption price from the Paying
Agent/Registrar out of the funds provided for such payment.

NOT LESS THAN 30 DAYS prior to a redemption date for the Bonds, the City shall cause a notice
of redemption to be sent by United States mail, first class, postage prepaid, to the registered owners of the
Bonds to be redeemed, in whole or in part, at the address of the registered owner appearing on the
registration books of the Paying Agent/Registrar at the close of business on the business day next preceding
the date of mailing such notice. Any notice so mailed shall be conclusively presumed to have been duly
given, whether or not the registered owner receives such notice. Notice having been so given, the Bonds
called for redemption shall become due and payable on the specified redemption date, and notwithstanding
that any Bond or portion thereof has not been surrendered for payment, interest on such Bond or portion
thereof shall cease to accrue. When Bonds or portions thereof have been called for redemption, and due
provision has been made to redeem the same, the principal amounts so redeemed shall be payable solely
from the funds provided for redemption, and interest which would otherwise accrue on the amounts called
for redemption shall terminate on the date fixed for redemption.

IF ANY BOND shall not be paid upon the surrender thereof at the applicable maturity date, such
Bonds shall continue to bear interest until paid and, to the extent permitted by law, interest on any



overdue payments of principal of or interest on such Bond shall be paid at the rate of interest borne by
such Bond.

IF THE DATE for the payment of the principal of or interest on this Bond shall be a Saturday, a
Sunday, a legal holiday, or a day on which banking institutions in the city where the principal corporate
trust offices of the Paying Agent/Registrar are authorized by law or executive order to close, then the date
for such payment shall be the next succeeding day which is not such a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday, or
day on which banking institutions are authorized to close; and payment on such date shall have the same
force and effect as if made on the original date of payment.

IN THE EVENT any Paying Agent/Registrar for the Bonds is changed by the Issuer, resigns, or
otherwise ceases to act as such, the Issuer has covenanted in the Ordinance that it promptly will appoint a
competent and legally qualified substitute therefor, and cause written notice thereof to be mailed to the
Registered Owner.

IN CASE any officer of the Issuer whose manual or facsimile signature shall appear on any Bond
shall cease to be such officer before the delivery of any such Bonds, such manual or facsimile signature
shall nevertheless be valid and sufficient for all purposes as if such officer had remained in office until such
delivery. Any Bond which bears the facsimile signature of such person who at the actual time of the
delivery of such Bond shall be an officer authorized to sign such Bond, but who at the date of such Bonds
was not such an officer, shall be validly and sufficiently signed for such purpose as if such person had been
such officer as the date of such Bond. The Issuer authorizes the printing of a true and cotrect copy of an
opinion of Winstead PC, Attorneys, relating to the validity and enforceability of the Bonds under Texas law
and the status of interest on the Bonds under federal income tax laws on the reverse side of each of the
Bonds over a certificate of identification executed by the facsimile signature of the Issuer Secretary of the
Issuer, and also authorizes the imprinting of CUSIP (the American Bankers Association’s Committee on
Uniform Securities Identification Procedures) numbers on the Bonds; provided, however, that the failure of
such opinion, certificate, or CUSIP numbers to appear on any Bond, or any errors therein or in any part of
the Bond the forim of which is not included in this Ordinance, shall in no way effect the validity or
enforceability of the Bonds or relieve the Initial Purchaser of its obligation to accept delivery of and pay for
the Bonds.

IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED, COVENANTED, AND REPRESENTED that all acts, conditions,
and things necessary to be done precedent to the issuance of the Bonds in order to render the same legal,
valid, and binding obligations of the Issuer have happened and have been accomplished and performed in
regular and due time, form, and manner, as required by law; that provision has been made for the payment
of the principal of and interest on, or maturing amounts of (as appropriate) the Bonds by the levy of a
continuing, direct, annual ad valorem tax upon taxable property within the Issuer; and that issuance of the
Bonds does not exceed any constitutional or statutory limitation.

BY BECOMING the Registered Owner of this Bond, the Registered Owner thereby acknowledges
all of the terms and provisions of the Ordinance, agrees to be bound by such terms and provisions, and
agrees that the terms and provisions of this Bond and the Ordinance constitute a contract between each
Registered Owner and the Issuer.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF this Bond has been signed with the manual or facsimile signature of the
Mayor of the Issuer and countersigned with the manual or facsimile signature of the City Secretary of the
Issuer, and the official seal of the Issuer has been duly impressed, or placed in facsimile, on this Bond.

CITY OF KINGSVILLE, TEXAS

PEEESES 09000 0.0.0.0.09,06909.5,6.9,04 PO0.0.9,0.0,0,9.9.0,0,0,0,0,0,0,0,6,6,6,6,6.0,0.0.0.0,
City Secretary Mayor
(SEAL)

* ok %

The Initial Bond shall be in the form set forth above for the Definitive Bonds except the
following shall replace the heading and the first paragraph:

NO. I-1 $1,265,000
United States of America
State of Texas
CITY OF KINGSVILLE, TEXAS
LIMITED TAX REFUNDING BOND, SERIES 2013

Dated Date: JANUARY 1, 2013

Registered Owner:

Principal Amount: ONE MILLION TWO HUNDRED SIXTY FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS
($1,265,000)

THE CITY OF KINGSVILLE, TEXAS (the “Issuer”), for value received, acknowledges itself
indebted to and hereby promises to pay to the order of the Registered Owner, specified above, or the
registered assigns thereof (the “Registered Owner”), the Principal Amount, specified above, with
principal installments payable on February 1 in each of the years, and bearing interest at per annum rates
in accordance with the following schedule:

YEARS OF PRINCIPAL INTEREST
STATED MATURITIES INSTALLMENTS RATE
$ %

(Information to be inserted from schedule in Section 2 hereof.)

INTEREST on the unpaid Principal Amount hereof from the date of initial delivery, specified
above, or from the most recent interest payment date to which interest has been paid or duly provided for
until the Principal Amount has become due and payment thereof has been made or duly provided for shall
be paid computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months; such interest being payable on
August 1 and February 1 of each year, commencing August 1, 2013.



THE PRINCIPAL OF AND INTEREST ON this Bond are payable in lawful money of the United
States of America, without exchange or collection charges. The final payment of principal of this Bond
shall be paid to the Registered Owner hereof upon presentation and surrender of this Bond at final maturity,
at the designated payment office of THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON TRUST COMPANY, N.A,,
Dallas, Texas, which is the “Paying Agent/Registrar” for this Bond. The payment of principal installments
and interest on this Bond shall be made by the Paying Agent/Registrar to the Registered Owner hereof as
shown by the Registration Books kept by the Paying Agent/Registrar at the close of business on the Record
Date by check drawn by the Paying Agent/Registrar on, and payable solely from, funds of the Issuer
required to be on deposit with the Paying Agent/Registrar for such purpose as hereinafter provided; and
such check shall be sent by the Paying Agent/Registrar by United States mail, postage prepaid, on each such
payment date, to the registered owner hereof at its address as it appears on the Registration Books kept by
the Paying Agent/Registrar, as hereinafter described. The record date (“Record Date”) for payments hereon
means the last business day of the month preceding a scheduled payment. In the event of a non-payment of
interest on a scheduled payment date, and for 30 days thereafter, a new record date for such payment (a
“Special Record Date”) will be established by the Paying Agent/Registrar, if and when funds for the
payment thereof have been received from the Issuer. Notice of the Special Record Date and of the
scheduled payment date of the past due payment (the “Special Payment Date”, which shall be 15 calendar
days after the Special Record Date) shall be sent at least five business days prior to the Special Record Date
by United States mail, first class, postage prepaid, to the address of the Registered Owner appearing on the
books of the Paying Agent/Registrar at the close of business on the last business day next preceding the date
of mailing of such notice. The Issuer covenants with the Registered Owner that no later than each principal
installment payment date and interest payment date for this Bond it will make available to the Paying
Agent/Registrar the amounts required to provide for the payment, in immediately available funds, of all
principal of and interest on this Bond, when due, in the manner set forth in the Ordinance defined below.

* * *

FORM OF STATEMENT OF INSURANCE

STATEMENT OF INSURANCE

Assured Guaranty Municipal Corp. (‘AGM”), New York, New York, has delivered its municipal bond
insurance policy (the “Policy”) with respect to the scheduled payments due of principal and interest on
this Bond to The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., Dallas, Texas, or its successor, as
paying agent for the Bond (the “Paying Agent”). Said Policy is on file and available for inspection at the
principal office of the Paying Agent and a copy thereof may be obtained from AGM or the Paying Agent.
All payments required to be made under the Policy shall be made in accordance with the provisions
thereof, The owner of this Bond acknowledges and consents to the subrogation rights of AGM as more
fully set forth in the Policy.



FORM OF REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE OF THE COMPTROLLER OF PUBLIC ACCOUNTS
(TO BE PRINTED ON OR ATTACHED TO THE INITIAL BOND ONLY)

COMPTROLLER’S REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE: REGISTER NO.

I hereby certify that this Bond has been examined, certified as to validity, and approved by the
" Attorney General of the State of Texas, and that this Bond has been registered by the Comptroller of
Public Accounts of the State of Texas.

Witness my signature and seal this

(COMPTROLLER’S SEAL) ‘ XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX XXX XXX XX KX XX XKKXX
Comptroller of Public Accounts
of the State of Texas

* #* *

FORM OF AUTHENTICATION CERTIFICATE

AUTHENTICATION CERTIFICATE

It is hereby certified that this Bond has been issued under the provisions of the Ordinance described
on the face of this Bond; and that this Bond has been issued in conversion of and exchange for or
replacement of a bond, bonds, or a portion of a bond or bonds of an issue which originally was approved by

the Attorney General of the State of Texas and registered by the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State
of Texas.

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON
TRUST COMPANY, N.A.

Dallas, Texas

as Paying Agent/Registrar

Dated By
Authorized Representative
x * *
FORM OF ASSIGNMENT
ASSIGNMENT

For value received, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns, and transfers unto

/ /

(Please insert Social Security or Taxpayer (Please print or type name, address, and zip code of Transferee)
Identification Number of Transferee)




the within bond and all rights thereunder, and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints
attorney to register the
transfer of the within Bond on the books kept for registration thereof, with full power of substitution in
the premises.

Dated:

Signature Guaranteed:

NOTICE: Signature(s) must be guaranteed by a NOTICE: The signature above must correspond with

member firm of the New York Stock Exchange the name of the Registered Owner as it appears upon

or a commercial bank or trust company. the front of this Bond in every particular, without
alteration or enlargement or any change whatsoever.

The following abbreviations, when used in the Assignment above or on the face of the within
Bond, shall be construed as though they were written out in full according to applicable laws or
regulations: '

TEN COM - as tenants in common
TEN ENT - as tenants by the entireties
JT TEN - as joint tenants with right of survivorship and not as tenants in common
UNIF GIFT MIN ACT - Custodian
(Cust) (Minor)
under Uniform Gifts to Minors Act )

(State)
Additional abbreviations may also be used though not in the list above.
[END OF FORMS]
Section 5. Definitions. In addition to other words and terms defined in this Ordinance (except
those defined and used in Section 4), and unless a different meaning or intent clearly appears in the

context, the following words and terms shall have the following meanings, respectively:

“Bonds” means any bond or bonds or all of the bonds, as the case may be, of that series styled “City
of Kingsville, Texas Limited Tax Refunding Bonds, Series 2013 authorized by this Ordinance.

“Chapter 1207 means The Texas Government Code, Chapter 1207, as amended.
“Code” means The Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

“Defeased Bond” means any Bond, and the interest thereon, deemed to be paid, retired, and no
longer outstanding within the meaning of this Ordinance.

“Definitive Bonds” means the Bonds issued in exchange for the Initial Bonds.

“DTC” means The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York, and it successors and
assigns.

10



“Government Obligations” means direct noncallable obligations of the United States, including (i)
obligations that are unconditionally guaranteed by, the United States; (i) noncallable obligations of an
agency or instrumentality of the United States, including obligations that are unconditionally guaranteed or
insured by the agency or instrumentality and that, on the date the governing body of the issuer adopts or
approves the proceedings authorizing the issuance of refunding bonds, are rated as to investment quality by
a nationally recognized investment rating firm not less than “AAA” or its equivalent; or (iii) noncallable
obligations of a state or an agency or a county, municipality, or other political subdivision of a state that
have been refunded and that, on the date the governing body of the issuer adopts or approves the
proceedings authorizing the issuance of refunding bonds, are rated as to investment quality by a nationally
recognized investment rating firm of not less than “AAA” or its equivalent.

“Initial Bond” means the Bond registered by the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of
Texas as described in Section 12 hereof.

“Initial Purchaser” means , as representative of the underwriters
>
including

“Insurance Policy” means the financial guaranty insurance policy issued by the Insurer guaranteeing
the scheduled payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds when due.

“Insurer” means Assured Guaranty Corporation.

“Interest Payment Date” means, when used in connection with any Bond, August 1, 2013 and each
August 1 and February 1 thereafter until maturity.

“Issuer” means the City of Kingsville, Texas, a home-rule city and a political subdivision of the
State of Texas, or any successor thereto.

“Official Statement” means the disclosure document describing the Bonds dated the date of the
Purchase Contract.

“Ordinance” means this “Ordinance Authorizing the Issuance of City of Kingsville, Texas Limited
Tax Refunding Bonds, Series 2013; a Purchase Contract; a Paying Agent/Registrar Agreement; and
Approving All Other Matters Related Thereto” adopted by the City Commission of the Issuer on January
14, 2013.

“Owners” means any person who shall be the registered owner of any outstanding Bonds.

“Paying Agent/Registrar” means The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A., Dallas, Texas, and
such other bank or trust company as may hereafter be appointed in substitution therefor or in addition
thereto to perform the duties of the Paying Agent/Registrar in accordance with this Ordinance.

“Paying Agent/Registrar Agreement” means the agreement, dated January 1, 2013, between the
Paying Agent/Registrar and the Issuer relating to the registration, authentication, and transfer of the Bonds,

attached hereto as Exhibit “B”.

“Record Date” means the last business day of the calendar month next preceding the applicable
Interest Payment Date.

11



“Refunded Obligations” means the obligations described in Schedule .

“Register” means the books of registration kept by the Paying Agent/Registrar in which are
maintained the names and addresses of and the principal amounts registered to each Owner.

“Registered Owner” means any person who shall be the registered owner of any outstanding Bonds,
or the registered assigned or assignees of the Bonds or any portion or portions thereof.

“Registration Books” means the books or records for the registration or the transfer and exchange of
the Bonds.

Section 6. City Fund. The Issuer hereby confirms the establishiment of the followmg fund of the
Issuer at a depository of the Issuer:

(a) Interest and Sinking Fund and Tax Levy. A special “Interest and Sinking Fund” is hereby
confirmed and shall be maintained by the Issuer at an official depository bank of the Issuer. The Interest
and Sinking Fund shall be kept separate and apart from all other funds and accounts of the Issuer and
shall be used only for paying the interest on and principal of the Bonds. Accrued interest received from
the Purchasers of the Bonds and the net proceeds of all ad valorem taxes levied and collected for and on
account of the Bonds shall be deposited, as collected, to the credit of the Interest and Sinking Fund.
During each year while any of the principal of or interest on or maturing amounts of (as appropriate) the
Bonds are outstanding and unpaid, the Issuer shall compute and ascertain a rate and amount of ad valorem
tax which will be sufficient to raise and produce the money required to pay the interest on the Bonds and
the principal on the Bonds as such principal matures (but never less than 2% of the original principal
amount of the Bonds as a sinking fund each year), the tax shall be based on the latest approved tax rolls
of the Issuer, with full allowances being made for tax delinquencies and the cost of tax collection. The
rate and amount of ad valorem tax is hereby levied, and is hereby ordered to be levied, against all taxable
property in the Issuer, for each year while any of the Bonds are outstanding and unpaid, and the tax shall
be assessed and collected each year and deposited to the credit of the Interest and Sinking Fund. The ad
valorem taxes sufficient to provide for the payment of the interest on and principal of the Bonds, as such
interest comes due and such principal matures, are hereby pledged irrevocably for such payment.

Section 7. Perfection of Security. Chapter 1208, Texas Government Code, applies to the
issuance of the Bonds and the pledge of the proceeds of ad valorem taxes thereto, and such pledge is,
therefore, valid, effective, and perfected. Should Texas law be amended at any time while the Bonds are
outstanding and unpaid, the result of such amendment being that the pledge of the ad valorem tax
proceeds is to be subject to the filing requirements of Chapter 9, Texas Business & Commerce Code, in
order to preserve to the registered owners of the Bonds a security interest in such pledge, the Issuer agrees
to take such measures as it determines are reasonable and necessary to enable a filing of a security interest
in said pledge to occur.

Section 8. Investments and Security. (a) Investment of Funds. The Issuer may place money in
the Interest and Sinking Fund in time or demand deposits or invest such money as authorized by law at
the time of such deposit. Obligations purchased as an investment of money in a fund shall be deemed to
be part of such fund.

(b) Amounts Received from Investments. Except as otherwise provided by law, amounts
received from the investment of any money in the Interest and Sinking Fund shall be retained therein. It

12



is provided, however, that any interest earnings on proceeds of the Bonds which are required to be rebated
to the United States of America in order to prevent the Bonds from being arbitrage bonds shall be so
rebated and not considered as interest earnings for the purposes of this Section.

(c) Security for Funds. All funds created by this Ordinance shall be secured in the manner and to
the fullest extent required by law for the security of funds of the Issuer.

Section 9. Covenants of the Issuer. (a) General Covenants. The Issuer covenants and
represents that:

(i) The Issuer is a duly created and existing political subdivision of the State of
Texas, and is duly authorized under the laws of the State of Texas to create and issue Bonds;
all action on its part for the creation and issuance of the Bonds has been duly and effectively
taken; and the Bonds in the hands of the Owners thereof are and will be valid and enforceable
obligations of the Issuer in accordance with their terms; and

(i1) The Bonds shall be ratably secured in such manner that no one Bond shall
have preference over other Bonds.

(b) Specific Covenants. The Issuer covenants and represents that, while the Bonds are
outstanding and unpaid, it will: :

(i) Levy an ad valorem tax that will be sufficient to provide funds to pay the
current interest on the Bonds and to provide the necessary sinking fund, all as described in this
Ordinance; and

(ii) Keep proper books of record and accounts in which full, true, and correct
entries will be made of all dealings, activities, and transactions relating to the funds created
pursuant to this Ordinance, and all books, documents, and vouchers relating thereto shall at all
reasonable times be made available for inspection upon request from any Owner.

(c) Covenants Regarding Tax Matters. The Issuer covenants to take any action to maintain, or
refrain from any action which would adversely affect, the treatment of the Bonds as obligations described
in section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), the interest on which is
not includable in “gross income” for federal income tax purposes. In furtherance thereof, the Issuer
specifically covenants as follows:

(1) To refrain from taking any action which would result in the Bonds being
treated as “private activity bonds” within the meaning of section 141(b) of the Code;

(ii) To take any action to assure that no more than 10% of the proceeds of the
Bonds or the projects financed therewith are used for any “private business use,” as defined in
section 141(b)(6) of the Code or, if more than 10% of the proceeds or the projects financed
therewith are so used, that amounts, whether or not received by the Issuer with respect to such
private business use, do not under the terms of this Ordinance or any underlying arrangement,
directly or indirectly, secure or provide for the payment of more than 10% of the debt service
on the Bonds, in contravention of section 141(b)(2) of the Code;

13



(iii) To take any action to assure that in the event that the “private business use”
described in paragraph (ii) hereof exceeds 5% of the proceeds of the Bonds or the projects
financed therewith, then the amount in excess of 5% is used for a “private business use”
which is “related” and not “disproportionate,” within the meaning of section 141(b)(3) of the
Code, to the governmental use;

(iv) To take any action to assure that no amount which is greater than the lesser
of $5,000,000 or 5%: of the proceeds of the Bonds is directly or indirectly used to finance
loans to persons, other than state or local governmental units, in contravention of section
141(c) of the Code;

(v) To refrain from taking any action which would result in the Bonds being
“federally guaranteed” within the meaning of section 149(b) of the Code;

(vi) Except to the extent permittéd by section 148 of the Code and the regulations
and rulings thereunder, to refrain from using any portion of the proceeds of the Bonds,
directly or indirectly, to acquire or to replace funds which were used, directly or indirectly, to
acquire investment property (as defined in section 148(b)(2) of the Code) which produces a
materially higher yield over the term of the Bonds.

(vii) To otherwise restrict the use of the proceeds of the Bonds or amounts treated
as proceeds of the Bonds, as may be necessary, so that the Bonds do not otherwise contravene
the requirements of section 148 of the Code (relating to arbitrage) and, to the extent
applicable, section 149(d) of the Code (relating to advance refundings);

(viii) Bxcept to the extent otherwise provided in section 148(f) of the Code and
the regulations and rulings thereunder, to pay to the United States of America at least once
during each five year period (beginning on the date of delivery of the Bonds) an amount that
is at least equal to 90% of the “Excess Earnings,” within the meaning of section 148(f) of the
Code, and to pay to the United States of America, not later than 60 days after the Bonds have
been paid in full, 100% of the amount then required to be paid as a result of Excess Earnings
under section 148(f) of the Code; and

(ix) To maintain such records as will enable the Issuer to fulfill its
responsibilities under this subsection and section 148 of the Code and to retain such records
for at least six years following the final payment of principal and interest on the Bonds.

(x) To comply with information reporting requirements of section 149(e) of the
Code. '

For the purposes of the foregoing, in the case of a refunding bond, the term proceeds includes
transferred proceeds and, for purposes of paragraphs (ii) and (iii), proceeds of the refunded bonds.

The covenants contained herein are intended to assure compliance with the Code and any
regulations or rulings promulgated by the U.S. Department of Treasury pursuant thereto. In the event that
regulations or rulings are hereafter promulgated which modify or expand provisions of the Code, as
applicable to the Bonds, the Issuer will not be required to comply with any covenant contained herein to
the extent that such modification or expansion, in the opinion of nationally-recognized bond counsel, will

14



not adversely affect the exclusion from gross income of interest on the Bonds under section 103 of the
Code. In the event that regulations or rulings are hereafter promulgated which impose additional
requirements which are applicable to the Bonds, the Issuer agrees to comply with the additional
requirements to the extent necessary, in the opinion of nationally-recognized bond counsel, to preserve
the exclusion from gross income of interest on the Bonds under section 103 of the Code.

Proper officers of the Issuer charged with the responsibility of issuing the Bonds are hereby
authorized and directed to execute any documents, certificates, or reports required by the Code and to make
such elections, on behalf of the Issuer, which may be permitted by the Code as are consistent with the
purpose for the issuance of the Bonds.

Notwithstanding any other provision in this Resolution, to the extent necessary to preserve the
exclusion from gross income of interest on the Bonds under section 103 of the Code the covenants
contained in this subsection shall survive the later of the defeasance or discharge of the Bonds.

(d) Covenants Regarding Sale, Lease, or Disposition of Financed Property. The Issuer covenants
that the Issuer will regulate the use of the property financed, directly or indirectly, with the proceeds of
the Bonds and will not sell, lease, or otherwise dispose of such property unless (i) the Issuer takes the
remedial measures as may be required by the Code and the regulations and rulings thereunder in order to
preserve the exclusion from gross income of interest on the Bonds under section 103 of the Code or (ii)
the Issuer seeks the advice of nationally-recognized bond counsel with respect to such sale, lease, or other
* disposition.

Section 10. Paying Agent/Registrar. The Paying Agent/Registrar is hereby appointed as paying
agent for the Bonds. The principal of the Bonds and the accrued interest on the Bonds shall be payable,
without exchange or collection charges, in any coin or currency of the United States of America, which,
on the date of payment, is legal tender for the payment of debts due the United States of America, as
described in the Form of Bonds in Section 4 hereof.

The Issuer, the Paying Agent/Registrar, and any other person may treat the Owner as the absolute
owner of such Bonds for the purpose of making and receiving payment of the principal thereof and for the
further purpose of receiving payment of the interest thereon and for all other purposes, whether or not such
Bond is overdue, and neither the Issuer nor the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be bound by any notice or
knowledge to the contrary. All payments made to the person deemed to be the Owner of any Bond in
accordance with this Ordinance shall be valid and effectual and shall discharge the liability of the Issuer and
the Paying Agent/Registrar upon such Bond to the extent of the sums paid.

So long as any Bonds remain outstanding, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall keep the Register at one
of its designated payment offices in Texas in which, subject to such reasonable regulations as it may
prescribe, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall provide for the registration and transfer of Bonds in accordance
with the terms of this Ordinance.

The Issuer may at any time and from time to time appoint another Paying Agent/Registrar in
substitution for the previous Paying Agent/Registrar provided that any such Paying Agent/Registrar shall be
a national or state banking institution, shall be an association or a corporation organized and doing business
under the laws of the United States of America or any state, authorized under such laws to exercise trust
powers, shall be subject to supervision or examination by federal or state authority, and shall be authorized
by law to serve as a paying agent/registrar. In such event, the Issuer shall give notice by United States mail,

15



first-class, postage prepaid to each Owner. Any bank or trust company with or into which any Paying
Agent/Registrar may be merged or consolidated, or to which the assets and business of Paying
Agent/Registrar may be sold or otherwise transferred, shall be deemed the successor of such Paying
Agent/Registrar for the purposes of this Ordinance.

The Mayor and the City Secretary of the Issuer are hereby authorized to enter into, execute, and
deliver the Paying Agent/Registrar Agreement with the initial Paying Agent/Registrar in substantially the
form presented to the Issuer on this date.

Section 11. Successor Registrar, Successor Paying Agent. The Issuer covenants with the
registered owners of the Bonds that prior to the time all of the Bonds have been finally retired, the Issuer
will provide competent and legally qualified persons to act as and perform the services of paying agent
and as registrar for the Bonds under this Ordinance. The Issuer reserves the right to, and may, at its
option, change the Paying Agent/ Registrar with respect to the Bonds upon not less than 60 days written
notice to the Paying Agent/Registrar, Any Paying Agent/Registrar may resign and be discharged of its
respective duties under this Ordinance by written resignation filed with the Issuer not less than 60 days
before the date such resignation is to take effect. In the event that the person at any time acting as a
Paying Agent/Registrar (or its successor by merger, acquisition, or other method) should resign or
otherwise cease to act as such, the Issuer covenants that promptly it will appoint a competent and legally
qualified national or state banking institution organized and doing business under the laws of the United
States of America or the State of Texas, authorized under such laws to exercise trust powers, subject to
supervision or examination by federal or state authority, to act as such Paying Agent/Registrar, under this
Ordinance. Upon any change in a Paying Agent/Registrar, the previous Paying Agent/Registrar promptly
shall transfer and deliver the Registration Books (or a copy thereof), along with all other pertinent books
and records relating to the Bonds, to the new Paying Agent/Registrar designated and appointed by the
Issuer. Upon any change in a Paying Agent/Registrar, the Issuer promptly will cause a written notice
thereof to be sent by the new Paying Agent/Registrar to each registered owner of the Bonds, by United
States mail, postage prepaid which notice also shall give the address of the new Paying Agent/Registrar.
By accepting the position and performing as such, each Paying Agent/Registrar shall be deemed to have
agreed to the provisions of this Ordinance, and a certified copy of this Ordinance shall be delivered to
each Paying Agent/Registrar.

Section 12. Initial Bond; Exchange or Transfer of Bonds. Initially, one Bond (the “Initial
Bond”) numbered I-1 and being in the principal amount, respectively, as shown in Section 2 for each year
of maturity, and representing the entire principal amount of Bonds shall be registered in the name of the
Initial Purchaser or the designee thereof and shall be executed and submitted to the Attorney General of
Texas for approval, and thereupon certified by the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas
or his duly authorized agent, by manual signature. At any time thereafter, the Owner may deliver the
Initial Bond to the Paying Agent/Registrar for exchange, accompanied by instructions from the Owner or
such designee designating the person, maturities, and principal amounts to and in which the Initial Bond
are to be transferred and the addresses of such persons, and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall thereupon,
within not more than 72 hours, register and deliver such Bonds upon authorization of the Issuer as
provided in such instructions.

Each Bond shall be transferable within 72 hours after request, but only upon the presentation and
surrender thereof at the designated payment office of the Paying Agent/Registrar, duly endorsed for transfer,
or accompanied by an assignment duly executed by the Owner or his authorized representative in the form
satisfactory to the Paying Agent/Registrar. Upon due presentation of any Bond for transfer, the Paying

16



Agent/Registrar shall authenticate and deliver in exchange therefor, to the extent possible and under
reasonable circumstances within three business day after such presentation, a new Bond or Bonds, registered
in the name of the transferee or transferees, in authorized denominations, of the same maturity, in the
appropriate principal amount, and bearing interest at the same rate as the Bond or Bonds so presented.

All Bonds shall be exchangeable upon presentation and surrender thereof at the appropriate
corporate trust office of the Paying Agent/Registrar for a Bond or Bonds of the same maturity and interest
rate and in any authorized denomination, in an aggregate principal amount or maturing amounts, as
appropriate, equal to the unpaid principal amount or maturing amount of the Bond or Bonds presented for
exchange. The Paying Agent/Registrar shall be and is hereby authorized to authenticate and deliver
exchange Bonds in accordance with this Ordinance and each Bond so delivered shall be entitled to the
benefits and security of this Ordinance to the same extent as the Bond or Bonds in lieu of which such Bond
is delivered.

The Issuer or the Paying Agent/Registrar may require the Owner of any Bond to pay a sum
sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge that may be imposed in connection with the transfer
or exchange of such Bond. Any fee or charge of the Paying Agent/Registrar for such transfer or exchange
shall be paid by the Issuer.

Section 13. Sale of the Bonds; Approval of Purchase Contract. (a) Sale. The Bonds
authorized by this Ordinance are hereby sold by the Issuer to the Initial Purchaser, having all of the rights,
benefits, and obligations of a Holder, in accordance with the provisions of a Purchase Contract, dated
January 14, 2013, attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by reference as a part of this
Ordinance for all purposes. The Initial Bond shall be registered in the name of the Initial Purchaser. The
Mayor or Mayor Pro Tem are hereby authorized and directed to execute the Purchase Contract for and on
behalf of the Issuer, and in regard to the approval and execution of the Purchase Contract, the City
Commission hereby finds, determines, and declares that the representations, warranties, and agreements
of the Issuer contained in the Purchase Contract are true and correct in all material respects and shall be
honored and performed by the Issuer. Delivery of the Bonds to the Purchasers shall occur as soon as
practicable after the adoption of this Ordinance, upon payment therefor in accordance with the terms of
the Purchase Contract. '

(b) Approval of Official Statement. The Issuer hereby approves the form and content of the
Official Statement relating to the Bonds and any addenda, supplement, or amendment thereto, and
approves the distribution of such Official Statement in the reoffering of the Bonds by the Initial Purchaser
in final form, with such changes therein or additions thereto as the officer executing the same may deem
advisable, such determination to be conclusively evidenced by his execution thereof. The form and
content of and the distribution and use of the Preliminary Official Statement dated May 12, 2013, prior to
the date hereof is hereby ratified and confirmed. The Issuer finds and determines that the Preliminary
Official Statement is “deemed final” as that term is defined in 17 C.F.R. Section 240.15¢2-12.

(c) Legal Opinion. The Initial Purchaser’s obligation to accept delivery of the Bonds is subject
to its being furnished an opinion of Winstead PC Attorneys, such opinion to be dated and delivered as of
the date of delivery and payment for the Bonds.

(d) Registration and Delivery. Upon the registration of the Initial Bond, the Comptroller of
Public Accounts of the State of Texas is authorized and instructed to deliver the Initial Bond pursuant to
the instruction of the Mayor of the Issuer for delivery to the Initial Purchaser.

17



Section 14. Book-Entry Only System. Initially the Bonds will be registered so as to participate
in a securities depository system (the “DTC System”) with The Depository Trust Company, New York,
New York, or any successor entity thereto (“DTC”), as set forth herein. The definitive Bonds shall be
issued in the form of a separate single definitive Bond for each maturity. Upon issuance, the ownership
of each such Bond shall be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as the nominee of DTC, and all of the
outstanding Bonds shall be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as the nominee of DTC. The City and
the Paying Agent/Registrar are authorized to execute, deliver, and take the actions set forth in such letters
. to or agreements with DTC as shall be necessary to effectuate the DTC System, including a “Letter of
Representations” (the “Representation Letter”).

With respect to the Bonds registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, the City
and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall have no responsibility or obligation to any broker-dealer, bank, or
other financial institution for which DTC holds the Bonds from time to time as securities depository (a
“Depository Participant™) or to any person on behalf of whom such a Depository Participant holds an
interest in the Bonds (an “Indirect Participant”). Without limiting the immediately preceding sentence,
the City and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall have no responsibility or obligation with respect to (i) the
accuracy of the records of DTC, Cede & Co., or any Depository Participant with respect to any ownership
interest in the Bonds, or (ii) the delivery to any Depository Participant or any Indirect Participant or any
other Person, other than a registered owner of a Bond, of any amount with respect to principal of or
interest on the Bonds. While in the DTC System, no person other than Cede & Co., or any successor
thereto, as nominee for DTC, shall receive a Bond evidencing the obligation of the City to make
payments of principal and interest pursuant to this Ordinance. Upon delivery by DTC to the Paying
Agent/Registrar of written notice to the effect that DTC has determined to substitute a new nominee in
place of Cede & Co., and subject to the provisions in this Ordinance with respect to interest checks or
drafts being mailed to the holder, the word “Cede & Co.” in this Ordinance shall refer to such new
nominee of DTC.

In the event that (a) the City determines that DTC is incapable of discharging its responsibilities
described herein and in the Representation Letter, (b) the Representation Letter shall be terminated for
any reason, or (¢) DTC or the City determines that it is in the best interest of the beneficial owners of the
Bonds that they be able to obtain certificated Bonds, the City shall notify the Paying Agent/Registrar,
DTC, and Depository Participants of the availability within a reasonable period of time through DTC of
certificated certificates, and the Bonds shall no longer be restricted to being registered in the name of
Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC. At that time, the City may determine that the Bonds shall be registered
in the name of and deposited with a successor depository operating a securities depository system, as may
be acceptable to the City, or such depository’s agent or designee, and if the City and the Paying
Agent/Registrar do not select such alternate securities depository system then the Bonds may be
registered in whatever names the registered owners of Bonds transferring or exchanging the Bonds shall
designate, in accordance with the provisions hereof.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance to the contrary, so long as any Bond is
registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, all payments with respect to principal of,
premium, if any, and interest on such Bond and all notices with respect to such Bond shall be made and
given, respectively, in the manner provided in the Representation Letter.

Section 15. Issuer Officers’ Duties. (a) Issuance of Bonds. The Mayor of the Issuer shall
submit the Initial Bond, the record of the proceedings authorizing the issuance of the Bonds, and any and
all necessary orders, certificates, and records to the Attorney General of the State of Texas for his

18



investigation. After obtaining the approval of the Attorney General, the Mayor of the Issuer shall cause
the Initial Bond to be registered by the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas. The
officers or acting officers of the Issuer are authorized to execute and deliver on behalf of the Issuer such
certificates and instruments as may be necessary or appropriate prior to the delivery of and payment for
the Bonds to and by the Initial Purchaser.

(b) Execution of Ordinance. The Mayor and the City Secretary of the Issuer are authorized to
execute the certificate to which this Ordinance is attached on behalf of the Issuer and to do any and all
things proper and necessary to carry out the intent hereof.

Section 16. Remedies of Owners. In addition to all rights and remedies of any Owner of the
Bonds provided by the laws of the State of Texas, the Issuer and the City Commission covenant and agree
that in the event the Issuer defaults in the payment of the principal of or interest on any of the Bonds
when due, fails to make the payments required by this Ordinance to be made into the Interest and Sinking
Fund, or defaults in the observance or performance of any of the covenants, conditions, or obligations set
forth in this Ordinance, the Owner of any of the Bonds shall be entitled to a writ of mandamus issued by a
court of proper jurisdiction compelling and requiring the Issuer and other officers of the Issuer to observe
and perform any covenant, obligation, or condition prescribed in this Ordinance. No delay or omission by
any Owner to exercise any right or power accruing to such Owner upon default shall impair any such
right or power, or shall be construed to be a waiver of any such default or acquiescence therein, and every
such right or power may be exercised from time to time and as often as may be deemed expedient. The
specific remedies mentioned in this Ordinance shall be available to any Owner of any of the Bonds and
shall be cumulative of all other existing remedies.

Section 17. Lost, Stolen, Destroyed, Damaged, or Mutilated Bonds; Destruction of Paid
Bonds. (a) Replacement Bonds. In the event any outstanding Bond shall become lost, stolen, destroyed,
damaged, or mutilated, at the request of the Owner thereof, the Issuer shall cause to be executed,
registered by the Paying Agent/Registrar, and delivered a substitute Bond of like date and tenor, in
exchange and substitution for and upon cancellation of such mutilated or damaged Bond, or in lieu of and
substitution for such Bond, lost, stolen, or destroyed, subject to the provisions of subsections (b), (c), (d),
and (e) of this Section.

(b) Application and Indemnity. Application for exchange and substitution of lost, stolen,
destroyed, damaged, or mutilated Bonds shall be made to the Paying Agent/Registrar. In every case the
applicant for a substitute Bond shall furnish to the Paying Agent/Registrar such deposit for fees and costs
as may be required by the Issuer to save it and the Paying Agent/Registrar harmless from liability. In
every case of loss, theft, or destruction of a Bond, the applicant shall also furnish to the Paying
Agent/Registrar indemnity to the Paying Agent/Registrar’s satisfaction and shall file with the Issuer
evidence to the Issuer’s satisfaction of the loss, theft, or destruction and of the ownership of such Bond.
In every case of damage or mutilation of a Bond, the applicant shall surrender the Bond so damaged or
mutilated to the Paying Agent/Registrar.

(c) Matured Bonds. Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section, in the event any
such Bond shall have matured, and no default has occurred which is then continuing in the payment of the
principal of or interest on the Bonds, the Issuer may authorize the payment of the same (without surrender
thereof except in the case of a damaged or mutilated Bond) instead of issuing a substitute Bond, if any,
provided security or indemnity is furnished as above provided in this Section.

19




(d) Expense of Issuance. Upon the issuance of any substitute Bonds, the Issuer may charge the
owner of such Bond with all fees and costs incurred in connection therewith. Every substitute Bond
issued pursuant to the provisions of this Section by virtue of the fact that any Bond is lost, stolen,
destroyed, damaged, or mutilated shall constitute a contractual obligation of the Issuer, whether or not the
lost, stolen, destroyed, damaged, or mutilated Bonds shall be found at any time, or be enforceable by
anyone, and shall be entitled to all the benefits of this Ordinance equally and proportionately with any and
all other Bonds duly issued under this Ordinance.

(e) Authority to Issue Substitute Bonds. This Ordinance shall constitute sufficient authority for
the issuance of any such substitute Bonds without necessity of further action by the Issuer or any other
body or person, and the issuance of such substitute Bonds is hereby authorized, notwithstanding any other
provisions of this Ordinance.

(f) Destruction of Paid Bonds. At any time subsequent to six months after the payment thereof,
the Paying Agent/Registrar is authorized to cancel and destroy any Bonds duly paid and shall furnish to
the Issuer a certificate evidencing such destruction,

Section 18. Redemption. The Bonds are subject to optional redemption as described in the Form
of Bonds in Section 4.

Section 19. Defeasance. (a) Except to the extent provided in subsection (c) of this Section, any
Bond, and the interest thereon, shall be deemed to be paid, retired, and no longer outstanding within the
meaning of this Ordinance (a “Defeased Bond™”) when payment of the principal of such Bond, plus
interest thereon to the due date (whether such due date be by reason of maturity, redemption, or
otherwise) either (i) shall have been made or caused to be made in accordance with the terms thereof
(including the giving of any required notice of redemption) or (ii) shall have been provided for on or
before such due date by irrevocably depositing with or making available to a person described by section
1207.061(a), Texas Government Code, as amended (a “Depositary”), with respect to the safekeeping,
investment, administration, and disposition of a deposit made under section 1207.061, Texas Government
Code, as amended, for such payment (the “Deposit”) (A) lawful money of the United States of America
sufficient to make such payment or (B) Government Obligations, which may be in book-entry form, that
mature and bear interest payable at times and in amounts sufficient to provide for the scheduled payment
or redemption of any Defeased Bond. To cause a Bond scheduled to be paid or redeemed on a date later
than the next scheduled interest payment date on such Bond to become a Defeased Bond, the Issuer must,
with respect to the Deposit, enter into an escrow or similar agreement with a Depositary.

In connection with any defeasance of the Bonds, the Issuer shall cause to be delivered: (i) in the
event an escrow or similar agreement has been entered into with a Depositary to effectuate such defeasance,
a report of an independent firm of nationally recognized certified public accountants verifying the
sufficiency of the escrow established to pay the Defeased Bonds in full on the maturity or redemption date
thereof (the “Verification™); or (ii) in the event no escrow or similar agreement has been entered into, a
certificate from the Mayor of the Issuer certifying that the amount deposited with a Depositary is sufficient
to pay the Defeased Bonds in full on the maturity or redemption date thereof. In addition to the required
Verification or certificate, the Issuer shall also cause to be delivered an opinion of nationally recognized
bond counsel to the effect that the Defeased Bonds are no longer outstanding pursuant to the terms hereof
and a certificate of discharge of the Paying Agent/Registrar with respect to the Defeased Bonds. The
Verification, if any, and each certificate and opinion required hereunder shall be acceptable in form and

20



substance, and addressed, if applicable, to the Paying Agent/Registrar and the Issuer. The Bonds shall
remain outstanding hereunder unless and until they are in fact paid and retired or the above criteria are met.

At such time as a Bond shall be deemed to be a Defeased Bond hereunder, and all herein required
criteria have been met, such Bond and the interest thereon shall no longer be outstanding or unpaid and shall
no longer be entitled to the benefits of the pledge of the security interest granted under this Ordinance, and
such principal and interest shall be payable solely from the Deposit of money or Government Obligations.

(b) Any money so deposited with a Depositary may at the written direction of the Issuer also be
invested in Government Obligations, maturing in the amounts and times as hereinbefore set forth, and all
income from such Government Obligations received by a Depositary which is not required for the
payment of the Defeased Bonds and interest thereon, with respect to which such money has been so
deposited, shall be used as directed in writing by the Issuer.

(c) Until all Defeased Bonds shall have become due and payable, the Paying Agent/Registrar
shall perform the services of Paying Agent/Registrar for such Defeased Bonds the same as if they had not
been defeased, and the Issuer shall make proper arrangements to provide and pay for such services as
required by this Ordinance.

Section 20. Ordinance a Contract; Amendments. This Ordinance shall constitute a contract
with the Owners, from time to time, of the Bonds, binding on the Issuer and its successors and assigns,
and shall not be amended or repealed by the Issuer as long as any Bond remains outstanding except as
permitted in this Section. The Issuer may, without the consent of or notice to any Owners, amend,
change, or modify this Ordinance as may be required (a) by the provisions hereof; (b) for the purpose of
curing .any ambiguity, inconsistency, or formal defect or omission herein; or (c) in connection with any
other change which is not to the prejudice of the Owners. The Issuer may, with the written consent of the
Owners of the majority in aggregate principal amount of Bonds then outstanding affected thereby, amend,
change, modify, or rescind any provisions of this Ordinance; provided that without the consent of all of
the Owners affected, no such amendment, change, modification, or rescission shall (i) extend the time or
times of payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds or reduce the principal amount thereof or
the rate of interest thereon; (ii) give any preference to any Bond over any other Bond; (iii) extend any
waiver of default to subsequent defaults; or (iv) reduce the aggregate principal amount of Bonds required
for consent to any such amendment, change, modification, or rescission. When the Issuer desires to make
any amendment or addition to or rescission of this Ordinance requiring consent of the Owners, the Issuer
shall cause notice of the amendment, addition, or rescission described in such notice and shall specifically
consent to and approve the adoption thereof in substantially the form of the copy thereof referred to in
such notice, thereupon, but not otherwise, the Issuer may adopt such amendment, addition, or rescission
in substantially such form, except as herein provided. No Owner may thereafter object to the adoption of
such amendment, addition, or rescission, or to any of the provisions thereof, and such amendment,
addition, or rescission shall be fully effective for all purposes.

Section 21. Use of Proceeds. The proceeds of the Bonds shall be deposited with The Bank of
New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as Escrow Agent pursuant to the Escrow Deposit Letter in
substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit “E” and hereby approved, and used to accomplish the
payment of the principal and interest on the Refunded Obligations on the date of delivery of the Bonds;
and to pay costs of issuance.

21



Section 22. Matters Related to Refunding. (a) In order that the Issuer shall satisfy in a timely
manner all of its obligations under this Ordinance, the Mayor of the Issuer and all other appropriate
officers and agents of the Issuer are hereby authorized and directed to take all other actions that are
reasonably necessary to provide for the payment of the Refunded Obligations, including, without
limitation, executing and delivering on behalf of the Issuer all certificates, consents, receipts, requests,
notices, and other documents as may be reasonably necessary to satisfy the Issuer’s obligations under this
Ordinance and to direct the transfer and application of funds of the Issuer consistent with the provisions
of this Ordinance. '

(b) The Refunded Obligations are subject to redemption prior to their stated maturities at the price
of par plus accrued interest to the date of redemption. The Issuer shall give written notice to The Bank of
New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., Dallas, Texas as paying agent for the Refunded Obligations that
the Refunded Obligations have been called for redemption, and the Issuer hereby orders that the Refunded
Obligations be called for redemption on the dates set forth in the respective Notices of Redemption in
Exhibit “C” hereto, which are incorporated herein by reference for all purposes, and such order to redeem
the Refunded Obligations on such dates shall be irrevocable upon delivery of the Bonds. The Bank of New
York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., Dallas, Texas, as paying agent for the Refunded Obligations, is
authorized and instructed to provide notice of the redemption to the holders of the Refunded Obligations in
the form and manner described in the respective ordinances authorizing issuance of the Refunded
Obligations.

Section 23. Continuing Disclosure Undertaking. (a) Annual Reports. The City shall provide
annually to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (the “MSRB”) pursuant to its Electronic
Municipal Market Access System (“EMMA”), within six months after the end of each Fiscal Year ending
in or after 2013, financial information and operating data with respect to the City of the general type
described in Exhibit D hereto with respect to such Fiscal Year or the 12-month period then ended. The
continuing disclosure information is available to the public, without charge through the MSRB at
www.emma.msrb.org. Any financial statements so to be provided shall be (i) prepared in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles or such other accounting principles as the City may be
required to adopt from time to time by state law or regulations and (ii) audited, if the City commissions an
audit of such statements and the audit is completed within the period during which they must be provided.
If the audit of such financial statements is not complete within such period, the City will provide
unaudited statements by the required time and the City shall provide audited financial statements for the
applicable fiscal year to the MSRB when and if the audit report on such statements becomes available.

If the City changes its Fiscal Year, it will notify the MSRB of the change (and of the date of the
new Fiscal Year end) prior to the next date by which the City otherwise would be required to provide
financial information and operating data pursuant to this Section.

The financial information and operating data to be provided pursuant to this Section may be set
forth in full in one or more documents or may be included by specific reference to any document (including
an official statement or other offering document, if it is available from the MSRB that theretofore has been
provided to each nationally recognized municipal securities information repository (“NRMSIR”) and any
state information depository (“SID”), or filed with the SEC.

(b) Material Event Notices. The City shall notify the MSRB, in a timely manner, of any of the
following events with respect to the Bonds, if such event is material within the meaning of the federal
securities laws: (i) principal and interest payment delinquencies; (ii) non-payment related defaults; (iii)

22



unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties; (iv) unscheduled draws on
credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties; (v) substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or
their failure to perform; (vi) adverse tax opinions or events affecting the tax-exempt status of the Bonds;
(vii) modifications to rights of holders of the Bonds; (viii) bond calls; (ix) defeasances; (x) release,
substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the Bonds; and (xi) ratings changes.

The City shall notify the MSRB, in a timely manner, of any failure by the City to provide financial
information or operating data in accordance with this Section by the time required by this Section.

(c) Limitations, Disclaimers, and Amendments. The City shall be obligated to observe and
perform the covenants specified in this Section for so long as, but only for so long as, the City remains an
“obligated person” with respect to the Bonds within the meaning of the Rule, except that the City in any
event will give notice of any deposit made in accordance with Section 18 that causes the Bonds no longer
to be Outstanding, and any call of Bonds made in connection therewith.

The provisions of this Section are for the sole benefit of the beneficial owners of the Bonds, and
nothing in this Section, express or implied, shall give any benefit or any legal or equitable right, remedy, or
claim hereunder to any other person. The City undertakes to provide only the financial information,
operating data, financial statements, and notices which it has expressly agreed to provide pursuant to this
Section and does not hereby undertake to provide any other information that may be relevant or material to a
complete presentation of the City’s financial results, condition, or prospects or hereby undertake to update
any information provided in accordance with this Section or otherwise, except as expressly provided herein.
The City does not make any representation or warranty concerning such information or its usefulness to a
decision to invest in or sell Bonds at any future date.

UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL THE CITY BE LIABLE TO THE BENEFICIAL
OWNER OF ANY BOND OR ANY OTHER PERSON, IN CONTRACT OR TORT, FOR DAMAGES
RESULTING IN WHOLE OR IN PART FROM ANY BREACH BY THE CITY, WHETHER
NEGLIGENT OR WITHOUT FAULT ON ITS PART, OF ANY COVENANT SPECIFIED IN THIS
SECTION, BUT EVERY RIGHT AND REMEDY OF ANY SUCH PERSON, IN CONTRACT OR
TORT, FOR OR ON ACCOUNT OF ANY SUCH BREACH SHALL BE LIMITED TO AN ACTION
FOR MANDAMUS OR SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE. '

No default by the City in observing or performing its obligations under this Section shall comprise a
breach of or default under this Ordinance for purposes of any other provisions of this Ordinance.

Nothing in this Section is-intended or shall act to disclaim, waive, or otherwise limit the duties of
the City under federal and state securities laws.

The provisions of this Section may be amended, supplemented, or repealed by the City from time to
time under the following circumstances, but not otherwise: (a) to adapt to changed circumstances that arise
from a change in legal requirements, a change in law, or a change in the identity, nature, status, or type of
operations of the City, if the provisions of this Section, as so supplemented or amended, would have
permitted an underwriter to purchase or sell Bonds in the present offering in compliance with the Rule and
either the Holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Outstanding Bonds consent to such
amendment, supplement, or repeal, or any State agency or official determines that such amendment,
supplement, or repeal will not materially impair the interests of the beneficial owners of the Bonds, (b) upon

23



repeal of the applicable provisions of the Rule, or any judgment by a court of final jurisdiction that such
provisions are invalid, or (c) in any other circumstance or manner permitted by the Rule.

Section 24, Designation as Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligations. The Issuer hereby designates
the Bonds as ‘“qualified tax-exempt obligations” as defined in section 265(b)(3) of the Code. In
furtherance of such designation, the Issuer represents, covenants, and warrants the following: (a) during
the calendar year in which the Bonds are issued, the Issuer (including any subordinate entities) has not
designated nor will designate obligations, which when aggregated with the Bonds, will result in more than
$10,000,000 of “qualified tax-exempt obligations” being issued; (b) the Issuer reasonably anticipates that
the amount of tax-exempt obligations issued during 2013 by the Issuer (including any subordinate
entities) will not exceed $10,000,000; and (c) the Issuer will take such action which would assure, or to
refrain from such action which would adversely affect, the treatment of the Bonds as “qualified tax-
exempt obligations.”

Section 25, Attorney General Examination Fee. The City recognizes that under Section
1202.004, Texas Government Code, as amended by Senate Bill 495, Acts of the 79" Legislature Regular
Session, 2005, the Attorney General of Texas requires a nonrefundable examination fee be paid at the
time of submission of the transcript of the proceedings authorizing the Bonds and that, based upon the
principal amount of the Bonds, such fee is $1,265. Bond Counsel is accommodating the City by paying
such fee upon such submission of such transcript. Officials of the City are, however, hereby authorized to
reimburse Bond Counsel such amount as soon as possible and whether or not the Bonds are ever
delivered and such amount is hereby appropriated from available funds for such purpose. The City is also
authorized to reimburse the fund used for such repayment with proceeds of the Bonds.

Section 26. Further Procedures. The Mayor and the City Secretary of the Issuer and all other
officers, employees, attorneys, and agents of the Issuer, and each of them, shall be and they are hereby
expressly authorized, empowered, and directed from time to time and at any time to do and perform all
such acts and things and to execute, acknowledge, and deliver in the name and under the seal and on
behalf of the Issuer, all such instruments, whether or not herein mentioned, as may be necessary or
desirable in order to carry out the terms and provisions of this Ordinance, the Bonds, the Purchase
Contract, and the Official Statement. In case any officer whose signature shall appear on any Bond shall
cease to be such officer before the delivery of such Bond, such signature shall nevertheless be valid and
sufficient for all purposes the same as if such officer had remained in office until such delivery. Prior to
the initial delivery of the Bonds, the Mayor and the City Secretary of the Issuer and Bond Counsel to the
Issuer are hereby authorized and directed to approve any technical changes or corrections to this
Ordinance or to any of the instruments authorized by this Ordinance necessary in order to (i) correct any
ambiguity or mistake or properly or more completely document the transactions contemplated and
approved by this Ordinance, (ii) obtain a rating from any of the national bond rating agencies, or (iii)
obtain the approval of the Bonds by the Texas Attorney General’s office.

Section 27. Nonpresentment of Bonds. In the event any Bond shall not be presented for
payment when the principal thereof or interest thereon, if applicable, becomes due, either at maturity or
otherwise, or if any check or draft representing payment of principal of or interest on the Bonds shall not
be presented for payment, if funds sufficient to pay the principal of or interest on such Bond shall have
been made available by the Issuer to the Paying Agent/Registrar for the benefit of the Registered Owner
thereof, all liability of the Issuer to the Registered Owner thereof for the payment of the principal of or
interest on such Bond shall cease, terminate, and be completely discharged, and thereupon it shall be the
duty of the Paying Agent to hold such funds in trust, uninvested and without liability for interest thereon,

24



for the benefit of the Registered Owner of such Bond who shall thereafter be restricted exclusively to
such funds for any claim of whatever nature on his part under this Order with respect to the principal of or
interest on such Bond. To the extent applicable, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall hold and apply any
such funds in accordance with Title 6, Texas Property Code, as amended, and shall comply with the
reporting requirements of Chapter 74, Texas Property Code, as amended.

Section 28, Miscellaneous Provisions. (a) General. Except where the context otherwise
requires, words importing the singular number shall include the plural number and vice versa; words
importing the masculine gender shall include the feminine and neuter genders and vice versa. Reference
to any document means that document as amended or supplemented from time to time. Reference to any
party to a document means that party and its successors and assigns. Reference herein to any article,
section, subsection or other subdivision, as applicable, unless specifically stated otherwise, means the
article, section, subsection or other subdivision, as applicable, of this Ordinance.

(b) Titles Not Restrictive. The titles assigned to the various sections of this Ordinance are for
convenience only and shall not be considered restrictive of the subject matter of any section or of any part
of this Ordinance.

(c) Inconsistent Provisions. " All orders and resolutions, or parts thereof, which are in conflict or
inconsistent with any provision of this Ordinance are hereby repealed and declared to be inapplicable, and
the provisions of this Ordinance shall be and remain controlling as to the matters prescribed herein.

(d) Severability. If any word, phrase, clause, paragraph, sentence, part, portion, or provision of
this Ordinance or the application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the
remainder of this Ordinance shall nevertheless be valid and the Issuer hereby declares that this Ordinance
would have been enacted without such invalid word, phrase, clause, paragraph, sentence, part, portion, or
provisions.

(e) Governing Law. This Ordinance shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws
of the State of Texas.

(f) Open Meeting. The Issuer officially finds and determines that the meeting at which this
Ordinance is adopted was open to the public; and that public notice of the time, place, and purpose of
such meeting was given, all as required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, as amended.

(g) Immediate Effect. Notwithstanding any charter provision or other laws, this Ordinance shall
be immediately effective upon its adoption by the City Commission.

PASSED AND APPROVED on first and final reading by the City Commission of the City of
Kingsville this January 14, 2013.

/s/ _Sam Fugate
Mayor, City of Kingsville, Texas

ATTEST:

/s/ Mary Valenzuela
City Secretary, City of Kingsville, Texas

25



PASSED AND APPROVED by a majority vote of the City Commission on the
day of , 2013.

Sam R. Fugate, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney



SCHEDULE I

Refunded Obligations

Certificates of Obligation, Series 2002A

Original Original Interest

Dated Date Maturity Rates(%) Amount

12/15/2002 2014 4,100 $ 140,000
2015 4.200 145,000
2016 4.200 155,000
2017 4,500 155,000
2018 4.500 165,000
2019 4.650 90,000
2020 4.650 95,000
2021 4.650 95,000
2022 4.650 100,000
2023 4.650 105.000

1,245,000

S-1



EXHIBIT A
Purchase Contract

The Purchase Contract can be found in executed form at Tab 3.

A-1



EXHIBIT B
PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR AGREEMENT

THIS PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR AGREEMENT entered into as of October 1, 2012 (this
“Agreement”), by and between the CITY OF KINGSVILLE, TEXAS (the “Issuer”), and THE BANK OF
NEW YORK MELLON TRUST COMPANY, N.A., Houston, Texas, a banking association duly
organized and existing under the laws of the United States of America (the “Bank”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Issuer has duly authorized and provided for the issuance of its “City of
Kingsville, Texas Limited Tax Refunding Bonds, Series 2013” (the “Securities™), such Securities to be
issued in fully registered form only as to the payment of principal and interest thereon;

WHEREAS, the Securities are scheduled to be delivered to the initial purchasers thereof as
provided in the “Order” (hereinafter defined);

WHEREAS, the Issuer has selected the Bank to serve as Paying Agent/Registrar in connection
with the payment of the principal of and interest on the Securities and with respect to the registration,
transfer, and exchange thereof by the Owners thereof;

WHEREAS, the Bank has agreed to serve in such capacities for and on behalf of the Issuer and
has full power and authority to perform and serve as Paying Agent/Registrar for the Securities;

NOW, THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed as follows:

ARTICLE I. APPOINTMENT OF BANK AS PAYING AGENT AND REGISTRAR

Section 1.01. Appointment. The Issuer hereby appoints the Bank to serve as Paying Agent with
respect to the Securities. As Paying Agent for the Securities, the Bank shall be responsible for paying on
behalf of the Issuer the principal and interest on the Securities as the same become due and payable to the
Owners thereof, all in accordance with this Agreement and the Order.

The Issuer hereby appoints the Bank as Registrar with respect to the Securities. As Registrar for
the Securities, the Bank shall keep and maintain for and on behalf of the Issuer books and records as to
the ownership of said Securities and with respect to the transfer and exchange thereof as provided herein
and in the Order.

The Bank hereby accepts its appointment, and agrees to serve as the Paying Agent and Registrar
for the Securities.

Section 1.02. Compensation. As compensation for the Bank’s services as Paying
Agent/Registrar, the Issuer hereby agrees to pay the Bank the fees and amounts set forth in Schedule “A”
attached hereto for the first year of this Agreement and thereafter the fees and amounts set forth in the
Bank’s current fee schedule then in effect for services as Paying Agent/Registrar for municipalities,
which shall be supplied to the Issuer on or before 90 days prior to the close of the Fiscal Year of the
Issuer, and shall be effective upon the first day of the following Fiscal Year.

In addition, the Issuer agrees to reimburse the Bank upon its request for all reasonable expenses,
disbursements, and advances incurred or made by the Bank in accordance with any of the provisions



hereof (including the reasonable compensation and the expenses and disbursements of its agents and
counsel).

ARTICLE II. DEFINITIONS

Section 2.01. Definitions. For all purposes of this Agreement, except as otherwise expressly
provided or unless the context otherwise requires:

“Bank Office” means the designated corporate trust office of the Bank as indicated on the
signature page hereof, The Bank will notify the Issuer in writing of any change in location of the Bank
Office.

“Financial Advisor” means Public Financial Management, Inc., Austin, Texas.
“Fiscal Year” means the fiscal year of the Issuer, ending September 30.

“Holder” and “Security Holder” each means the Person in whose name a Security is registered in
the Security Register.

“Issuer Request” and “Issuer Order” means a written request or order signed in the name of the
Issuer by its Mayor Judge, Director of Finance, or City Secretary, or any one or more of said officials, and
delivered to the Bank.

“Legal Holiday” means a day on which the Bank is required or authorized to be closed.

“Order” means the order of the governing body of the Issuer pursuant to which the Securities are
issued, certified by the City Secretary or any other officer of the Issuer and delivered to the Bank.

“Person” means an; individual, corporation artnershi joint venture, association, joint stock
9 » ) » s
company, trust, unincor; orated organization, or government or any agency or olitical subdivision of a
5 » 9.
governm ent.

“Predecessor Securities” of any particular Security means every previous Security evidencing all
or a portion of the same obligation as that evidenced by such particular Security (and, for the purposes of
this definition, any mutilated, lost, destroyed, or stolen Security for which a replacement Security has
been registered and delivered in lieu thereof pursuant to Section 4.06 hereof and the Order).

“Redemption Date” when used with respect to any Bond to be redeemed means the date fixed for
such redemption pursuant to the terms of the Order.

“Responsible Officer” when used with respect to the Bank means the Chairman or Vice-
Chairman of the Board of Directors, the Chairman or Vice-chairman of the Executive Committee of the
Board of Directors, the President, any Vice President, the Secretary, any Assistant Secretary, the
Treasurer, any Assistant Treasurer, the Cashier, any Assistant Cashier, any Trust Officer or Assistant
Trust Officer, or any other officer of the Bank customarily performing functions similar to those
performed by any of the above designated officers and also means, with respect to a particular corporate
trust matter, any other officer to whom such matter is referred because of his knowledge of and familiarity
with the particular subject.

“Security Register” means a register maintained by the Bank on behalf of the Issuer providing for
the registration and transfer of the Securities.



“Stated Maturity” means the date specified in the Order the principal of a Security is scheduled to
be due and payable.

Section 2.02. Other Definitions. The terms “Bank”, “Issuer”, and “Securities (Security)” have
the meanings assigned to them in the recital paragraphs of this Agreement.

The term “Paying Agent/Registrar” refers to the Bank in the performance of the duties and
functions of this Agreement. '

ARTICLE III. PAYING AGENT

Section 3.01. Duties of Paying Agent. As Paying Agent, the Bank shall, provided adequate
collected funds have been provided to it for such purpose by or on behalf of the Issuer, pay on behalf of
the Issuer the principal of each Security at its Stated Maturity, Redemption Date, or Acceleration Date, to
the Holder upon surrender of the Security to the Bank at the Bank Office.

As Paying Agent, the Bank shall, provided adequate collected funds have been provided to it for
such purpose by or on behalf of the Issuer, pay on behalf of the Issuer the interest on each Security when
due, by computing the amount of interest to be paid each Holder and preparing and sending checks by
United States mail, first class postage prepaid, on each payment date, to the Holders of the Securities (or
their Predecessor Securities) on the respective Record Date, to the address appearing on the Security
Register or by such other method, acceptable to the Bank, requested in writing by the Holder at the
Holder’s risk and expense.

Section 3.02. Payment Dates. The Issuer hereby instructs the Bank to pay the principal of and
interest on the Securities on the dates specified in the Order.

ARTICLE IV. REGISTRAR

Section 4.01. Security Register - Transfers and Exchanges. The Bank agrees to keep and
maintain for and on behalf of the Issuer at the Bank Office books and records (herein sometimes referred
to as the “Security Register”) for recording the names and addresses of the Holders of the Securities, the
transfer, exchange, and replacement of the Securities, and the payment of the principal of and interest on
the Securities to the Holders and containing such other information as may be reasonably required by the
Issuer and subject to such reasonable regulations as the Issuer and the Bank may prescribe. All transfers,
exchanges, and replacement of Securities shall be noted in the Security Register.

Every Security surrendered for transfer or exchange shall be duly endorsed or be accompanied by
a written instrument of transfer, the signature on which has been guaranteed by an officer of a federal or
state bank or a member of the National Association of Securities Dealers, in form satisfactory to the
Bark, duly executed by the Holder thereof or his agent duly authorized in writing.

_ The Bank may request any supporting documentation it feels necessary to effect a re-registration,
transfer, or exchange of the Securities.

To the extent possible and under reasonable circumstances, the Bank agrees that, in relation to an
exchange or transfer of Securities, the exchange or transfer by the Holders thereof will be completed and
new Securities delivered to the Holder or the assignee of the Holder in not more than three business days
after the receipt of the Securities to be cancelled in an exchange or transfer and the written instrument of
transfer or request for exchange duly executed by the Holder, or his duly authorized agent, in form and
manner satisfactory to the Paying Agent/Registrar.

(OR]



Section 4.02. Certificates. The Issuer shall provide an adequate inventory of printed Security
certificates to facilitate transfers or exchanges thereof. The Bank covenants that the inventory of printed
Security certificates will be kept in safekeeping pending their use, and reasonable care will be exercised
by the Bank in maintaining such certificates in safekeeping, which shall be not less than the care
maintained by the Bank for debt securities of other political subdivisions or corporations for which it
serves as registrar, or that is maintained for its own securities.

Section 4.03. Form of Security Register. The Bank, as Registrar, will maintain the Security
Register relating to the registration, payment, transfer, and exchange of the Securities in accordance with
the Bank’s general practices and procedures in effect from time to time. The Bank shall not be obligated
to maintain such Security Register in any form other than those which the Bank has currently available
and currently utilizes at the time.

The Security Register may be maintained in written form or in any other form capable of being
converted into written form within a reasonable time.

Section 4.04. List of Security Holders. The Bank will provide the Issuer at any time requested
by the Issuer, upon payment of the required fee, a copy of the information contained in the Security
Register. The Issuer may also inspect the information contained in the Security Register at any time the
Bank is customarily open for business, provided that reasonable time is allowed the Bank to provide an
up-to-date listing or to convert the information into written form.

Unless required by law, the Bank will not release or disclose the contents of the Security Register
to any person other than to, or at the written request of, an authorized officer or employee of the Issuer,
except upon receipt of a court order or as otherwise required by law. Upon receipt of a court order and
prior to the release or disclosure of the contents of the Security Register, the Bank will notify the Issuer so
that the Issuer may contest the court order or such release or disclosure of the contents of the Security
Register. '

Section 4.05. Return of Cancelled Certificates. The Bank will, at such reasonable intervals as
it determines, surrender to the Issuer, Securities in lieu of which or in exchange for which other Securities
have been issued, or which have been paid.

Section 4.06. Mutilated, Destroyed, Lost, or Stolen Securities. The Issuer hereby instructs the
Bank, subject to the applicable provisions of the Order, to deliver and issue Securities in exchange for or
in lieu of mutilated, destroyed, lost, or stolen Securities as long as the same does not result in an over
issuance.

In case any Security shall be mutilated, or destroyed, lost, or stolen, the Bank, in its discretion,
may execute and deliver a replacement Security of like form and tenor, and in the same denomination and
bearing a number not contemporaneously outstanding, in exchange and substitution for such mutilated
Security, or in lieu of and in substitution for such destroyed, lost, or stolen Security, only after (i) the
filing by the Holder thereof with the Bank of evidence satisfactory to the Bank of the destruction, loss, or
theft of such Security, and of the authenticity of the ownership thereof and (ii) the furnishing to the Bank
of indemnification in an amount satisfactory to hold the Issuer and the Bank harmless. All expenses and
charges associated with such indemnity and with the preparation, execution, and delivery of a
replacement Security shall be borne by the Holder of the Security mutilated, or destroyed, lost, or stolen.

Section 4.07. Transaction Information to Issuer. The Bank will, within a reasonable time
after receipt of written request from the Issuer, furnish the Issuer information as to the Securities it has
paid pursuant to Section 3.01, Securities it has delivered upon the transfer or exchange of any Securities



pursuant to Section 4.01, and Securities it has delivered in exchange for or in lieu of mutilated, destroyed,
lost, or stolen Securities pursuant to Section 4.06.

ARTICLE V. THE BANK

Section 5.01. Duties of Bank. The Bank undertakes to perform the duties set forth herein and
agrees to use reasonable care in the performance thereof.

The Bank is also authorized to transfer funds relating to the closing and initial delivery of the
Securities in the manner disclosed in the closing memorandum approved by the Issuer as prepared by the
Issuer’s Financial Advisor or other agent. The Bank may act on a facsimile or e-mail transmission of the
closing memorandum acknowledged by the Financial Advisor or the Issuer as the final closing
memorandum. The Bank shall not be liable for any losses, costs, or expenses arising directly or indirectly
from the Bank’s reliance upon and compliance with such instructions.

Section 5.02. Reliance on Documents, Etc. (a) The Bank may conclusively rely, as to the truth
of the statements and correctness of the opinions expressed therein, on certificates or-opinions furnished
to the Bank.

The Bank shall not be liable for any error of judgment made in good faith by a Responsible
Officer, unless it shall be proved that the Bank was negligent in ascertaining the pertinent facts.

No provisions of this Agreement shall require the Bank to expend or risk its own funds or
otherwise incur any financial liability for performance of any of its duties hereunder, or in the exercise of
any of its rights or powers, if it shall have reasonable grounds for believing that repayment of such funds
or adequate indemnity satisfactory to it against such risks or liability is not assured to it.

The Bank may rely and shall be protected in acting or refraining from acting upon any resolution,
certificate, statement, instrument, opinion, report, notice, request, direction, consent, order, bond, note,
security, or other paper or document believed by it to be genuine and to have been signed or presented by
the proper party or parties. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing statement, the Bank need not
examine the ownership of any Securities, but is protected in acting upon receipt of Securities containing
an endorsement or instruction of transfer or power of transfer which appears on its face to be signed by
the Holder or an agent of the Holder. The Bank shall not be bound to make any investigation into the
facts or matters stated in a resolution, certificate, statement, instrument, opinion, report, notice, request,
direction, consent, order, bond, note, security, or other paper or document supplied by the Issuer.

The Bank may consult with counsel, and the written advice of such counsel or any opinion of
counsel shall be full and complete authorization and protection with respect to any action taken, suffered,
or omitted by it hereunder in good faith and in reliance thereon.

The Bank may exercise any of the powers hereunder and perform any duties hereunder either
directly or by or through agents or attorneys of the Bank.

Section 5.03. Recitals of Issuer. The recitals contained herein with respect to the Issuer and in
the Securities shall be taken as the statements of the Issuer, and the Bank assumes no responsibility for
their correctness.

The Bank shall in no event be liable to the Issuer, any Holder or Holders of any Security, or any
other Person for any amount due on any Security from its own funds.



Section 5.04, May Hold Securities. The Bank, in its individual or any other capacity, may
become the owner or pledgee of Securities and may otherwise deal with the Issuer with the same rights it
would have if it were not the Paying Agent/Registrar, or any other agent.

Section 5.05. Money Held by Bank. A special depository account shall at all times be kept and
maintained by the Bank for the receipt, safekeeping, and disbursement of money received from the Issuer
and held hereunder for the payment of the Securities, and money deposited to the credit of such account
until paid to the Holders of the Securities, to the extent permitted by law, shall be continuously
collateralized by securities or obligations which qualify and are eligible under the laws of the State of
Texas to secure and be pledged as collateral for deposits of public funds by an instrumentality and
political subdivision of the State of Texas to the extent that such money is not insured by the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation. Payments made from such account shall be made by check drawn on
such account unless the owner of such Securities shall, at its own expense and risk, request such other
medium of payment.

All funds at any time and from time to time provided to or held by the Bank hereunder shall be
deemed, construed, and considered for all purposes as being provided to or held by the Bank in trust. The
Bank acknowledges, covenants, and represents that it is acting herein in trust in relation to such funds,
and is not accepting, holding, administering, or applying such funds as a banking depository, but solely as
a paying agent for and on behalf of the Security thereto. The Holders shall be entitled to the same
preferred claim and first lien on the funds so provided as are enjoyed by the beneficiaries of trust funds
generally. The funds provided to the Bank hereunder shall not be subject to warrants, drafts, or checks
drawn by the Issuer and, except as expressly provided herein, shall not be subject to compromise, setoff,
or other charge or diminution by the Bank.

The Bank shall be under no liability for interest on any money received by it hereunder.

Subject to the unclaimed property laws of the State of Texas and any provisions in the Order to
the contrary, any money deposited with the Bank for the payment of the principal, premium (if any), or
interest on any Security and remaining unclaimed for three years after final maturity of the Security has
become due and payable will be paid by the Bank to the Issuer, and the Holder of such Security shall
thereafter look only to the Issuer for payment thereof, and all liability of the Bank with respect to such
money shall thereupon cease. If the Issuer does not elect, the Bank is directed to report and dispose of the
funds in compliance with Title 6 of the Texas Property Code, as amended.

Section 5.06. Indemnification. To the extent permitted by law, the Issuer agrees to indemnify
the Bank for, and hold it harmless against, any loss, liability, or expense incurred without negligence or
bad faith on its part, arising out of or in connection with its acceptance or administration of its duties
hereunder, including the cost and expense against any claim or liability in connection with the exercise or
performance of any of its powers or duties under this Agreement.

Section 5.07. Interpleader. The Issuer and the Bank agree that the Bank may seek adjudication
of any adverse claim, demand, or controversy over its person as well as funds on deposit, in either a
Federal or State District Court located in the State and Issuer where the administrative offices of the
Issuer are located, and agree that service of process by certified or registered mail, return receipt
requested, to the address referred to in Section 6.03 of this Agreement shall constitute adequate service.
The Issuer and the Bank further agree that the Bank has the right to file a Bill of Interpleader in any court
of competent jurisdiction in the State of Texas to determine the rights of any Person claiming any interest

herein. .



Section 5.08. Depository Trust Company Services. It is hereby represented and warranted
that, in the event the Securities are otherwise qualified and accepted for “Depository Trust Company”
services or equivalent depository trust services by other organizations, the Bank has the capability and, to
the extent within its control, will comply with the “Operational Arrangements”, currently in effect, which
establishes requirements for securities to be eligible for such type depository trust services, including, but
not limited to, requirements for the timeliness of payments and funds availability, transfer turnaround
time, and notification of redemptions and calls.

Section 5.09. Reporting Requirements of Paying Agent/Registrar. To the extent required by
the Code and the regulations promulgated and pertaining thereto, it shall be the duty of the Paying
Agent/Registrar, on behalf of the Issuer, to report to the owners of the Securities and the Internal Revenue
Service (i) the amount of “reportable payments”, if any, subject to backup withholding during each year
and the amount of tax withheld, if any, with respect to payments of the Securities and (ii) the amount of
interest or amount treating as interest on the Securities and required to be included in gross income of the
owner thereof.

ARTICLE VI. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

Section 6.01. Amendment. This Agreement may be amended only by an agreement in writing
signed by both of the parties hereto.

Section 6.02. Assignment. This Agreement may not be assigned by either party without the
prior written consent of the other.

Section 6.03. Notices. Any request, demand, authorization, direction, notice, consent, waiver, or
other document provided or permitted hereby to be given or furnished to the Issuer or the Bank shall be
mailed or delivered to the Issuer or the Bank, respectively, at the addresses shown on the signature page
of this Agreement.

Section 6.04. Effect of Headings. The Article and Section headings herein are for convenience
only and shall not affect the construction hereof.

Section 6.05. Successors and Assigns. All covenants and agreements herein made by the Issuer
shall bind its successors and assigns, whether so expressed or not.

Section 6.06. Severability. In case any provision herein shall be invalid, illegal, or
unenforceable, the validity, legality, and enforceability of the remaining provisions shall not in any way
be affected or impaired thereby.

Section 6.07. Benefits of Agreement. Nothing herein, express or implied, shall give to any
Person, other than the parties hereto and their successors hereunder, any benefit or any legal or equitable
right, remedy, or claim hereunder.

Section 6.08. Entire Agreement. This Agreement and the Order constitute the entire agreement
between the parties hereto relative to the Bank acting as Paying Agent/Registrar and if any conflict exists
between this Agreement and the Order, the Order shall govern.

Section 6.09. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts,
each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which shall constitute one and the same Agreement.



Section 6.10. Termination. This Agreement will terminate (i) on the date of final payment of
the principal of and interest on the Securities to the Holders thereof or (ii) may be earlier terminated by
either party upon 60 days written notice; provided, however, an early termination of this Agreement by
either party shall not be effective until (a) a successor Paying Agent/Registrar has been appointed by the
Issuer and such appointment accepted and (b) notice has been given to the Holders of the Securities of
the appointment of a successor Paying Agent/Registrar. Furthermore, the Bank and Issuer mutually agree
that the effective date of an early termination of this Agreement shall not occur at any time which would
disrupt, delay, or otherwise adversely affect the payment of the Securities.

Upon an early termination of this Agreement, the Bank agrees to promptly transfer and deliver
the Security Register (or a copy thereof), together with other pertinent books and records relating to the
Securities, to the successor Paying Agent/Registrar designated and appointed by the Issuer.

The provisions of Section 1.02 and of Article Five shall survive and remain in full force and
effect following the termination of this Agreement.

Section 6.11. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with and
governed by the laws of the State of Texas. '



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the day and
year first above written.

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON TRUST
COMPANY, N.A.

Houston, Texas

By

Title
Address: 601 Travis
Floor 16
Houston, Texas 77002

Attest:

CITY OF KINGSVILLE, TEXAS
By By
City Secretary Mayor :
Address: 200 East Kleberg Avenue
Kingsville, Texas 78363
(ISSUER SEAL)

SIGNATURE PAGE OF PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR AGREEMENT



SCHEDULE A
Paying Agent/Registrar Fee Schedule

[TO COME]

B-1



EXHIBIT C
Notice of Redemption

To the Holders of
THE FOLLOWING NAMED SERIES OF
CITY OF KINGSVILLE, TEXAS
CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION, SERIES 2002A
Dated December 15, 2002

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the CITY OF KINGSVILLE, TEXAS has called for
redemption ON FEBRUARY 14, 2013 AT A PRICE OF PAR, PLUS ACCRUED INTEREST the
following described outstanding bonds (the “Obligations”) of the above described series as follows:

MATURITY DATES PRESENT CUSIP PRINCIPAL
(February 1) NUMBERS AMOUNT REDEEMED

2014 § 140,000
2015 145,000
2016 155,000
2017 155,000
2018 165,000
2019 90,000
2020 95,000
2021 : 95,000
2022 100,000
2023 105.000

TOTAL $1.245,000

NOTICE IS FURTHER GIVEN that due and proper arrangements have been made for providing
THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON TRUST COMPANY, N.A., Dallas, Texas, the Paying Agent for
the Bonds, with funds sufficient to pay the redemption price of the Bonds equal to the principal amount of
the Bonds and the interest thereon to the redemption date. In the event the Bonds, or any of them, are not
presented for redemption by the date fixed for their redemption, they shall not thereafter bear interest. If
due provision for the payment of the redemption price is made, then the Bonds automatically shall be
deemed to have been redeemed prior to their scheduled maturity, and they shall not bear interest after the
redemption date, and they shall not be regarded as being outstanding except for the right of the owner
thereof to receive the redemption price from the Paying Agent.

THIS NOTICE is issued and given pursuant to the redemption provisions in the proceedings
authorizing the issuance of the Bonds and in accordance with the recitals and provisions of each of the
Bonds.

C-1



NOTICE IS FURTHER GIVEN THAT the Bonds will be payable at and should be submitted
either in person or by certified or registered mail to the following address:

First Class/Registered/Certified ~ Express Delivery Only By Hand Only

The Bank of New York The Bank of New York The Bank of New York

Global Corporate Trust Global Corporate Trust Global Corporate Trust

P.0. Box 2320 2001 Bryan Street, 9th Floor 101 Barclay Street, 1st Floor East
Dallas, Texas 75221-2320 Dallas, Texas 75201 New York, NY 10286

IMPORTANT NOTICE: In compliance with the Economic Growth and Tax Relief
Reconciliation Act of 2001 and broker reporting requirements, the redeeming institution is required to
withhold 30.50% of the principal amount of your holdings redeemed unless it is provided with a W-9
Form certifying your social security number or federal employer tax identification number.

EXECUTED UNDER MY HAND and seal of office this January 14, 2013.

/s/ _Sam Fupgate
Mayor, City of Kingsville, Texas

Any questions regarding this notice may be addressed to (800) 275-2048.

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON TRUST
COMPANY, N.A. :

as Paying Agent

C-2



EXHIBIT D
Description of Annual Financial Information
The following information is referred to in Section 23 of this Ordinance.
Annual Financial Statements and Operating Data. The financial infonnétion and operating data

with respect to the Issuer to be provided annually in accordance with such Section are as specified (and
under the headings of the Official Statement referred to) below:

(a) the portions of the audited financial statements of the Issuer included in the Official
Statement, but for the most recently concluded fiscal year, and, to the extent that such statements are not
completed and available, unaudited financial statements for such fiscal year;

(b) the tables or schedules in the Official Statement in Tables 1 through 12.

Accounting Principles. The accounting principles, with respect to the Issuer, referred to in such
Section are the accounting principles described in the notes to the financial statements referred to in
paragraph 1 above, as such principles may be changed from time to time to comply with State law or
regulation.




EXHIBIT E
Escrow Deposit Letter

[Escrow Deposit Letter can be found in Tab No. ]

C-1

SAN_ANTONIO 11102629 v2 01/04/2013



AGENDA ITEM #12



AGENDA ITEM #13




Purchasing Department

361-595-8025
361-595-8035 Fax

DATE: January 3, 2013
TO: City Commission through City Manager
FROM: David Mason, Purchasing/Technology Director

SUBJECT: Bid 13-04 16” Emergency Water Line Extension Along General

SUMMARY Cavazos

This authorizes the award of a contract for the installation of the 16” Emergency
Water Line Project along General Cavazos.

BACKGROUND
We advertised for sealed bids on December 2, and December 9, 2012 and proposals
were originally to be accepted until 1:30 pm on December 21, 2012. One Bid
Addendum was issued on December 18, 2012 and Bid Opening was extended until
1:30 p.m. December 27, 2012. Two Bids were received on that date:

Etech Construction $ 188,686.25
Hubert Construction $ 246,000.00
RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended the contract be awarded to Etech Construction, Inc., 11115
Cedar Park, San Antonio, TX 78249.

FINANCIAL IMPACT
This action will expend $188,686.25 from fund 051-5-600.1-717.00 Cavazos Water
Line Extension and be reimbursed from 051-4-000-940.00.

Approved

Vincent Capell, City Manager



AGENDA ITEM #14



RESOLUTION # 2013-

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A
SECOND REVISED WATER UTILITY SUPPLY CONTRACT (GOV.
CONTRACT #N69450-12-C-0011) BETWEEN THE CITY OF KINGSVILLE,
TEXAS AND THE FEDERAL GOVERNMENT FOR NAVAL AIR STATION-
KINGSVILLE FOR EMERGENCY WATER LINE CONNECTION; REPEALING
ALL CONFLICTING RESOLUTIONS AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE
DATE.

WHEREAS, the City Commission of the City of Kingsville recognizes that the
continued operation of Naval Air Station Kingsville (NAS Kingsville) is important
to the economy of the City of Kingsville, Kleberg County, and the region and that
its future operational capacity should be protected because it fulfills an essential
community purpose; and

WHEREAS, the NAS Kingsville desires to continue purchasing water from the
City of Kingsville and the parties recently approved a new ten (10) year water
utility supply contract in 2012; and

WHEREAS, the parties now desire to install an emergency water line connection
from the City’s main water line to the new base wide water distribution system on
Naval Air Station Kingsville, thereby necessitating this amendment to the
contract; and

WHEREAS, the parties believe the contract amendment to be in the best interest
of both parties;

NOW THEREFOR, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Commission of the City of
Kingsville, Texas:

THAT the City Manager is authorized and directed as an act of the City of
Kingsville, Texas to enter into a Second Revised Water Utility Supply Contract
with the federal government to supply water to Naval Air Station-Kingsville in
accordance with Exhibit A hereto attached and made a part hereof.

THAT all resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict with this resolution are
repealed to the extent of such conflict only.



THAT this Resolution shall be and become effective on and after adoption.

PASSED AND APPROVED by a majority vote of the City Commission on the
14th day of _January , 2013.

Sam R. Fugate, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney



AMENDMENT OF SOLICITATION/MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT

1.CONTRACTID CODE 1 PAGE OF PAGES

J 1
2. AMENDMENT/MODIFICATION NO. 3.EFFECTIVE DATE 4, REQUISITION/PURCHASE REQ. NO. 5.PROJECT NO.(Ifapplicable)
29-Nov-2012
6. ISSUED BY ) CODE N69450 7, ADMINISTERED BY (lfother than item6) CODE
NAVFAC SOUTHEAST
ACQ COREUTILITIES See Item 6
BLDG 903, PO BOX 30
JACKSONVILLE FL 32212-0030
8. NAME AND ADDRESS OF CONTRACTOR (No., Street, County, State and Zip Code) 9A. AMENDMENT OF SOLICITATION NO.
KINGSVILLE, CITY OF
200 E KLEBERG AVE
KINGSVILLE TX 78363-4673 9B. DATED (SEE ITEM 1 1)
X 10A. MOD. QF CONTRACT/ORDER NO.
N69450-12-C-0011
10B. DATED (SEE ITEM 13)
CODE _1QCU9 |FACILITY CODE X | 01-Jun-2012
11. THISITEM ONLY APPLIES TO AMENDMENTS OF SOLICITATIONS
D The abovenumbered solicitation is amended as set frth in Item 14. The hour and date specified for receipt of Ofier l:l is extended, D is not extended.

Offer must acknowledge receipt ofthis amendment prior to the hour and date specified in the:solicitation or as amended by one ofthe Hllowing methods:

(a) By completing ltems 8 and 15, and retuming copies ofthe amendnent; (b) By acknowledging receipt ofthis amendment on each copy ofthe offer submitted;
or (c) By separate letter or telegram which includes a rerence to the solicitation and amendment numbers, FAILURE OF YOUR ACKNOWLEDGMENTTO BE
RECEIVED AT THE PLACE DESIGNATED FOR THE RECEIPT OF OFFERS PRIOR TO THE HOUR AND DATE SPECIFIED MAY RESULTIN

REJECTION OF YOUR OFFER. Ifby virtue ofthis amendirent you desire to change an offer already submitted, such change may be made by telegramor letter,
provided each telegramor letter makes reference to the solicitation and this amendirent, and is received prior to the opening hourand date specified.

12. ACCOUNTING AND APPROPRIATION DAT A (If required)
See Schedule

13. THISITEM APPLIES ONLY TO MODIFICATIONS OF CONTRACT SORDERS.
IT MODIFIES THE CONTRACT/ORDER NO. AS DESCRIBED IN ITEM 14,

A. THIS CHANGE ORDER IS ISSUED PURSUANT TO: (Specify authority) THE CHANGES SET FORTH IN ITEM 14 ARE MADE IN THE
CONTRACT ORDER NO. IN ITEM 10A.

B. THE ABOVE NUMBERED CONTRACT/ORDER IS MODIFIED TO REFLECT THE ADMINISTRATIVE CHANGES (such as.changes in paying
office, appropriation date, etc.) SET FORTH IN ITEM 14, PURSUANT TO THE AUTHORITY OF FAR 43,103(B).

X |C. THIS SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT IS ENTERED INTO PURSUANT TO AUTHORITY OF:
FAR 52.243-1 ALT | Changes - Fixed Price

D. OTHER (Specify type of modification and authority)

E. IMPORTANT: Contractor D isnot, is required to sign this document and return 1 copies to the issuing office.

14. DESCRIPTION OF AMENDMENT/MODIFICATION (Organized by UCF section headings, including solicitation/contract subject matter
where feasible.)
Modification Control Number:  jacadab513457

Prepared by: Garske, Robert B.

Emergency w ater line connection fromthe City's main 18" w ater fing to @ new base wide w ater distribution system on Naval Air Station
Kingsville, TX. See page 2 for full details. :

Reason Code: CREQ

Acceptance of this modification by the contractor constitutes an accord and satisfaction and represents payment in full for both time and
money and for any and all costs, impact effect, and for delays and disruptions arising out of, or incidental to, the w ork as herein revised.

Except.as provided herein, all terms and conditions ofthe document reerenced in Iten9A or 10A, as heretofore changed, remains unchanged and in full force and effect.

15A. NAME AND TITLE OF SIGNER (Type or print) 16A. NAME AND TITLE OF CONTRACTING OFFICER (Type or print)
TEL: EMAIL:
15B. CONTRACTOR/OFFEROR 15C. DATE SIGNED  |16B. UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 16C. DATE SIGNED
: BY
(Signature of person authorized to sign) (Signature of Contracting Officer)
EXCEPTION TO SF 30 30-105-04 STANDARD FORM 30 (Rev. 10-83)
APPROVED BY OIRM 11-84 Prescribed by GSA

FAR (48 CFR) 53.243



N69450-12-C-0011
(jacada5513457)
Page2 of 5

SECTION SF 30 BLOCK 14 CONTINUATION PAGE

SUMMARY OF CHANGES

SECTION SF 30 - BLOCK 14 CONTINUATION PAGE ,

The following have been added by full text:
P00002

Utility Service Agreement (Potable Water/Fire Line)
1. Water System
1.1 Connections

A new 16” emergency water main will be connected to the on-base combined potable and fire water distribution
system. The City of Kingsville (COK) shall build the off base portion of the 16” water main on Texas Department
of Transportation (DOT) right of way along General Cavazos Blvd. This water main connection will tap into the
City’s existing 18" water main located approximately 1,750 feet west of the intersection of General Cavazos Blvd
and Senator Carlos Truan Blvd and connect to the new Naval Air Station Kingsville (NASK) potable and fire water
distribution system. A new water meter shall be purchased and installed by the COK at a minimum size of 8”. The
COK shall maintain the new water main distribution system within the Texas DOT right of way.

1.2 Water Pressure and Flow

Pressures in the NASK potable water system shall be maintained in the range of 59-63 psi as measured at the NASK
North Water Quality Monitoring Station during non-fire fighting events. NASK daily potable water use pressures
shall be maintained via the existing primary 12” interconnect with COK located near the NASK back gate.

In the event of a fire or water emergency, if NASK potable water pressures falls below 53 psi, the new NASK
potable water system shall allow for service through the new emergency 16” interconnect located near the NASK
front gate. During a fire event, through the combination of flows through both 16” and 12” supply connections,
potable water system pressures shall be maintained in the range of 51-57 psi as measured at the NASK North Water
Quality Monitoring Station. :

COK shall be capable of providing a supply minimum of 150,000 gallons per day for potable water use via existing
12” water main.

A minimum flow rate of 41 GPM shall be maintained through the new emergency 16” interconnect at all times as to
not allow water to become stagnant in pipe. This amount is required to allow for complete turn-over of the volume
of water in approximately 2 days while minimizing the amount of water being blended with supply through the
existing 12” interconnect.

The COK shall be capable of providing 1,500 gpm for 4 hours through the combined 12 and 16” connections
during a fire event at NASK.

1.3 Private Water Distribution System Components



N69450-12-C-0011
(jacada5513457)
Page 3 of 5

Per City Code Ordinance, the Navy will install back flow preventers (BFP) on NASK property at the existing 12”
water main located at the back gate along Caesar Avenue and at the new 16” connection on NASK property along
Gen. Cavazos Blvd. The Navy will also replace the existing meter and vault at the existing connection.

The NASK will maintain the BFP and the water main and appurtenances within NASK property.
1.4 Water Quality Sampling

The NASK will provide, install and monitor a water quality sampling station on each public water connection point.
These stations, located on Navy property, will monitor for chloramines, free ammonia, TTHM, HAAS, and PH.

The COK will collect a daily water sample from NASK’s north gate on Caesar Street to monitor for Ammonia
concentration.

The quality of the water supplied by the COK will meet or exceed the standards dictated by the Environmental
Protection Agency’s Safe Drinking Water Act (EPA SDWA) and the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality
(TCEQ).

1.5 Rate

Naval Air Station Kingsville (NASK) will pay an outside city water rate for a 6” commercial meter based on rates
obtained from the City of Kingsville. '

1.6 Payment/Invoicing

A separate line item shall be established on future invoices to identify new services (emergency water line).
No payments will be made in advance.

1.7 Period of Performance

07 January 2013 — 01 July 2013 (180 days )

SECTION A - SOLICITATION/CONTRACT FORM
The total cost of this contract was increased by $256,363.00 from $1,500,000.00 (EST) to $1,756,363.00
(EST).

SECTION B - SUPPLIES OR SERVICES AND PRICES

CLIN 0001
The unit price amount has increased by $256,363.00 from $1,500,000.00 to $1,756,363.00.

The total cost of this line item has increased by $256,363.00 from $1,500,000.00 (EST) to $1,756,363.00
(EST).

SUBCLIN 000101 is added as follows:



N69450-12-C-0011

(jacada5513457)
Page 4 of 5
ITEMNO SUPPLIES/SERVICES  QUANTITY UNIT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT
000101 , $0.00
FUND ACRN AA
FFP
Funding Doc. No.: N6945012RCK2400 Customer ACRN:AA
FOB: Destination
MILSTRIP: N6945012RCK2400
NET AMT $0.00
ACRN AA $256,363.00
CIN: 000000000000000000000000000000
SECTION E - INSPECTION AND ACCEPTANCE
The following Acceptance/Inspection Schedule was added for SUBCLIN 000101:
INSPECT AT INSPECTBY  ACCEPT AT ACCEPT BY
Destination Government Destination Government
SECTION F - DELIVERIES OR PERFORMANCE
The following Delivery Schedule item has been added to SUBCLIN 000101:
DELIVERY DATE QUANTITY SHIP TO ADDRESS UIC
POP 07-JAN-2013 TO N/A N/A
01-JUL-2013 ' FOB: Destination

SECTION G - CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION DATA
Accounting and Appropriation
Summary for the Payment Office

As a result of this modification, the total funded amount for this document was increased by $256,363.00 from
$0.00 to $256,363.00.

SUBCLIN 000101:
Funding on SUBCLIN 000101 is initiated as follows:

ACRN: AA
CIN: 000000000000000000000000000000

Acctng Data: 97X4930 NE1K 000 77777 0 069450 2F 000000



N69450-12-C-0011
(jacada5513457)
Page 5 of 5

Increase: $256,363.00
Total: $256,363.00

Cost Code: 69450RCK 2400

SECTION I - CONTRACT CLAUSES

The following have been added by full text:
52.229-1 STATE AND LOCAL TAXES (APR 1984)

Notwithstanding the terms of the Federal, State, and Local Taxes clause, the contract price excludes all State and
Jocal taxes levied on or measured by the contract or sales price of the services or completed supplies furnished under
this contract. The Contractor shall state separately on its invoices taxes excluded from the contract price, and the

Government agrees either to pay the amount of the taxes to the Contractor or provide evidence necessary to sustain
an exemption.

(End of clause)

(End of Summary of Changes)



AGENDA ITEM #15



ORDINANCE NO. 2013-

AN ORDINANCE VACATING, ABANDONING, AND CLOSING BLOCK 11,
LOTS 1-15, INCLUDING A 20’ ALLEY, AND A UTILITY EASEMENT IN
YOUNG TERRACE ADDITION SUBDIVISION; REPEALING ALL
ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH AND PROVIDING FOR AN
EFFECTIVE DATE AND PUBLICATION.

WHEREAS, the plat for Young Terrace Addition Subdivision was approved by
the Kingsville City Commission back on October 19, 1959 at a duly noticed public
meeting;

WHEREAS, the City on January 25, 1999 via ordinance No. 99005 abandoned
all undeveloped land, except for a 10’ x 118’ utility easement between Lots 15 &
16 in Block 10, and Block 11, Lots 1-15, including a 20’ alley, in Young Terrace
Addition Subdivision;

WHEREAS, the owner of Young Terrace Addition Subdivision now seeks to
vacate/abandon Block 11, Lots 1-15, including a 20’ alley, and a 10’ x 118’ utility
easement between Lots 15 & 16 in Block 10 in that subdivision with the intention
of platting the land for alternate development;

WHEREAS, the City has confirmed with AEP, AT&T, CMA, Center Point and the
City public works departments that there are no active lines detected within the
utility easement or land referenced for abandonment/vacation and none of the
parties are opposed to said action by the City; and

WHEREAS, the property owner will pay the filing fees to have the documentation
for this action filed with the Kleberg County Clerk’s Office.

WHEREAS, this Ordinance is necessary to protect the public safety, health, and
welfare of the City of Kingsville.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE
CITY OF KINGSVILLE, TEXAS:

l.
THAT it is in the best interest of the City of Kingsville, Texas, that Block 11, Lots
1-15, including a 20’ alley, and a 10’ x 118’ utility easement between Lots 15 &
16 in Block 10 of Young Terrace Addition Subdivision as described below be
closed, vacated, and abandoned; and, the foregoing recitals are incorporated into
this ordinance by reference as findings of fact as if set forth herein at length.



THAT the City of Kingsville vacates, abandons, closes, and relinquishes any and
all interest in the following described property with said interest reverting to the
adjoining property owners.

Said property to be abandoned being Block 11, Lots 1-15, including a 20’ alley,
and a 10’ x 118’ utility easement between Lots 15 & 16 in Block 10 in Young
Terrace Addition Subdivision platted as part of the Young Terrace Addition as
recorded in the Kleberg County Map Records and more particularly described
below and set out in the attached “Exhibit A”.

Alley Block 11

BEGINNING, at the Northeast Corner of Block 11 of the East Boundary of the 20’
alley, Young Terrace Addition as it exists in November 1959, Kleberg County,
Texas;

THENCE, South for a distance of 436.13 feet to the Northwest Corner of Block
11 of the East Boundary of the 20’ alley, Young Terrace Addition, Kleberg
County, Texas;

THENCE, West for a distance of 20 feet to a point being the Southeast Corner of
Block 11 of the West Boundary of the 20’ alley, Young Terrace Addition, Kleberg
County, Texas;

THENCE, North for a distance of 436.13 feet to the Southeast Corner of Block 11
of the South Boundary of the 20’ alley, Young Terrance Addition, Kleberg
County, Texas;

THENCE, East for a distance of 20 feet to a point being the Northeast Corner of
Block 11 of the East Boundary of the 20’ alley, Young Terrace Addition, Kleberg
County, Texas, said point also being the POINT OF BEGINNING.

Utility Easement

BEGINNING, at the Northwest Corner of Block 10, Lot 16 of the West boundary
of the 10’ utility easement, Young Terrace Addition as it exists in November
1959, Kleberg County, Texas;

THENCE, South for a distance of 118 feet to the Southwest Corner of Block 10,
Lot 16 of the West boundary of the 10’ utility easement, Young Terrace Addition,
Kleberg County, Texas;

THENCE, East for a distance of 10 feet to a point being the Southeast Corner of
boundary of the 10’ utility easement, Young Terrace Addition, Kleberg County,
Texas;




THENCE, North for a distance of 118 feet to the Northeast Corner of Block 10,
Lot 16 of the East boundary of the 10’ utility easement, Young Terrance Addition,
Kleberg County, Texas;

THENCE, East for a distance of 10 feet to a point being the Northwest Corner of
Block 10, Lot 16 of the West Boundary of the 10’ utility easement, Young Terrace
Addition, Kleberg County, Texas, said point also being the POINT OF
BEGINNING.

HI.

THAT the City Manager is authorized to execute the conveyance of said property
described hereinabove pursuant to Texas Law; and, the City Secretary is hereby
authorized and instructed to file a signed and sealed copy of this ordinance in
and among the-records of the City, and in the land records of Kieberg County.

v

THAT all Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict with this Ordinance are
repealed to the extent of such conflict only.

V.

THAT if for any reason any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, word
or provision of this ordinance shall be held invalid or unconstitutional by final
judgment of a court of competent jurisdiction, it shall not affect any other section,
paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, word or provision of this ordinance, for it
is the definite intent of this City Commission that every section, paragraph,
subdivision, clause, phrase, word or provision hereof be given full force and
effect for its purpose.

V1.
THAT this Ordinance shall be not be codified, but will become effective on and
after adoption and publication as required by law.

INTRODUCED on this the 14th day of January, 2013.

PASSED AND APPROVED on this the _28th _ day of January, 2013.

Sam R. Fugate, Mayor



ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney



o) £ i o) Syge wasf
o] 4 S B L e el A0 L] 5 [, o ool et

P :
- AT Y 227 < n s 2%
bz By GRS »uuw..,.m.ulm\wl e 2 e
..ﬂ%\ Z g oS TSI ] ey " “PIIOL; DEVMIIYLO STFUD
R oy pres fg poidacee c‘m!uu.wvvw.n? NOLIGSY STvaaa DU st B9 St O O IS GO MY SR BT LY S5UIES SRIKE I LD
"ot onnas, 30 1ed Gutobasod. 'us 1243 Pigsan hquay op “SexoL B i Fo EAT LY PUE (YOS ouust B9
o eI 70 BOR TR S <MD YfATBCL S > oz BIaGpL o3 pUe cmuuwvav bunod ‘umosg Vg 1 _peuenc pusy. u%%ﬁwz& sinparns: e sewas. <hyuran Borey P A
P Ao o =2 o 5y T OIS SIIEII 40 LINADD oac rechici iy UM SR FO L UOHIRE <9 YOI CFT M
AOLSIAITIIS PIEIP LTS TN T SIOLLITE S0 1SVXEL 3O VIS SADOPG Learear S ARG PUCT JO TASDE LS BUIUINIDD. LORINPINS & ONIPT < Rhg
ShiRrienGD cmoys GOAIY FICLIIZL ONPIOK I S Ais
gy pogy bprozs g op ey G L WHW S * | \ . D0 TTIIS )
.MT...M#N_. RTCT LT O ALNCD Commpory .MW.NQ&E bixgrcge 4 SAGIL TTUASONIN u).. ol
i R ESURRL SO TLOUS - e T vt Fii
\mmw B o e 5= AT s NOHIGOY FOFHHTL GNAIOAL o7 <
KXt ] % S A%
S B o o | jelojo)oi=talr]
TSI e 3. 7 28 TrEyOD 3
7 N EPIGET —r | o =
i, Bus avpun pues o) ol . . : S BT R = R T P B
speu Gamne o sooadas bpyeinoe pag eqnag £ gea; £ 3neasho H N L& o) ~——
FROLIOAY SIwSKEL Ak 30 168 i eaf Bpeas 6qaadn Shogutaltapr s rara g haied
| op sexal My ‘Seuibuz 12uaiecasord Bouaely € Lk . x
- b E L ted .d\.\‘hhﬂ\“.\ . .W M-\h\u- R scios loc i on lavees 1 teves
) A 3 4
LI =z WL do IS TG A , AL % T TR TRV TR T T S ks
-Sahray Chivoos Guamain s & v/ A~ . tu-Wnn L X .
Com e 7 . é 4 ; PR 3 ﬁ....'mmm.hww.h:v.h EA X}
1 - fon G thjapoy buaqaid 32 e G o i3 (e 2.l ]
- rmn_ .Nmnﬂ.p bisp pre Sz mano Gomlie oLl .ﬁ.ﬁ s85T Pk - ! = o S > plelole e laSalal B0 oo e
3 351330 [ Of BI0D3d 4o PHILE S UoMAItUN; 3o 9. o+ N % . < A s s e 33 g CLNIWARSIA DININZLEZ
peoisien o GHM esn .-W.w movmwﬂ;ﬂvmwa‘pov Kotleow - V. J i N 30 NOILYDOT
%azé%i@mﬁs! Dt 443 P10 bty op Ssmral H N ) IS T K " T B B e [ D] 2| = | = v
(huncy Boeain 203 puw Uz JPoT nod IGE ST NDBD CIPRX 29N J ) ) 4
. roanaEx 20 ALNOOD 3 7 Eabmiswbalabatbelozke
. VAR 20 2AVIS - uw
- — 3] = g % L3 - 52
wwras st 30 o Sabeds = - m
g g s g s > =
ﬂugwoi?nnnﬁ-l!ﬂvmm. +, wow pue e hapebsrsErpPereEs
. peanadde CAMA NOIJUSAV EIWINNLL-ONNOA hﬂ jot sty
vwn..an Gaway op Caipaabu Fo Rus 4t Jo o AT ST lmtmiomiololelel ol o dwm Sl 2o so7 oo
P ADTWCIIRN 4@ ALNOTD » % -
¢ - IBVARL IO 24VIS i s o .
= T T T TR B
A 77 hisiid .&..&.h\ma.ﬁﬁnwfw.ﬂ.ﬂw&u =
«sexor Thionon Eisqarx 3 .
toymaBory 30 Payo 24 fo uomsuoman Gz puw busuna o it P I P A S N S iz
wes T bep Sniipnies T S B
g pracodde 52 pue Toexal SHEN0S 60421 mﬂ?ﬁ.@nﬁ-ﬂﬂ.ﬂfuﬂﬂ R T
uﬁ%estiiru?....&.z.nm..f;nl«..i!.ﬂ.uﬁhw - - s hsphabcbhobskobelaRey
o FALGNT uBed S NOILITOW JOVHALL GNOGA QY4 Fo el eEUL g4 o 2 5
1DNIGTTE 40 Aanao x =9 — £ tpimloinlolel »le oo b
. Lo 2uvie W o1 Ay w a 5 Sl P v ) L T g g
- .Vu = - e A e R AT AT AL A R G G R = .hds ST ETETE TS T 5T EPwm
b T TR ‘
3 [ ]z @ L » - L
~ g — S Emto bt por ozl 2T EZRFY ShoEombiwpoutuabe oz 2Ry
, 4 97430 30 (WG pur puwy fu opun WO ~ s X geis @ 4 m
- N ey .-.lh“-f—. byoed aumulu.h!; 3. 0% a - = - -3 = = o o Let =te = \w = - = o o 5
% L 403 amre ~ - - - ~ - - - E 23 - - - - - - o
?«%& 3 gras ok oy .m.o&m_th_uxnl qoes ﬁ:lmw_.k.....i o) ~5 3 3 g~ s - jad It > b * [l % =
e et M o L D o e e ey Paeadde ez G batbsbohelosfbshrhspaEes ahnforbsralcforsheterarigy
Bunuouied’ %w% wiYE S CRppoyine m’h.ﬂ.‘rln 243 ‘o Fucjaa 2 . ® e - N ol
AAIIDH SO ALNOED ~ v A\ ost mi mt o] ml i ol o) ool m» 28 il | oot wl oo d sod ool m i anf oo loege /YT
wealiouws ¥ > P P Pedd oo iagS TAY s g a z
neen w0 ) L . -~ N P o g e ey T R I S N B R P T o e e B W e M B ] M.ma
R & — =} 2l
IaeanE Oul . & -Vw.ﬁ-@.&ﬁ.hx-m-h.k.h.h e ERZEIY & EH oy s he b2 -9t8 P et RIGS
QUNBIG 556t “ngeED F° rep g2 % BHL i - uen
- 3 “rotiiady on )l on ) onl onl i2 iz o | o ot = oddm b gz 3 am ) oo ot o e f oo} o tegne b ey -
ZavAEAL GNOGA SHF 3O 3G 43 LM UGN Umous SE SGewbEY it e > L ez 2
puR sERES (1@ ONAnd 2G4 O 930G ) S0 AEDIPOP fqaidy op poe H " =k - 22 i = oy 4
Tyee PG LOIIALRIIR O IEOINd S4F 303 TIMOUS ST s funFarty s
pue SRAYG TS . SLC! pRpIMPLCS PUw PIABAINS, D4 ©F AW “pans
DL PESAND BARY PUES URESDL UMOYS PUB] J6 JIBAL TOY 3T EIUMO -D A4
g W 0o 003 hITD RARIEY OP SqwoD T3P PUW [eRMDS ouuE “am i R g F
q IEBILITAIO AINADY & ON LT7 NZVS
BYRIL IO BITLS
k . NOLLVDIGHA SUINMO

Pa




Engineering Department
361-595-8007
361-595-8035 Fax

DATE: December 28, 2012

TO: City Commission through City Manager

FROM: Naim Khan, Director of Public Works/City Engineer

SUBJECT: Vacate (Abandon) a Block, including an Alley, & Utility Easement in Young Terrace
Addition Subdivision

SUMMARY
This item authorizes the city to vacate (abandon) Block 11, Lots 1-15, including 20’
alley, and a 10’ x 118’ utility easement between Lots 15 & 16 in Block 10 of the
Young Terrace Addition Subdivision.

BACKGROUND

The Plat of Young Terrace Addition Subdivision that was accepted by the Kingsville
City Commission on the 19" day of October 1959; and, on January 25, 1999 with
Ordinance No. 99005, all undeveloped land was abandoned except for a 10" x 118’
utility easement and Block 11, Lots 1-15, including an alley. The property owners,
Nolan Farms, are requesting to abandon (or vacate) the 10" x 118’ utility easement
and land with alley with the intention of platting this subdivision for alternative
developments in the near future. Staff has verified with AEP, AT&T, CMA, Center
Point and the City’s Water and Sanitary Sewer Departments that there are no active
lines detected within the easement or land depicted in the plat referenced above.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends that the requested easement and land be vacated and abandoned
as reflected in the ordinance for this item.

FINANCIAL IMPACAT
No financial impact to the City of Kingsville. Staff requires that all documentation of
the vacating of the land and easement be appropriately recorded by the property
owner at the Kleberg County Clerk’s Office pursuant to state law with the property
owner being responsible for any and all filing fees.

Approved

Vincent Capell, City Manager



AGENDA ITEM #16



ORDINANCE NO._ 2013-

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2012-2013 BUDGET FOR THE
GENERAL FUND FOR THE STREET DEPARTMENT TO RECEIVE FUNDING FOR
STREET IMPROVEMENTS AND REPAIRS FOR WORK DONE IN FRONT OF THE SANTA
GERTRUDIS INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT ADMINISTRATION AND SCHOOL
BUILDING. :

WHEREAS, it was unforeseen when the budget was adopted that there would be a need for
funding for these expenditures.

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Commission of the City of Kingsville that the Fiscal Year 2012-
2013 budget be amended as follows:

v CITY OF KINGSVILLE
DEPARTMENT REVENUES AND EXPENSES

BUDGET AMENDMENT
Dept. Department Account Account Budget | Budget
No. Name: Name: Number: Increase Decrease
Fund 001 General Fund
Revenue
4-000.0 Intergovernmental Revenue  940.00 $10,000
Expense
5-305.0 Street & Bridge 521.00 $10,000

[To receive funding for street and drainage improvements and repairs from the Santa
Gertrudis Independent School District for repairs done near the SGISD Administration and
School building.]

THAT all Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict with this Ordinance are repealed to
the extent of such conflict only.

fl.

THAT if for any reason any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, word or provision
of this ordinance shall be held invalid or unconstitutional by final judgment of a court of
competent jurisdiction, it shall not affect any other section, paragraph, subdivision, clause,
phrase, word or provision of this ordinance, for it is the definite intent of this City Commission
that every section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, word or provision hereof be given
full force and effect for its purpose.

\A



THAT this Ordinance shall be codified and become effective on and after adoption and
publication as required by law.

INTRODUCED on this the ___14th day of _January , 2013.
PASSED AND APPROVED on this the __day of ___, 2013.

EFFECTIVE DATE:

Sam R. Fugate, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney



Engineering Department
361-595-8007
361-595-8035 Fax

DATE: December 31, 2012

TO: City Commission through City Manager

FROM: Naim Khan, Director of Public Works/City Engineer
SUBJECT: Intergovernmental Revenue

SUMMARY
This item authorizes staff to accept $10,000 from SGISD and use it for the Street
improvement in front of the school.

BACKGROUND '

The City finished the drainage and street improvement project in front of Santa Gertrudis
School several months ago. This project was a part of Santa Rosa/Corral Drainage project.
Since the culvert under the school driveway was built above the outfall pipes under Santa
Rosa, storm water used to pond in this neighborhood and also water from the school
detention pond used to stay for days. This project has improved the overall drainage
situation in this area including the discharge from the detention pond.

The City had discussion with SGISD on several occasions previously regarding the
participation of Santa Gertudis School in the City’s Santa Rosa/Corral Drainage Project.
There was a verbal agreement between SGISD and the City to make a $10,000
contribution to the City for the project. Staff recently contacted SGISD. They have
informed the City that they are ready to pay as was initially promised.

Staff would like to use this money to improve the streets from Santa Gertrudis to Santa
Cecelia, Right turn lane from Santa Cecelia to Santa Gertrudis and the pavement in front
the school driveway.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends accepting $10,000 from SGISD and approving a budget
amendment from Intergovernmental Revenue to Street & Bridge (001-5-305.0-
521.00) so that this money can be used for the improvement of the streets in front
of the school as mentioned above.

FINANCIAL IMPACT
This is budget neutral. The City will receive $10,000 of intergovernmental revenue
for expenditure in Street & Bridge fund.

Approved

Vincent Capell, City Manager



AGENDA ITEM #17



ORDINANCE NO._2013-

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2012-2013 BUDGET FOR THE POLICE
DEPARTMENT TO PURCHASE AN ID CARD SYSTEM FROM FISCAL YEAR 2012
SURPLUS.

WHEREAS, it was unforeseen when the budget was adopted that there would be a need for
funding for these expenditures this fiscal year.

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Commission of the City of Kingsville that the Fiscal Year 2012-
2013 budget be amended as follows:

CITY OF KINGSVILLE

DEPARTMENT EXPENSES
BUDGET AMENDMENT

Dept. Department Account Account Budget Budget
No. Name: Name: Number: Increase Decrease
Fund 001  General Fund
Capital
2 Fund Balance Unreserved Fund Bal. 610.00 4,307.00
Expenses
5-210.1 Police Dept-Admin. Minor Eq./Office Furn. 217.00 4,307.00

4,307.00

[To draw down FY 2012 General Fund balance reserves created from FY 2012 fiscal
surplus for Kingsville Police Department to purchase an id card system.]

THAT all Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict with this Ordinance are repealed to
the extent of such conflict only.

THAT if for any reason any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, word or provision
of this ordinance shall be held invalid or unconstitutional by final judgment of a court of
competent jurisdiction, it shall not affect any other section, paragraph, subdivision, clause,
phrase, word or provision of this ordinance, for it is the definite intent of this City Commission
that every section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, word or provision hereof be given
full force and effect for its purpose.



V.
THAT this Ordinance shall be codified and become effective on and after adoption and
publication as required by law.
INTRODUCED on this the _14th day of _January , 2013.

PASSED AND APPROVED on this the __day of , 2013.

EFFECTIVE DATE:

Sam R. Fugate, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney



KINGSVILLE POLICE DEPARTMENT

INTER-OFFICE MEMORANDUM
December 13, 2012

TO : James Bryson, Accountant
FROM : Ricardo Torres, Chief of Police

SUBJECT : ID Card System

The Kingsville Police Department Administrative Division is responsible for making all of the
City of Kingsville’s Identification Cards. During the last several months the printer ribbon for
the printer used by our current ID card system is no longer being manufactured. It seemed easy
enough to just get a new printer. In checking this avenue we found that the new printers do not
work with the old software and the old system that we currently have in house.

Therefore, with the assistance of Mr. Mason, Purchasing Director, we were able to locate pricing
on DIR Contract for the attached equipment. Originally this equipment was supposed to have -
been purchaSed last budget year with left over 2002-2002A funds that were allocated to the
Kingsville PD in the Small Equipment line item. I checked with you and received an e-mail
dated December 4™, 2012 that the funds were available and that a budget adjustment would have
to be submitted to the City Commissioner for consideration. I am requesting that this take place
so that we can make this purchase.

I have attached a quote from SHI Government Solutions acquired by our Purchasing Director,
David Mason in the amount of $4,307.00 for the cost of the equipment via DIR-SCD-810. (See
attached quote for details.)

Thank you all for your assistance regarding this matter and I shall await your comments to
proceed.



" Covernment Soltions

Pricing Proposal

Quotation # 6073170
Created On: 11/27/2012
Valid Until:  12/14/2012

_City of Kingsville Inside Sales Manager
David Mason Jay Martell
200 E Kieberg 78363 1301 South Mo-Pao Expressway
PO Box 1458 Bulte 376
Kingsville, TX 78364 Austin, TX 768746
United States Phone: 800-870-6079

Phone; (361) 505-8025
Fex: (381)595-8038
Emall  dmason@sityofkingsville.com

All Prlcos-are In US Dollar (USD)
Produat

Faxi  512-732-0232

Email  Jay_Martell@SHL.Com

Qty  Your Price Total
1 Canon PowerShot ELPH 110 HS - Digital camera - compact - 16,1 Mplix - 5 x optical 1 $255.00 $255.00
zoom - black
Canon - Part#: 60398001
Note: DIR-SDD-810
2 Agure ID Exprass « (v.7) ~licénse - 1 user - Win 1 $438.00 $438.00
HID Glohal - Part#: 86412
3 Zeohra P430i ~ Plastic card printer - color - duplex - dye sublimation/thermal transfer 1 $3,084.00 $3,084.00
CR-80 Card (85.6 x 54-mm) up to 130 cards/hour (color) - capaclity: 100 cards - USB
.Zebra Technologles - Part#: P4301-UOOAA-IDO
Note: ***Estimated shipping date 8/17/2012*** D|R-SDD-810
4 ZabraCare Extended Warranty - Extended service agresment - parts and labor -3 1 $415.00 $415.00
years  carry-in ~ for Zebra P430l
Zebra Tachnologles ~ Part#; CAQ-P430-3C0
Note: DIR-8DD-810
5 -CARD DIGITAL IMAGING, ZEBRA 104523-114 10 ML PVC CARD (1000 PER BOX), 5 $0.60 $3.00
MINIMUM ORDER QUANTITY: 1
Brady - Part#: 1350-5080
6 Zeobra UHF Gen 2'RFID Impinj Monza 4QT - RF proximity card-(pack of 100) - for 1 $112,00 $112.00
Zebra P330i, PA30!
Zebra Technologles - Part#: 800059-402
Note: *DELIVERY DATE 2-3 Woeks**
Total $4,307.00

Additional Comments

Good afternoon. Here is the price quote you requested.

Please provide end-user contact information (first name, last name, and email address) for all orders. Not including

this information may result In a delay in order protessing.

Also, please include ‘SHI quote number on your PO, Please contact me if you have any questions,

Thank You for choosing SHIsGS! To ensyre the best level of serviae, please provide End User Name, Phone Number, and E-Mall
Address when submitting-a Purchase Order. For any additional informatlon inoluding Hardware and Seftware Contract Numbers,

please oontaot an SHI-GS Sales Representative at 800-870-6079,



The Produots offered under this proposal are subject to the SHI Return Polley posted af www.shl.com/returnpolicy, unless there Is
an exlsting agreement betwaen SHI and the Customer.



AGENDA ITEM #18



CITY OF KINGSVILLE

(GePHRD DI I DU AU IGD D D DDA DD AP DD DI

P. O. BOX 1458 — KINGSVILLE, TEXAS 78364
November 28, 2012

Vince Capell

City Manager

City of Kingsville

P.O. Box 1458
Kingsville, Texas 78364

Re: Consider waiving interest on Weed Liens
Property owned by Lionel H. Alarcon
Lot 11-12, Block 37, Original Town

Lien # 1 Vol. 384 Page 858, filed 02/26/08 principal $ 1,028.40 + interest $421.70=$1,450.04
Lien # 2 Vol. 402 Page 381, filed 11/20/08 principal § 281.45 + interest $112.58= § 394.03
Lien # 3 Vol. 402 Page 373, filed 11/20/08 principal § 422.19 + interest $168.88= § 591.07
Lien # 4 Vol. 441 Page 348, filed 10/26/10 principal § 422.19 + interest $ 84.44= § 506.63

Lien # 5 Vol. 475 Page 426, filed 08/15/12 principal § 422.19 + interest > _ = § 43274
$2,576.42 $5 $ 3,374.57

Mr. Capell,

M. Lionel H. Alarcon is requesting the City waive the Weed Lien Interest accrued prior to 8/15/12

on the property he owns located at Lot 11-12, Block 37, Original Town (323 E. Henrietta). Mr. Alarcon
acquired the property through a tax sale on August 2010. Current taxes due are for 2012 $125.72. Per Mr.
Alarcon there was no title policy purchased so he was unaware of the above referenced liens. The home
that sat on the property was recently demoed by the City on October 30™ 2012. The total cost of the
demo was $1,236 and Mr. Alarcon signed an agreement to make monthly installments of $103.00 per
month.

There are five (5) separate Weed Lien filed against the property. The liens have been numbered Lien # 1,
Lien # 2, and Lien # 3, Lien #4, and Lien#5 for reference purposes of this letter. Lien #1 covers work
performed from 04/07/05 through 11/20/07 by the City, Lien # 2 covers work performed on 5/29/2008 by
the City, Lien #3 covers work performed on 10/19/2006 through 04/21/2008 by the City, Lien #4 covers
work performed on 08/28/2008 through 12/18/2008 by the City, and Lien #5 covers work performed on
12/14/2010 through 06/08/2011.

If the Commission were to approve the waiver of interest in the amount of $787.60, Mr. Lionel H. Alarcon
would be required to pay the principal amount of $2,576.42 plus $10.55 in interest for the lien filed
8/15/12 for a total amount due of $2,586.97 within 30 days after the Commission approval date for the
waiver of interest to be effective.

Sincerely,

Marle § . Bus l/w?

Mark A. Rushing



Kleberg County Tax Office

P.0O. Box 1457

Kingsville, TX 78363

361-595-8542
361-595-8546 (fax)

Roll Year

2012

Statement Number

2012000207

Account Number

1-001-037-11000-192

Name

ALARCON LIONEL H

Address

1501 E WARREN AVE

KINGSVILLE
6542

TX 78363-

Legal Description

ORIG TOWN, BLOCK 37, LOT 11, 12

Legal Description

000323 E HENRIETTA

Mortgage Co. Name

Market Value 4,000

Entity Taxable Tax Rate HS DV Other Current Penalty/Int| Other Due |Amount Paid| Last Pay 2Amount Due

Value Exemption Exemption Exemption Levy erest Due Date :

CITY OF 4,000 .842200 0 $33.69 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $33.68
KINGSVILLE
KINGSVILLE 4,000 1.4594100 0 $59.76 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $59.76
ISD )
KLEBERG 4,000 .744810 0 $29.79 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $29.79,
COUNTY
SOUTH TX 4,000 .061850 0 $2.48 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2.48
WATER AUTH
Total Due Today $125.72
Total Due In December |$125.72
Total Due In January [$125.72
Total Due In February |[$134.53



AGENDA ITEM #19



RESOLUTION #2013-

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT FOR THE POSITION OF CITY
MANAGER WITH VINCENT J. CAPELL; REPEALING ALL CONFLICTING
RESOLUTIONS AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE."

WHEREAS, the chief administrator for the City of Kingsville (“City”) is the City
Manager and the professional services contract for the position of City Manager
expires in March 2013; and

WHEREAS, the City Commission is charged with filing the position of City
Manager and approving any contract for services for the position; and

WHEREAS, the City Commission desires to retain the services of the current
City Manager and has decided to consider a renewal of his professional services
contract prior to its expiration; and

WHEREAS, it is mutually deemed sound, desirable, practicable, and beneficial
for the parties to enter into the agreement attached hereto.

NOW THEREFOR, BE IT RESOLVED by the Clty Commission of the City of
Kingsville, Texas:
l.

THAT the Mayor is authorized and directed as an act of the City of Kingsville,
Texas to enter into a Professional Services Contract for the position of City
Manager with Vincent J. Capell in accordance with Exhibit A hereto attached and
made a part hereof.

Il.

THAT all resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict with this resolution are
repealed to the extent of such conflict only.

.

THAT this Resolution shall be and become effective on and after adoption.



PASSED AND APPROVED by a majority vote of the City Commission on the
14th day of _ January , 2013.

Sam R. Fugate, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney



EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

THIS EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT is made and entered into this the 1*
day of March , 2013, by and between the CITY OF KINGSVILLE, TEXAS
(hereinafter referred to as the “City”), a Texas home-rule municipality, and VINCENT J.
CAPELL (hereinafter referred to as “Manager”), both of which parties hereto understand and
agree as follows:

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, City Commission desires to employ VINCENT J. CAPELL as City
Manager for the City of Kingsville, Texas; and

WHEREAS, it is the desire of Kingsville City Commission to provide certain benefits,
establish certain conditions of employment, and to set certain working conditions of said Manager;
and

WHEREAS, VINCENT J. CAPELL desires to accept employment as Manager, and an
officer, of said City on the terms outlined herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements
herein contained, and hereinbefore stated, the parties hereto agree as follows:

A. Duties and Responsibilities

As City Manager, Manager agrees to perform all duties and responsibilities as described in the
City Charter, the Municipal Code, the ordinances of the City, and as reasonably directed by the
City Commission.

B. Salary

The Manager will receive a base salary of $ 10,833.33 per month (§ 130,000 annualized) payable
in installments at the same time as other employees of the City are paid, commencing with the
first pay period after the start date of this contract. The Manager shall receive the same increase
in his base salary as other city executive level management employees.

C. Automobile Allowance

The City agrees to pay Manager a monthly automobile allowance of $500.00 ($6,000.00 per
annum). The monthly automobile allowance shall be subject to review from time to time by the
City Commission and accordingly modified, if deemed necessary. This monthly automobile
allowance shall cover all automobile-related expenses incurred by Manager, including expenses
for automobile repair, maintenance, insurance, operation and replacement. Manager shall
receive additional reimbursement for excess mileage outside the area as defined in the City of
Kingsville “Travel Policy”.



Page 2

D. Vacation Leave & Sick Leave

Sick leave shall be calculated in accordance with the City of Kingsville “Administrative Policies
and Procedures Manual”. Vacation leave shall be provided at four weeks (160 hours) per year
available on the first day of the contract year, March 1% of each year. Vacation leave remaining
at the end of one contract year period shall lapse and shall not carryover to the next contract year
period. Sick leave and vacation leave shall be paid out upon separation in accordance with the
City of Kingsville “Administrative Policies and Procedures Manual”.

E. Health Insurance

The Manager shall be covered by the City’s group medical insurance plan. The City shall
contribute 100 percent of all premiums for the Manager’s coverage. The Manager may elect to
have his/her eligible dependents covered under the health plan with the City contributing a
percentage of the premiums as established by the City Commission. The fixed rate for the
monthly premium for the Manager’s eligible dependents (spouse or family coverage), should he
elect to pay for such coverage, shall not exceed $100.00 per month during the term of this
contract.

F. Life Insurance

The City agrees to provide the Manager a basic life insurance plan equal to the City Manager’s
Annual Salary for the term of this contract . The City of Kingsville pays all premiums associated
with this policy. The Manager may, at his option and at his cost, increase the basic life insurance
plan amount, if such higher insurance is available under the City’s life insurance plan.

G. Residency Required

The City Manager is required to reside within the City limits of Kingsville for the duration of
this contract.

H. Severance Pay

In the event the City Commission decides to terminate Manager’s employment during such time
Manager is willing and able to continue performing the duties of the City Manager, then the City
agrees to continue all salary and benefits in effect for Manager at the time of termination for a
period of six (6) months beyond the date of termination, in return for Manager’s agreement to
remain available to perform consulting services for a six (6) month period following termination;
provided, however, in the event that severance is paid to Manager, Manager agrees that he shall
contemporaneously execute and deliver to the City a full release of any and all claims that he
may have against the City. The failure to execute and deliver such release shall nullify any
obligation by the City to pay severance.



Page 3

In the event the City Commission terminates the Manager’s employment because of the
commission of an illegal act, including but not limited to, acts involving personal gain,
corruption, misconduct or malfeasance in office, any felony, violation of the City Charter, the
Administrative Policies and Procedures Manual or the City of Kingsville “Code of Ethics” then
the City shall have no obligation whatsoever to pay any severance pay designated in this section.

Severance shall not be unreasonably withheld as a result of minor or unintentional acts.
I. Texas Municipal Retirement System

Contributions to Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS) are mandatory for all full time
employees. Contribution rates and other policies of the City’s TMRS Plan are determined by the
City Commission and are subject to change.

J. Performance Evaluationand Compensation Adjustments

The City .agrees to provide a performance evaluation at annual intervals. Adjustment of base
salary, if any, is at the sole discretion of the City Commission.

K. Business Expenses

The City agrees to provide written guidelines on which business and related expenses will be
reimbursed by the City.

L. Not Used

M. Professional Dues and Education

The City agrees to reimburse membership dues in ICMA and TCMA, and for reasonable
expenses incurred in the attendance at annual conferences and/or regional conferences. Such
reasonable expenses shall be defined as including conference registration fees, coach/economy
air fares, hotel accommodations and meals in accordance with the City’s travel policy. In
addition, the City agrees to reimburse reasonable expenses incurred in attendance at one other
professional development conference or training opportunity as approved by the Mayor or his
designee. Developing and maintaining professional association contacts and standing provide the
City access to valuable resources, and the reasonable participation and related travel by the
Manager. All dues, continuing education and travel expenses are subject to annual appropriation
by the City Commission.

N. Indemnification
The City will defend, hold harmless, and indemnify Manager against any tort, professional

liability claim or demand, or other civil legal action, whether groundless or otherwise, arising out
of an alleged act or omission occurring in the performance of the duties as City Manager. The



Page 4 .

City will compromise and settle any such claim or suit, at its sole option, and settle any such
claim or suit and pay the amount of any settlement or judgment rendered thereon.

0. Term of Agreement
This agreement shall be for a term not to exceed two (2) years from the start date.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Kingsville, Texas, has caused this Employment
Agreement to be signed and executed on its behalf by its Mayor after being authorized to do so at

a regular and duly posted meeting of the Kingsville City Commission, and the Manager has signed
and executed this Agreement.

Signed this the day of ,2013.

CITY OF KINGSVILLE, TEXAS

Sam R. Fugate, Mayor

ACCEPTED:

Vincent J. Capell

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney



AGENDA ITEM #20



ORDINANCE NO._2013-

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2012-2013 BUDGET FOR THE
GENERAL FUND’S CITY ADMINISTRATION DEPT. FOR AN INCREASE |IN
COMPENSATION AS A RESULT OF THE CITY MANAGER’S NEW PROFESSIONAL
SERVICES CONTRACT.

WHEREAS, it was unforeseen when the budget was adopted that there would be a need for
funding for these expenditures.

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Commission of the City of Kingsville that the Fiscal Year 2012-
2013 budget be amended as follows:

CITY OF KINGSVILLE
DEPARTMENT REVENUES AND EXPENSES

BUDGET AMENDMENT
Dept. Department Account Account Budget Budget
No. Name: Name: Number: Increase Decrease
Fund 001  General Fund
Expense
5-103.0_Prof. Serv. Appraisal District =~ 314.01 $5,049.00
Revenue
4-170.0 Garbage Fees 812.00 $5,371.00
$5,049.00
Expense
5-101.0 Salaries & Wages 111.00 $8,749.00
Retirement 114.00 $979.00
FICA 115.00 $670.00
Worker's Compensation 117.00 $22.00
$10,420.00

[To increase compensation for the City Manager based on the new Professional Services
Contract for City Manager Services.]

THAT all Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict with this Ordinance are repealed to
the extent of such conflict only.



THAT if for any reason any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, word or provision
of this ordinance shall be held invalid or unconstitutional by final judgment of a court of
competent jurisdiction, it shall not affect any other section, paragraph, subdivision, clause,
phrase, word or provision of this ordinance, for it is the definite intent of this City Commission
that every section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, word or provision hereof be given
full force and effect for its purpose.

V.

THAT this Ordinance shall not be codified but shall become effective on and after adoption
and publication as required by law.

INTRODUCED on this the _14th  day of _January , 2013.

PASSED AND APPROVED on this the __day of ___, 2013.

EFFECTIVE DATE:

Sam R. Fugate, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney



P.O: BOX 1458~ - KINGSVILLE, TEXAS 78364,

January 9, 2013

Vince Capell

City Manager

City of Kingsville

P.O. Box 1458
Kingsville, Texas 78364

Re: Budget Amendment to move FY13 Budget for the City Manager Salary Increase

Mr. Capell,

If the City Manager’s annual base salary is increased $15,000 starting March 1, 2013, the
following method of funding the increase could be as follows:

For your consideration is a FY13 Budget Amendment to increase the expected Garbage Fee
Revenue by $5,371.00 and decrease the Appraisal District Collection Fees by $5,049.00. The
Garbage fees were conservatively budgeted in F'Y 13 and the Appraisal District finalized budget
for the City‘s portion of the Appraisal District budgeted amount came in less than the amount
initially anticipated.

Sincerely,

MMLA.MW/

Mark A. Rushing



AGENDA ITEM #21



